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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The purpose of this strategic report is to inform members of the company and help them assess how the directors
have performed their duty under section 172 of the Companics Act 2006 (duty to promote the success of the
company).

Fair review of the business
As a holding company the performance of the Company is largely dependent on the financial results of its
subsidiaries. During the year the group companies developed satisfactorily and the directors expect the group to
continue to generate a profit.

Significant planning takes place regarding dividend flows between parent companies and their subsidiaries,
particularly those outside the United Kingdom. The Company received more dividend income in the prior year
to make use of the EU Parent-Subsidiaries directive, which became obsclete when Britain left the European
Union.

The main trends and factors likely to affect future development, performance and position of the
Company's husiness

Economic conditions in the markets where our subsidiaries operate have a direct impact on their business and
financial performance. In particular, it domestic or global economic conditions worsen or do not improve,
clients may reduce future spending on advertising and marketing services which could reduce the demand for
our services. Our businesses closely monitor economic conditions, client revenue levels and other tactors and, in
response to reductions in client revenue, if necessary, take actions available to them to align their cost structure
and manage working capital.

Government agencies and consumer groups directly or indirectly affect or attempt to affect the scope, content
and manner of presentation of advertising, marketing and corporate communications services, through
regulation or other governmental action. Any limitation on the scope or content of the services provided by our
businesses could affect their ability to meet their clients” needs, which could have a material adverse effect on
their results and financial position. In addition, there has been a tendency on the part of businesses to resort to
the judicial system to challenge advertising practices. Such actions by businesses or governmental agencies
could have a material adverse effect on their resuits and financial position.

Government or legislative action may 1imit the tax deductibility of advertising expenditures by certain industries
or for certain products and services. These actions could cause our clients affected by such actions to reduce
their spending on the services provided by our businesses which could have a material adverse effect on their
results and financial position. Further, laws and regulations, related to user privacy, use of personal information
and internet tracking technologies have been proposed or enacted in certain international markets. These laws
and regulations could affect the acceptance of new communications technologies and the use of current
communications technelogies as advertising mediums. These actions could affect our businesses and reduce
demand for certain of their services, which could have a material adverse cffect on their resulis and financial
position.

Like many other businesses, we rely heavily upon information technology systems and infrastructure to service
our clients. Cyber attacks are becoming more common and whilst we have taken what we believe are prudent
measures to protect our data and informatien technology systems, there can be no assurance that our efforts will
prevent system failures, network disruptions or breaches in our systems or the systems of third parties that we
use. Any of these could adversely affect our reputation or business
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

Principal risks and uncertainties

The markets our businesses operate in are highly competitive and are expected to remain so. Key competitive
considerations for retaining existing business and winning new business include their ability to develop
marketing solutions that meet client needs in a rapidly changing environment, the quality and effectivencss of
the services they offer and their ability to efficiently serve clients, particularly large international clients, on a
broad geographic basis. While many of their client relationships are long-standing, from time to time clients put
their advertising, marketing and corporate communications services business up for competitive review. Our
businesses have won and lost accounts in the past as a result of these reviews. To the extent that they are not
able to remain competitive or retain key clients, their revenue may be adversely affected, which could have a
material adverse effect on their results and financial position.

The ability to retain existing clients and to attract new clients may, in some cases, be limited by clients'
perceptions of, or policies concerning, conflicts of interest arising from other client relationships, If our
businesses are unable to manage multiple cliem relationships and avoid such potential conflicts of interest their
results and financial position may be adversely affected.

Our clients generally are able to reduce advertising and marketing spending or cancel projects at any time on
short notice for any reason. 1t is possible that clients could reduce spending in comparison to historical patterns,
or they could reduce future spending. They could also seek to consolidate or make changes in structure on their
side to centralise operations into regional hubs to achieve economies of scale including savings in advertising
and markcting expenditure. A significant reduction in advertising and marketing spending by our largest clients,
or the loss of several of our largest clients, if not replaced by new clients or an increase in business from existing
clients, would adversely affect the revenue of our businesses and could have a material adverse effect on their
resuits and financial position.

Our employees are our most important assets and our ability te attract and retain key personnel is an important
aspect of our competitiveness. If our businesses are unable to attract and retain key personnel, including highly
skilled technically proficient personnel, their ability to provide services im the manner customers have come to
expect may be adversely affected, which could harm their reputation and result in a loss of clients, which could
have a material adverse effect on their results and financial position.

The United Kingdom left the European Union on 31 January 2020, entering a transition period which ended 31
December 2020. The EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement, which will govern the relationship between
the UK and EU, has been applied since formal ratification on 1 May 2021. In the absence of an agreement on
trade-in-services, we are analysing changes and implications for cur operations across both economies, and in
the advertising/media sector in particular.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

In addition to the above the spreading of a pandemic of a respiratory disease abbreviated "COVID-19" in the
first quarter of 2020 has caused widespread illness. This has resulted in a detrimental impact on the global
economy i most sectors including advertising. In the short-term, the health crisis is expected to adversely affect
and increase uncertainty over the financial performance of most businesses including our subsidiaries. Despite
the uncertainty, our industry and businesses will continue to adapt and respond to changing conditions and the
needs of our clients and wider stakeholders to minimise the consequences of the current health crisis in the
medium and longer term.

Approved by the Boardon ."..... {a [9- and signed on its behalf by:

Director
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors present their report and the financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activity .
The principal activity of the company is to act as a hokding company for companies operating primarily outside
the UK, providing advertising and marketing services.

Dividends
The directors paid dividends during the year ended 31 December 2020 of £2,000,000 per share totalling
£6,000,000 (2019: £216,776,451).

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during, the year and to the date of this report were as follows:

J. Bymes

H. Cavanagh

The following director was appointed after the year cnd:
J. Moser (appointed 1 April 2021)

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of the directors during the
period and these remain in force at the reporting date.

Post balance sheet events
In December 2021 the Company received a dividend of £4,000,000 from its subsidiary, BBDO EMEA Limited.
In the same month, the Company paid a dividend of £1,000,000 to its parent company.

Political and charitable donations
Durinig the year the company made no political donations or charitable donations or incurred any such
expenditure during the year (2019: Nil).

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director who held office at the date of approval of this directors' report confirms that, so far as they are
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and each Director has
taken all the steps in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company's auditor is aware of that information.
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BEDO Evropean Holdings Limited

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020

Reappointment of auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP wilt therefore continue in office.

i
Approved by the Board on ?’ l"/l and signed on its behalf by:

Director

Bankside 3

90 - 100 Southwark Street
London

SE1 0SW

Registered office
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elected to preparc the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent;

= statc whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

* assess the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and

* use the going coneern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are responsible for such internal contro! as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safegnard the assets of the company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BBDO European Holdings Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BBDO European Holdings 1imited (the 'company') for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Balance Shect, Statement of changes in
equity and Notes to the financial statements, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards. including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidste the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could
have casl significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of
approval of the financial statements ("the going concern period").

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

« we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

= we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's
ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all futurc events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were rcasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions
are not a guarantee that the company will continuc in operation.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BBDO European Holdings Limited

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks™) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

» Enquiring of directors as to the Company’s high - level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

+ Reading Board minutes,;

* Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual and unexpected relationships.

We communicated identifted fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedurcs to address the risk of management override of
controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.
On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk linked to revenue recognition because there are no revenue
transactions.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including:
= Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified
entries 1o supporting documentation o ensure that the transaction exist.

idemtifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the
directors, and discussed with the directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our audit team and remained alert to any
indications of non- compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regnlations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (inciuding related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and
taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our
procedures on the related financial statement jtems.

Secondly. whilst the company is subject matter to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any

others where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the
financial staternents.

Page &



Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BBDO European Holdings Limited

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing 1o the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planmed and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the cvents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards woutd identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedurcs are designed to detect material misstatemnent. We are not respensible for preventing non-compliance
or fraud and cannot be expected to detect nen-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic Report and Directors' Report
The dircctors are responsible for the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

* we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Dircctors' Report ;

* in our opinjon the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

= in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companics Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been reccived
from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair vicw; such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemenl, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to ceasc operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, thcy could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of BBDO European Holdings Limited

A fuller description of our responsibilitics is provided on the FRC’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely 1o the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed.

Amw\

J ercmy Hall (Scmor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GI.

Dato....-&..’.-.[ .............
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2020

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Income from shares in group undertakings

Other interest receivable and similar income

Interest payable and similar expenses

Profit before taxation

Tax on profit

Profit afier taxation

2020 2019
£ £
(1.609,703) (1,230,137)

(1,609,703)  (1,230.137)
7,603,606 216,994,513
5,625 14,795

- (21,808)
5.999.528 215,757,363
304,774 235,059
6,304,302 215,992,422

The results shown above are derived wholly from continuing operations. There were no recognised gains or
losses in either the current or prior year except as shown above. Consequently, a statement of comprehensive
income has not been prepared.

The notes on pages 14 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

(Registration number: 4127645)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Nofe £ £
Fixed assets
Investments 9 333,762,665 333,762,665
Current assets
Debtors 10 3,973,997 3,512,263
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 11 (1,147,905) (990,473)
Net current assets 2,826,092 2,521,790
Net assets 336,588,757 336,284,455
Capital and reserves ]
Called up share capital 12 3 3
Share premium account 31.659,357 31,659,357
Capital contribution reserve 624,418 624,418
Capital redemption reserve 8,000,000 8,000,000
Retained earnings 296,304,979 296,000,677
Total cquity 336,588,757 336,284,455

Approved by the Board on #{id’{z‘lmd signed on its behalf by:

Dircctor

The notes on pages 14 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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At | January 2020
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Dividends

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Dividends

At 31 December 2019

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2020

Capital Capital
contribution redemption Retained
Share capital  Share premium reserve reserve earnings Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
3 31.659.357 624,418 8,000,000 296,000,677 336,284,455
- - - - 6,304,302 6,304,302
- - - - 6,304,302 6,304,302
- - - - (6,000,000)  (6,000,000)
3 31,659,357 624,418 8,000,000 296,304,979 336,588,757
Capital Capital
Contribution redemption Retained
Share capital  Share premium reserve reserve earnings Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
3 31.659.357 624,418 8,000,000 296,784,706 337,068,484
- - - - 215,992,422 215,992,422
- - - - 215,992,422 215,992,422
- - - - (216,776,451) (216,776,451)
3 31,659,357 624.418 8,000,000 296,000,677 336,284,455
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

1 Accounting policies

Statement of compliance

‘These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'. The following accounting policies have been
applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered to be material in relation to the Company's
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The financial statcments have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the
historical cost accounting rules.

The company is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in England & Wales.
The financial statements are presented in sterling, the Company's functicnal currency.

The Company is exempt by virtue of 5401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group
accounts as the Company is included in the consolidated accounts of a larger group headed by Omnicom Group
Inc., a parent undertaking established under the law of the United States of America. These financial statements

present information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its group.

Summary of disclosure exemptions

In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this FRS)
and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:

* Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;

« Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and

« Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of Omnicom Group Inc. include the equivalent disclosures, the
Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 102 available in respect of the following disclosures:

= Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,

« The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules of
Paragraph 36(4) of Schedule 1.

Related party transactions: As a 100% owned subsidiary of Omnicom Group Inc. the Company has taken

advantage of the exemption available under FRS 102 Section 33. 1A: Related Party Disclosures. which enable it
to exclude disclosure of transactions with Omnicom Group Inc., and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Going concern

‘The Company has net current assets of £2,826,092 at 31 December 202¢ (2019: £2,521,790). The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate as the
directors consider that the Company will have access to sufficient funding to meet its needs for the reasons set
out below.

The company participates in a cash concentration arrangement with its fellow subsidiaries, Omnicom Finance
Limiled and Omnicom Fivaucial Seivices Limited, the group’™s UK trcasury operations, under which bank
balances are cleared to zero on a daily basis either by the company depositing cash with Cmnicom Finance
Limited or Omnicom Financial Services Limited or by Omnicom Finance Limited or Omnicom Financial
Services [imited depositing cash with the company. The company’s access to borrowings under thc cash
concentration arrangement is not limited as long as these borrowings are required in the normal course of
business and are made in accordance with the Omnicom Group Inc Grant of Authority and includes a period of
at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

Omnicom Finance Limited, is able to make this commitment because Omnicom Finance Limited is a
co-borrower with Omnicom Finance Inc. and Omnicom Capital Inc. under certain group bank facilities which
are more fully described in the Omnicom Group Inc. financial statements filed on Form 10-K and available at
www.OmnicomGroup.com.

The directors have made a going concern assessment which covers a period of at least 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements, taking account of severe but plausible downside scenarios (including
the assumption of further COVID-19 lockdowns), that indicates the company will have sufficient {funds to meet
its liabilities as they fall due throughout that period, via the group facilities described above. As with any
company placing reliance on other group entities tor financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can
be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements,
they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall duc for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and
therefore have prepared the financial staterments on a going concern basis.

Summary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
‘These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Fixed asset investments

Investments in equity shares which are publicly traded or where the fair value can be measured reliably are
initially measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Investments in equity
shares which are not publicly traded and where fair value cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less
impairment.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Dividends

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they
are appropriately authorised and are no longer at the discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not
meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the company's right to receive payment
is established.

Tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years,

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on translation are included in the profit and loss account.

Auditor's remuneration

2020 2019
£ £
Audit of the financial statements 7,003 7.003
Directors' remuneration
2020 2019
£ £
Directors’ emoluments 140,472 188.910

Directors' emoluments reflect the amounts received by the directors for their services to the company. Further
remuneration is received in respect of services to the other group companies.

The Company's directors participate in the restricted stock scheme operated by the Ultimate Parent Undertaking.
In 2020, shares were received or receivable under this restricted share scheme by one director (2019: one).

Under this scheme. certain directors have been awarded restricted stock units in the ultimate parent undertaking,
Omnicom Group Inc. The restricted stock units typically vest in 20% annual increments provided the director
remains an employee of the Omnicom group. Restricted shares may not be sold, transferred, pledged or
otherwise encumbered until the resirictions lapse.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

4  Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
Wages and sulacies ‘ 705,373 713,242
Social security costs 586.045 889,864
Pension and other post-employment benefit costs 13,680 11,828
1,305,098 1,614,934

The average number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year, analysed by
category was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.
Administration and support 6 6
S Other interest receivable and similar income
2020 2019
£ ) £
Receivable from group undertakings 2,605 14,795
Foreign exchange gains 3,020 -
3,625 14,795
6 Interest payable and similar expenses
2020 2019
£ £
Foreign exchange losses - 21,808
7 Taxation
Tax charged/(credited) in the profit and loss account
2020 2019
£ £
Current taxation
Current tax on income for the period (304,774) (235,059)

The tax on profit before tax for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2019 -
lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) 0of 19 % (2019 - 19 % ).
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
£ £
Profit before tax 5,999,528 215,757,363
Corporation tax at standard rate 1.139,910 40,993,899
Effect of revenues exempt from taxation (1,444 684) {41,228,958)
Total tax credit (304,774) (235,059)

A UK corporation rate of 19% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020, reversing
the previously enacted reduction in the rate from 19% to 17%. This will increase the company's future current
tax charge accordingly. There are no deferred tax assets/liabilities at 31st December 2020,

The March 2021 Budget announced that a rate of 25% would apply with effect from 1 April 2023. This change
was substantively enacted on 25 May 20621. This will increase the company’s future current tax charge
accordingly.

Dividends
2020 2019
£ £
Dividend of £2,000,000 (2019 - £72,258,817) per ordinary share 6.000,000 216,776,451
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

¢ Fixed Asset Investments

Shares in group

undertakings
Subsidiaries £
Cost
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2019 333,762,665
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 333,762,665
At 31 December 2019 333,762,665

For details of undertakings please see note 16.

Details of undertakings

In line with generally accepted accounting practice, the carrying value of investments is required to be tested
annually for impairment where therc are indicators of impairment. If these tests indicate that the value in use (as
measured by discounted cash flows) or the market value of investments fall below their current carrying value,
then an tmpairment provision is required.

The tests and judgements required in performing them are both complex and, because of the high carrying value
of the Company's assets, highly significant to the financial statements. The directors consider all relevant
factors, both internal and external, in order to determine if there are circumstances in which impairment might
exist.

The value in use has been calculated by discounting the forecast future cash flows for the next five years. The

directors have reviewed the key assumptions underlying the discount rates used and are satisfied that they are
reasonable. As a result of the impairment reviews, no impairment was deemed necessary.
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Debtors

20290 2019

£ £

Amounts owed by group undertakings - trading balances - 685.179
Amounts owed by group undertakings - loans and ad¥ances 3,710,201 2,676,214
Taxation and social security 132,107 94,948
Other debtors 127,789 52,022
Prepayments and accrued income 3,900 3,900

3.973,997 3,512,263

The Company participates in a cash concentration arrangement with its fellow subsidiaries, Omnicom Finance
Limited and Omnicom Financial Services Limited, the Omnicom Europe Limited group’s UK treasury
operation, under which bank balances are cleared to zero on a daily basis either by the Company depositing cash
with Omnicom Finance Limited and Omnicom Financial Services Limited or by Omnicom Finance Limited and
Omnicom Financial Services Iimited depositing cash with the Company. Included in Amounts owed by group
undertakings - loans and advances is £3,710,201 (2019: £2.676,214) representing cash deposited by the
Company under thesc arrangements.

Creditors

2020 2019

£ £

Due within one year
Amounts owed to group undertakings - trading balances 934,620 667,884
Taxation and social sccurity - 34,149
Accruals and deferred income 213,285 288.440

1,147,905 990.473
Share capital
Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

2020 2019
No. £ No. £

Ordinary shares of £1 each 3 3 3 3
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BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

13 Related party transactions

Summary of transactions with subsidiaries

At 31 December 2020, the Company's ultimate parent undertaking was Ommicom Group Inc. The shareholders
of the Company have interest directly or indirectly in certain other companics which are considered to give rise
Lo related party disclosures under FRS 102 Section 33. '

As a 100% owned indirect subsidiary of Omnicom Group Inc, the Company has taken advantage of the
exemption under FRS102 Section 33.1A: Related Party Disclosures, which cnable it to exclude disclosurc of
transactions with Omnicom Group Inc and its whelly owned subsidiaries.

14 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of Omnicom Group Inc. incorporated in the United States of America
and is the largest group in which the results are consolidated.

The registered office of Omnicom Group Inc. is 280 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10017, United States.

No other group accounts include the results of the Company.

15 Post balance sheet events

In December 2021 the Company received a dividend of £4,000,000 from its subsidiary, BBDO EMEA Limited.
In the samc month. the Company paid a dividend of £1,000.000 to its parent company.
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16 Details of undertaking

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Details of the investments in which the company holds 20% or more directly or indirectly of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:

Undertaking

Subsidiary undertakings

ad agencyservices GmbH

Adelphi Germany GmbH

Alice BBDO Reklamcilik
Ve lletisim Hizmetieri
Ticaret A.S

areasolutions GmbH
Around Midnight

Attention'Media s.r.o.

Batten & Company GmbH
BBDO AO

BBDO Belgium N.V.

Company number

63283

HRB358446
257786-205358
60055

333 345 267.0006%

25740245

35786
1057746743108

BE 407 245 392

Country of
incorporation Holding

Germany Ordinary
Germany Ordinary
Turkey Ordinary
Germany Ordinary
France Ordinary
Czech Ordinary
Republic

Germany Ordinary
Russian Ordinary
Federation

Belgium Ordinary

Proportion
of voting

rights and
shares held

95.80

45.00

30.00

80.63

100.00

33.33

95.80
90.00

100.00
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Principle
activity

Shared Service
Centre

Research

Advertising

Media Planning

Production

Media Services

Consultancy

Advertising

Holding
Company

Registered address

Bahnstrasse 2, Duesseldorf, 40212, Germany

Probsteigasse 15-19, Cologne, 30670, Germany

Vignezade Mah.Slileyman Seba Caddesi. No:29-31,
Akaretler Besiktag. Istanbul. Turkey

Zirkusweg |, Hamburg, 20359, Germany. Europe

52, Avenue Emile Zola, Boulogne-Billancourt, 92100,
France

Lomnickeho 1705/, Prague 4. 14000

Konigsalle 92. Dusseldorf, 40212, Germany

7 Derbencvskaya Embankment, Building 13, Moscow.
115114, Russian Federation

122, Scheldestraat. Brussel, 1080, Belgium. Europe



BBDO Berlin GmbH

BBDO Branding
Consultancy AO

BBDO CA

BBDO Communication
Group S.A.

BBDO Diisseldorf GmbH
BBDO EMEA Limited

BBDO Group Germany
GmbH

BBDO Holding GmbH
BBDO Paris

BBDO Warszawa Sp.z.0.0
Bootleg LLC

Brain Consufting GmbH

Brandzeichen
Markenberatung und
Kommunikation GmbH

Cardinia Real Estate
Germany GmbH

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

76839
1067763494699

4143-1910-01-TOO

338701000

12398
1901389

3901
FN 122608 g
30720684700070

KRS 0000125186
1177726739363

HRB 171377
HRB 59260

HRB 167778

Germany

Russian
Federation
Kazakhstan

Greece

Germany

England
Germany
Austria
France
Poland

Russian
Federation

Germany

Germany

Germarny

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

95.80
90.00

50.00

93.00

95.80
100.00

95.80

100.00

100.00

100.00
90.00

80.63
100.00

100.00
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Advertising
Advertising

Advertising
Advertising

Advertising

Holding
Company

Holding
Company

Holding
Company

Holding
Company

Advertising

Advertising
Agency

Marketing

Public Relations

Property
Management

Friedrichstrasse 200, Berlin, 10117, Germany

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building [1. Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

Abdullinvkh st, 66, Almaty,
Kazakhstan

Kazakhstan. 030000,

41 - 45, Marinou Antipa Avenue. N. Irakleion, Athens,
14121, Greece

Koenigsallee 92, Duesseldorf. D - 40212, Germany

Bankside 3. 90 - 100 Southwark Street, London. SEI
0SW. England

Koenigsallee 92, Duesseldorf, D - 40212, Germany
Guglgasse 7-9, 1030, Vienna, Austria

52, Avenue Emile Zola, Boulogne-Billancourt, 92100,
France

6c, ul. Wybrzeze Gdynskie, Warszawa, 01-531, Poland

7. Derbenevskava Embankment. Building 9, Moscow,
115114. Russian Federation

28, Blumenstrasse, Munich, 80331, Germany
Bahnstrasse 2, Duesseldorf, 40212, Germany

Thurn-und-Taxis-Platz 6, Frankfurt am Main, 60313,
Germany



Code of Trade AO

Communicatio Public
Relations Beteiligungs

GmbH

Communicatio Zwei Public

Relations

Beteiligungsgesellschaft

m.b.H

Contrapunto Limited
Liability Company
Darwin BBDO N.V.

DB Reclame Services B.V.

Ehrenstrahle & Co. i

Stockholm AB

Ehrenstrahle International

AB.
Emanate GmbH

Energy BBDO Sp.z.0.0.
ENGAGE BBDON.V.
Face to Face Events GmbH

Face to Face GmbH
Strategie - Konzeption -

Kommunikation

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

1037748474761

FN 203800g

FN 241225 v

1117746126728

BE 424 768 938

33270787

356212-9873

556162-5632

HRB 110352
0000186779
BEQ407245392
HRB 74185
HRB47174

Russian
Federation

Austria

Austria

Russian
Federation

Belgium
Netherlands
Sweden
Sweden

Germany
Poland

Belgium
Germany

Germany

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Interests

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

90.00

95.93

%0.00

80.08

33.33

54.99

34.99

90.16
100.00
30.62
43,00
45.00
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Media Buying
Company

Holding
Company

Helding
Company

Advertising

Advertising
Agency

Media Buying
Company

Advertising
Advertising

Public Relations
Advertising
Sales Promotion
Marketing

Research

Room 3. Buiiding Space IVA, bldg. 11/19,
Vemadskogo pr.. Moscow. 119311, Russian Federation

Einsiedeleigasse 7/21, Wien, 1130, Austria

Einstedeleigasse 7/21, Wien. 1 130. Austria

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment. Building 11, Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

Bessenveldstraat 25, Diegem, 1831, Belgium

4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan, Amstelveen, {183 DJ.
Netherlands

Sveavigen 73, Box 70352, Stockholn. 10724, Sweden
Box 70352, 107 24, Stockholm. Sweden

28. Blumenstrasse, Munich, 80331, Germany

6¢. ul. Wybrzeze Gdynskie, Warszawa. 01-531, Poland
122, Scheldestraat, Brussel, 1080, Belgium. Europe
von Werth strasse 37, Koln. 50670, Germany
Probsteigasse 15-19, Cologne, 50670. Germany



Face to Face Holding

GmbH

FleishmanHillard Germany

GmbH

Fuse

Fuse BBDO

Communication SA

GFMO Kft

Hearts & Science A/S
Hearts & Science AB

Hearts & Science Germany

GmbH
Instinct AQ

Interone GmbH

Ketchum Germany Holding

GmbH
Ketchum GmbH

Ke-chum Maslov LLC

Ketchum Publico GmbH

Limited liability company

"BBDO"

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

HRB63688

HRB 33080

381209 501

761301000

01-09-678400

39700018
559141-5681

80972

1057747131530

79582
22764

26544
1107746742212

FN7237
35962292

Germany
Germany
France
Greece
Hungary

Denmark

Sweden

Germany

Russian
Federation

Germany

Germany

Germany

Russian
Federation

Austria

Ukraine

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

|
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45.00

00.00

33.34

63.00

33.00

44.78
33.33

80.63

90.00

95.80
95.93

95.93
51.00

95.93
80.00

Research
Public Relations

Media buying
and strategy

Advertising

Advertising
Agency

Advertising

Advertising
Agency

Advertising
Agency

Advertising

CRM

Hoiding
Company

Public Relations

Public Relations

Consultancy

Advertising

Probsteigasse 15-19, Cologne, 50670. Germany

Hanauer Landstrasse 182A, Frankfurt Am Main, 60314,
Germany

11-15, Avenue Andre Morizet, Boulogne-Billancourt,
92100, France

41 — 45, Marinou Antipa Avenue, N. Irakleion, Athens,
14121, Greece

84/A., 2nd Floor, Dozsa Gydrgy Street, Budapest.
H-1068, Hungary, Europe

Midtermolen 3, Copenhagen, 2100, Denmark
Box 11097, Stockholm, 100 61, Sweden

Bahnstrasse 2, Duesseldorf, 402§2, Germany

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 8, Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

Theresienhoehe 12, Munchen, 80339, Germany

Bahnstrasse 2, Duesseldorf, 40212, Germany

Bahnstrasse 2, Duesseldorf, 40212. Germany

B Kamenschiki Street i3, Moscow, 113172, Russian
Federation

Neulinggasse 37, Wien, 1030, Austria

3, bldg. B10. str. Derohozhytska, Kyiv, Ukraine, 04116.
Europe



LLC ACC Advertising
M,P, NEWMEDIA GmbH

Mark Creative Advertising
S.A

Media Direction 8.p.z.0.0.

Media Direction
Specialized Advertising
Services SA

Media Wise 000
Mediacenter
Automatisering B.V,
Mediacenter B.V.

Mint AO

mmb media agentur gmbh
MORE Limited Liability
Company

OMD

OMD Czech a.s.

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

606199
HRB23629
732401000

0000125817

299001000

5147746075846

33216685

33141692

1067758790879

1297

1147746567110

389489212

64948439

Ukraine
Germany

Greece
Poland

Greece

Russian
Federation

Netherlands
Netherlands

Russian
Federation

Germany

Russian
Federation

France

Czech
Republic

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Interests
Ordinary

Ordinary
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90.00
80.63
93.00

84.00

93.00

90.00

3333

3333

90.00

24.19

90.00

3334

50.00

Advertising
Media Agency

Advertising
Agency

Media Planning
& Buying

Media Agency

Advertising

Information
Technology

Advertising
Advertising

Media Buying
Company

Advertising

Media buying
and strategy

Media Services

Andrivskiy Spusk str. 1A, Kiev. 04070, Ukraine
45, HindenburgstraBe, Ludwigsburg. 71638, Germany

41 — 45, Marinou Antipa Avenue. N. Irakleion, Athens,
14121, Greece

6¢. ul. Wybrzeze Gdynskie, Warszawa, 01-331, Poland

41 — 43, Marinou Antipa Avenue. N. Irakleion. Athens,
14121, Greece

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 9. Moscow.
115114, Russian Federation

4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan. Amstelveen. 1183 DIJ.
Netherlands
4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan. Amstelveen, 1183 DI,

Netherlands

7, Derbenevskava Embankment, Building 16, Moscow.,
115114, Russian Federation

Rotebuhlplatz 23, Stuttgart. 70178, Germany

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment. Building 11. Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

1-15. Avenue Andre Morizet, Boulogne-Billancourt,
92100, France

Lomnickeho 1705/9, Prague 4, 14000, Czech Republic



OMD Denmark A/S

OMD Duesseldorf GmbH
OMD Eastern Europe BY

OMD Germany GmbH
OMD Hamburg GmbH
OMD Media Direction AO

OMD Mediaagentur GmbH

OMD Miinchen GmbH

OMD n.v.

OMD Sweden AB

Omnicom Beteiligungs

GmbH

Omnicom Holding

Germany GmbH

Omnicom Media Group

Omnicom Media Group

A’S

Omnicom Media Group AB

Omnicom Media Group

Germany GmbH

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

29831033

31208
34152029

HRB75489
58198
1057747131991

FN 279532 b

HRB 127 421
hrb 53C.245
556647-2063

HRB 19203

39967

hrb 530.242
15106875

556586-2314

HRB 34168

Denmark

Germany
Netherlands

Germany
Germany

Russian
Federation
Austria

Germany
Belgium

Sweden
Germany
Germany

Belgium

Denmark
Sweden

Germany

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

44.78

80.63
33.33

80.63
80.63
50.00

33.33

60.61
33.33
33.33

98.49

100.00

33.33
44.78

33.33

80.63
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Media Buying
Company

Media Planning

Holding
Company

Media Agency
Media Planning
Media Agency

Media Buying
Company

Media Agency
Media Agency
Media Company

Holding
Company

Holding
Company

Media Agency
Media Agency

Media Buying
Company

Media Planning

Midtermolen 3, Copenhagen, 2100, Denmark

Gruenstrasse 15, Duesseldorf, D - 40212, Germany

Generaal Vetterstraat 82, Amsterdam, 1059 BW,

Netherlands
15, Grunstrasse, Dusseldorf. 40212, Germany
Zirkusweg 1, Hamburg, 20339, Germany, Europe

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 9, Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

31/3/401, Heiligenstadter Strasse, Vienna, A-1190,
Austria

28, Blumenstrasse, Munich, 80331, Germany
Chaussee de 1a hulpe 166, Brussels, 1170, Belgium

Box 11177, Medborgarplatsen 3, Stockholm, 100 61,
Sweden

Im Atzelnest 5, 61352 Bad Homburg
Koenigsallee 92, Duesseldorf, D - 40212, Germany

Chaussee de la hulpe 166, Brussels, 1170, Belgium
Midtermolen 3, Copenhagen, 2100, Denmark

Box 11097, Medborgarplatsen 3. Stockholm. 100 61,
Sweden

Gruenstrasse 15, Duesseldorf, D - 40212, Germany



Omnicom Media Group
Hungary Hirdetesi
Szolgaliato Kfi

Omnicom Media Group
Mediaagentur GmbH

Omnicom Media Group
S.I.0.

Omnicom Media Groupe

OmnicomMediaGroup
Nederland B.V.

000 SELLBYTEL
Communication Group

Optimurn Media Direction
A/S

Optimum Media Direction
Hungary Hirdetesi
Szolgaltato Kft

Optimum Media Direction
Nederland BV

Peter Schmidt Group
GmbH

Peter Schmidt Holding
GmbH

PHD

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

01-09-877082

FN 154268 s

27566242

322 557 810

33203625

1057746905864

19662802

01-09-671237

30139037

100277

69382

409 787 413

Hungary

Austria
Czech
Republic
France
Netherlands
Russian
Federation

Denmark

Hungary

Netherlands

Germany

Germany

France

Ordinary

Ordinary
Membership
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
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33.00

3333

3333

33.34

33.33

95.80

50.00

33.00

3333

88.40

88.40

33.33

Advertising
Agency

Media Agency

Media Buying
Company

Media Planning
& Buying

Holding
Company

Outsourcing

Dormant

Advertising
services

Media Agency
Design
Holding

Company

Media Buying
Company

84/A., 2nd Floor, Dézsa Gydrgy Street. Budapest.
H-1068. Hungary, Europe

31/3/401, Heiligenstadter Strasse. Vienna, A-1190,
Austria

Lomnickeho 1705/9, Prague 4. 14000, Czech Republic

11-15, Avenue Andre Morizet, Boulogne-Billancourt,
92100, France

4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan, Amstelveen,
Netherlands

1183 DJ.

7, Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 10. Moscow,
Russian Federation, 115114

Midtermalen 3. Copenhagen, 2100. Denmark

84/A., 2nd Floor, Dézsa Gydrgy Street. Budapest.
H-1068, Hungary, Europe

4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan. Amsteiveen, 1183 DJ.

Netherlands
47, ABC-Strasse, Hamburg. 20354, Germany

47, ABC-Strasse, Hamburg, 20354, Germany

11-15, Avenue Andre Morizet, Boulogne-Billancourt,
62100, France



PHD a.s.

PHD AO

PHD Copenhagen A/S
PHD Germany GmbH

PHD Hungarv Advertising
Services Limited Liability

Company
PHD Media S.A

PHD Media Direction

S.p.z.0.0

PHD Mediaagentur GmbH

PHD Netherlands B.V.

PHD Sweden AB

Point Zero Advertising S.A

Proximity AO

Proximity BBDO

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

26210738
1057747131639

25112350
16475

01-09-878735

618718

KRS 000341778
FN 244974¢
33270336
556706-5205
38287305000
1057747131923

382 163 087.00044

Czech
Republic

Russian
Federation

Denmark

Germany

Hungary

Belgium
Poland
Austria
Netherlands
Sweden
Greece
Russian

Federation

France

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

33.33 Media Services

90.00

44,78
80.63

33.00

33.33
84.00
33.33
33.33
33.33
66.03
90.00

100.00

Page 29

Media Agency

Media Agency
Media Planning

Advertising
Agency

Media Buying
Company

Advertising
Media Agency
Media Buying
Company
Media Company
Advertising
Events &

Sponsoring
CRM

Lomnickeho 1705/5. Prague 4, 140 00

7. Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 9, Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

Midtermolen 3, Copenhagen, 2100, Denmark

Hanauer Landstrasse 182A, Frankfurt Am Main, 60314,
Germany

84/A., 2nd Floor, Ddzsa Gydrgy Street, Budapest,
H-1068, Hungary, Europe

Kroonlaan 165, Avenue de la Couronne, Brussels,
B-1050, Belgium

6c, ul. Wybrzeze Gdynskie, Warszawa, 01-331, Poland

31/3/401, Heiligenstadter Strasse, Vienna, A-1190,
Austria

4, Prof W.H. Keesomlaan, Amstelveen, 1183 DJ,

Netherlands

Box 11015, Vistgdtagraind 2. Stockholm, 100 61,
Sweden

41 — 45, Marinou Antipa Avenue, N. Irakleion, Athens,
14121, Greece

7 Derbenevskaya Embankment, Building 13, Moscow,
115114, Russian Federation

52, Avenue Emile Zola, Boulogne-Billancourt, 92100,
France



Proximity BBDO Indian
Ocean

Proximity BBDO N.V.
Proximity GmbH

Proximity Technology
GmbH

Proximity Worldwide
Limited

PUNCH BBDO
REKLAMCILIK VE
ILETISIM HIZMETLERI
TICARET A S.

RAPP Berlin GmbH
Red Proximity Limited
Resolution Media GmbH

Resolution Media Kéin
GmbH

Resolution Media
Ludwigsburg GmbH

Resolution Media Miinchen
GmbH

Semetis SPRL

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

22552/5067/CI/GBL

BE 449003201
95970
17779

4026206

175610-5

170297

8796075

67391

HRB 50653

HREB 756731

HRB141551

810426189

Mauritius

Belgium
Germany

Germany
England

Turkey

Germany
England

Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany

Belgium

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

100.00

87.51
95.80
95.80

100.00

22,50

100.00

95.80

80.63

80.63

80.63

80.63

26.66
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Digital
Producticn
Advertising
Advertising
Digital Solutions

Support Services

Advertising
Agency
Consultancy
Marketing
Media Buying
Company
New Media
Service
Company

Consultancy

Social Media

Istb Floor. Block B. Phoenix Central. Phoenix.
Mauritius

122, Scheldestraat, Brussel, 1080, Belgium, Europe
Koenigsaliee 92, Duesseldotf, D - 40212, Germany
Zirkusweg 1. Hamburg, 20359, Germany. Europe

Bankside 3, 90 - (00 Southwark Street, London. SE|
0SW, England

Visnezade Mah.Silleyman Seba Cad.. No:29-31.
Akaretler Besiktas, Istanbul, 34357, Turkey

Paul-Lincke-Ufer 39/40, Berlin, 10999, Germany,
Europe

Bankside 3, 90 - 100 Southwark Street, London, SE]
08SW, England

Gruenstrasse |3, Duesseldorf, D - 40212, Germany

6, Cicilienkloster, Kéln. 50676, Germany

45, HindenburgstraBle, Ludwigsburg, 71638, Germany

Theresienhoehe 12. Munchen, 80339, Germany

44, Rue des Palais, Brussels, 1030, Belgium



Smart Digital GmbH

Smart Digital Solutions
GmbH

Stein Personal Service
GmbH

Stein Promotions GmbH

The Marketing Arm
Limited Liability Company

The MediaCorp SA
Specialized Advertising
Services S.A,

TLGG Consulting GmbH

Torben, Lucie und die gelbe
Gefahr GmbH

Trakken GmbH
VVL/BBDO N.V

BBDO European Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

HRB 736462

HRB 743775

HRB 101502

HRB 58869
5167746443410

1782501000

HRB193327 B

115405

HRB 104862
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitute forward-looking statements, including statements within
the meaning of the Private Securities Lirigation Reform Act of 1993. [n addition, from time to time, the Company or its
representatives have made, or may make, forward-looking statements, orally or in writing. These statements may discuss goals,
intentions and expectations as to future plans, trends, events, results of operadions or financial condition, or otherwise, based on
current beliefs of the Company’s management as well as assumptions made by, and information currently available to, the
Company’s management. Forward-looking statements may be accompanied by words such as “aim,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “plan,”
“could,” “should,” “would,” “estimare,” “expect,” “forecast,” “future,” “guidance,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “possible,” “potential,”
“predict,” “project” or similar words, phrases or expressions. These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and
uncertaintics, many of which are outside the Company’s control. Therefore, you should not place undue reliance on such
statements. Factors that could cause actual results co differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include: the
tpract of the COVID-19 pandemic, international, natinnal ar lncal economic conditions that could adversely affect the Company
or its clients; losses on media purchases and productien costs incurred on behalf of clients; reducrions in client spending, a
slowdown in client payments and a deterioration in the credit markets; the ability 1o attract new clients and retain existing clients in
the manner anticipated; changes in clienc adverrising, marketing and corporate communications requirements; failure to manage
potential conflicts of interest between ot among clients; unanticipated changes relating to competitive factors in the advertising,
marketing and corporate communications industries; the ability to hire and retain key personnel; currency exchange rate
fluctuations; reliance on information technology systems; changes in legislation or governmental regulations affecting the Company
or its clients; risks associated with assumptions the Company makes in connection with its critical accounting estimates and legal
proceedings; and the Company’s internaticnal operations, which are subject 1o the risks of currency repatriation restrictions, social
or political conditions and regulatory environment. The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. You should carefully consider the
foregoing factors and the ocher risks and uncerrinties chat may affect the Company’s business, including those described in [tem
1A, “Risk Factors” and Item 7, “Management’s Discusston and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this
report. Except as required under applicable law, the Company does not assume any obligation to update these
forward-looking statements.



PART I
Introduction
This report is our 2020 annual report to shareholders and our 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K, or 2020 10-K.

Omnicom Group Inc., a New York corporation formed in 1986, through its branded neeworks and agencies provides
advertising, marketing and corporate communications services to over 3,000 clients in more than 70 countries. The terms
“Omnicom,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” each refer to Omnicom Group [nc. and irs subsidiaries unless the context
indicates otherwise.

Item 1. Business
Our Business

Omnicom is a strategic holding company providing advertising, marketing and corporate communications services to clients
through our branded nerworks and agencies around the wotld. We operate in a highly comperitive industry and compete against
other global, nadonal and regional advertising and marketing services companies, as well as technology, social media and
professional services companies. The proliferation of media channels, including the rapid development and integrarion of
interactive technologies and media, has fragmented consumer audiences rargeted by our clients. These developments make it more
complex for marketers to reach their target audiences in a cost-effective way, causing them to wrn to global service providers such as
Omnicom for a customized mix of advertising and marketing services designed to optimize their total marketing expenditure. As
discussed below, in 2020 the COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted our business.

On a global, pan-regional and local basis, our nerworks and agencies provide a comprehensive range of services in the
following fundamental disciplines: advertising, customer relationship management, or CRM, which includes CRM Consumer
Experience and CRM Execution & Suppest, public relations and healthcare. Advertising includes creative services, as well as
strategic media planning and buying and data analytics services. CRM Consutner Experience includes Omnicom’s Precision
Marketing Group and digital/direct agencies, as weli as our branding, shopper marketing and experiential marketing agencies.
CRM Execution & Support includes field marketing, sales support, merchandising and point of sale, as well as other specialized
marketing and custom communications services. Public relations services include corporate communications, crisis management,
public affairs and media and media relations services. Healthcare includes advertising and media services to global healthcare
clients. Our business model was built and continues to evolve around our clieats. Qur fundamental business principle is chat our
clients’ specific marketing requirements are the central focus of how we structure our service offerings and allocate our resources.
This clienc-centric business model requires that multiple agencies within Omnicom collaborate in formal and informal virtual
client networks utilizing our key client matrix organization struceure. This collaboration allows us o cut zcross our incernal
organizational structures to execute our clients’ marketing requirements in a consistent and comprehensive manner, We use our
client-centric approach to grow our business by expanding our service offerings o existing clients, moving into new markets and
abraining new clients. In addition to collabarating through our client service models, our agencies and netwatks collaborate across
internally developed technology platforms. Annalect, our proprietary data and analytics platform, serves as the strategic resource for
all of our agencies and networks to share when developing client service strategies across our virtual networks. Qmni, our
people-based precision marketing and insights placform, identifies and defines personalized consumer experiences at scale across
creative, media and CRM, as well as other disciplines.

Driven by our clients’ continuous demand for more effective and efficient marketing activities, we strive to provide an
extensive range of advertising, marlering and corporate communications services through various client-centric networks thar are
organized to tmeet specific client objectives. Our service offerings include:

advertising investor relacions

branding marketing research

content marketing media planning and buying
corporate social respansibilicy consulting merchandising and poine of sale
ctisis communications mobile marketing

custom publishing multi-cultural marketing

data analytics non-profit markering

database management organizasional communications
digical/direct marketing package design

digital transformarion product placement
entertainment marketing prommotional marketing
expetiential marketing public affairs

field marketing pubiic telations

financial/corporarte business-to-business advertising retail marketing



graphic ares/digital imaging sales support

healthcare markering and communications search engine marketing
instore design shopper markering
interactive marketing social media marketing

sports and event marketing

Certain business wends had positvely impacred our business and industry. These trends include clients increasingly expanding the
focus of their brand strategies from natonal markers to pan-regional and global markets and integrating traditional and non-traditional
muarkeding channels, as well as utilizing new communications technologies and emerging digital placforms. As clients increase their
demands for marketing effectiveness and efficiency, they continue to consolidate their business within one or a small number of service
providers in the pursuir of a single engagement covering all consurmer touch points. We have structured our business around these ends.
We believe thar our key client matrix organization structure approach to collaboration and integration of our services and soludons
provides a competitive advantage to our business in the past and we expect this to continue over the medium and long term. Qur key
client matrix organization structure facilicates superior client management and allows for greater integracion of the services required by the
world’s fargest brands. Qur overarching strategy is to continue to use our virtual client networks to grow our business relationships with
our largest cliens by serving them across our networks, disciplines and geographies.

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted our business and results of operations. Efforts to mitigate the impact
of the pandemic, including government actions to restrict travel, limir public gatherings, shelter-in-place orders and mandarory
closures of businesses, resulted in many of our clients reducing or suspending their spending for our advertising, marketing and
corporate communication services. As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2020, revenue decreased 11.9%, compared o
2019, primarily due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. We anticipate that the negative impact from the pandemic on our
revenue will concinue chrough the first quarter of 2021 as compared to the prior year period. However, we expect organic revenue
growth for the first half of 2021. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our revenue has been, and may continue to be,
material, depending on several factors, including the potential for prolonged or additional governmental actions te mitigate the
effects of the pandemic. It is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic will accelerate certain trends that began pre-pandemic,
particularly those relating to online commerce, brand building and how we deploy our personnel. We expecr that some of these
trends will benefit our agencies and provide revenue growth opportunities, as well as increasing flexibility with respect to our use of
physical locations and our cost structure, but some trends may negatively affect us including potential disruption by new
participants and rechnologies (see Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations,” or MD&A, of this report}.

We continually evaluate our pordolio of businesses to identify areas for investment and acquisition opportunities, as well as to
identify non-strategic or underperforming businesses for disposition. For information abourt our acquisitions and dispositions, see
MD®&A - Acquisitions and Goodwill and Notes 5 and 13, respectively, to the consolidated financial staternents. None of our
acquisitions or dispositions, individually or in the aggregate, was material to our results of operations or financial pesition in the
three years ended December 31, 2020.

The various components of our business, including revenue by discipline and geographic area, and material facrors thar
affecred us in 2020 are discussed in the MD8&A.

Our Clients

Qur clients operate in virtually every sector of the global economy. In many cases, multiple agencies or networks serve
different brands, product groups or both within the same client. For example, in 2020 our largest client represented 3.4% of
revenue and was served by more than 110 of our agencies. Qur 100 largest clients, many of which represent the largest global
marketers, represenced approximately 54% of revenue and were each served, on average, by more than 50 of our agencies.

Government Regulations

We are subject to various local, state and federal laws and regulations in the countries in which we conduct business.
Compliance with these laws and regulations in the normal course of business did not have a material effect on our business, results
of operations or financial pesition. Additional informartion regarding the impact of government regulations on our business is
included in Item A, Risk Factors under the heading Regulatory Risks.

Human Capital Resources

Our employees are our most important assets. We believe a cridcal component o our success depends on the ability to attrace,
develop and retain key personnel. The skill sews of our workforce across our agencies and within each discipline are similar.
Commoen to allis che abiliry to understand a client’s brand or product and its selling proposition and to develop a unique message



o communicarte the value of the brand or product ro the cliends targer audience, whether through traditional channels or emerging
digital platforms. Recognizing the importance of this core competency, we support and develop our employees through training
and development programs that build and strengthen employees’ leadership and professional skills.

Human capital management strategies are developed collectively by senior management, including the management teams of
the Company's neworks and practice arcas, and are overseen by the Company’s Board of Directors. We are commirtted to efforts
that ensure that the workplace is equitable, ethical, fosters an inclusive work environment across our global workforce and respects
human rights. Qur human capital management priorities include, among other things, providing comperitive wages and benefirs,
succession planning, promoting diversity and inclusion and adopting codes of conduct and business echics to be implemented
throughout the Company.

At Decemnber 31, 2020, we employed approximately 64,100 people worldwide. The United Stares, our largest employee base,
employed abour 20,800 people. None of our regular employees in the United States is represented by a labor union. The
approximate number of employees in our principal geographic regions were 27,100 in the Americas, 25,800 in Europe, Middle
East and Africa, or EMEA, and 11,200 in Asia Pacific. Cerrain employees in a few countries outside of the United States, primarily
in Europe, are represented by work councils. See the MD&cA for a discussion of the effect of salary and related costs on our results
of operations.

Information About Our Executive Officers

Ar February 11, 2021, our executive officers were:

Name Dosition Age
John D Wren oo Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Otficer 68
Philip J. Angelastro ......coooevne Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 56
Michael J. O Brien ... ..o s Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 59
Andrew L, Castellaneta .. ooveorrnniei e e Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer 62
Peter L. Swiecicki ...... ..o s Senior Vice President, Finance and Controller 62
Rochelle M. Tarfowe ... ..o i erre s Senior Vice President and Treasurer 50
Jonmathan B. Nelson .....covveiiir i i CEQ, Omnicom Digital 33

Each executive officer has held their present position for at least five years, except Mr. Wren was named Chairman of the
Board and Chief Execurive Officer in May 2018 and previously served as President and Chief Execucive Officer from 1997 to May
2018; and Ms. Tarlowe was named Senior Vice President and Treasurer in May 2019 and previously served as Senior Vice President
and Treasurer of Avis Budget Group from 2007 until April 2019. Additional information about our directors and executive officers
will appear in our definitive proxy statemenc, which is expected to be filed with the Unired Scates Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, by March 25, 2021.

Available In tion

We file annual, quartcrly and current reports and any amendments to those reports, proxy statements and other information
with the SEC. Documents we file with the SEC are available free of charge on our website at hetp://investor.omnicomgroup.com,
as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is filed wich the SEC. The information included on or available through our
website is not part of this or any other report we file with the SEC. Any document that we file with the SEC is available on the
SEC’s website at www.sec.gov.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Economic Risks

The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely impacted our business, results of operations and financial pesition and could
adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial position in the future.

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic negarively impacted our business, resules of operations and financial position. Most of our
clients’ businesses were negatively affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. As long as the COVID-19 pandemic remains a threar,
global econemic conditians will continue to be volatile and such uncertainty cuts across all clients, industries and geographies.
Demand for our services ¢can be expected to continue to be adversely affected as marketers reduce expenditures in the shore term
due te the uncertain impact of the pandemic or the global economy. The extent of the impace of the COVID-19 pandemic on our
business will depend on numerous factors that we are not able to accurately predict, including the duration and scope of the
panderic, government actions to mitigare the effeces of the pandemic, and the intermediate and long-term impact of the pandemic
on marketers’ spending plans.



Adverse economic conditions, a reduction in client spending, a deterioration in the credit markets or a delay in client
payments could have a material effect on our business, results of operations and financial position.

Economic conditions have a direct impact en our business, results of operations and financial position. Adverse global or
regional economic conditions, including those caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, pose a risk thar clients may reduce, postpone
ar cancel spending on advertising, marketing and corporate communications projects. Such actions would reduce the demand for
our services and could result in a reduction in our revenue, which would adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial position. A contraction in the availability of credit may make it more difficult for us 1o meet our working capital
requirements. In addition, a disruption in the credit markets could adversely affect our clients and could cause them to delay
payment for our services or take other actions that would negatively affect our working capital. In such circumstances, we may need
to obrain additional financing to fund our day-to-day working capiral requirements, which may not be available on favorable terms,
or at all. Even if we take action te respond to adverse economic conditions, reductions in revenue and disruptions in the credit
markets by aligning our cest structure and more efficiently managing our working capital, such actions may not be effective.

In an economic downturn, the visk of a material loss related to media purchases and production costs incurred on bebalf of our
clients could significantly increase, and methods for managing or mitigating such risk may be less available or unavailable.

In the normal course of business, our agencies enter into contractual commitments with media providers and production companies
on behalf of our clients ar levels that can substantially exceed the revenue from our services. These commitments are included in accounts
payable when the services ate delivered by the media providers or production companies, If permitted by local law and the client
agreement, many of our agencies purchase media and production services for our clients as an agent for a disclosed principal. In addition,
while operating pracrices vary by country, media type and media vendor, in the United Stares and certain foreign markets, many of our
agencies’ contracts with media and production providers specify that our agencies are not liable to the media and production providers
under the theory of sequendal liability until and to the extent we have been paid by our clienc for dhe media or producticn services.

Where purchases of media and production services are made by our agencies as a principal or are not subject to the theory of
sequential liability; the risk of a material loss as a result of paymenct default by our clients could increase significantly and such a loss could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and firancial posidon.

In additien, our methods of managing the risk of payment default, including obtaining eredit insurance, requiring payment in
advance, mirigating the potential loss in the marketplace or negotiating with media providers, may be less available or unavailable during a
severe economic downturm,

Business and Operational Risks

Clients periodically review and change their advertising, marketing and corporvate communications requirements and
relationships. [f we are unable to remain competitive or retain key clients, our business, results of aperations and financial

position may be adversely affected.

We operate in a highly competitive industy. Key competitive considerations for retaining existing clients and winning new clients
include our ability to develop solutions that meet client needs in a rapidly changing environment, the quality and effectiveness of our
services and our ability o serve clients efficiently, particularly large multinational clients, on a broad geographic basis. While many of our
client reladonships are long-standing, from time to time clients put their advertising, marketing and corporate communications business
up for competitive review. We have won and lost accounts as a result of these reviews. To the extent that we are nor able to remain
competitive or retain key clients, our revenue may be adversely affected, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results

of operations and financial position.

Acquiring new clients and retaining existing clients depends on our ability to avoid and manage conflicts of interest
arising from other client relationships, retaining key personnel and maintaining a highly skilled workforce.

Our ability to acquire new clients and retain existing clients may, in some cases, be limited by clients’ perceptions of, or policies
concerning, conflicts of interest arising from other clienc relationships. If we are unable to maintain muldple agencies to manage multiple
cliert relationships and avoid potential conflicts of interests, our business, results of opetations and financial position may be
adversely affected.

As a service business, our ability to attract and retain key personnel is an important aspect of our competitiveness. If we are

unable to attrace and retain key personnel, our ability to provide our services in the manner clients have come ro expect may be
adversely affected, which could harm our reputation and result ir a loss of clients, which could have a material adverse effect on our

business, results of operations and financial position.



The loss of several of our largest clients could have a material adverse effecr on our business, results of operations and
Sfmancial position,
[n 2020, our 100 largest clients represented approximately 54% of our revenue. Clients generally are able to reduce or cancel
current or future spending on advertising, marketing and corporate comnmunications projects at any time on short notice for any
reason. A significant reduction in spending on our services by our largest clients, or the foss of several of our largest clients, if not

replaced by new clients or an increase in business from existing clients, would adversely affect our revenue and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial position.

We rely extensively on information technology systems, and cybersecurity incidenss could adversely affect us.

We rely on informartion technology systems and infrastructure to process, store and transmic data, summarize results, manage
our business and maintain client advertising and marketng information. Increased cybersecurity threats and attacks, which are
constantly evolving, pose a risk to our systems and networks. For example, in February 2021, we experienced a cybersecurity
incident that resulted in the disruption of certain of our information technology systems ar one of our networks. Based on the
information currently known and our investigation to date, we do not believe the incident will have 2 material impact on our
business, operations or financial results. However, cybersecurity threats and attacks in the future could be material. Security
breaches, improper use of our systems and unauthorized access to our data and information by employees and others may pose a
risk that sensitive data may be exposed to unauthorized persons or to the public. We alse have access to sensitive or petsonal data or
information that is subject to privacy laws and regulations. Our systems and processes to protect againse, detect, prevent, respend to
and mirtigate cybersecurity incidents and our organizational craining for employees to develop an understanding of cybersecurity
risks and threats may be unable to prevent marerial security breaches, theft, modification or loss of data, employee malfeasance and
additional known and unknown threats. Such events could adversely affect our business and repuration. We also use third-party
service providers, incleding cloud providers, to store, transmir and process data. These chird-party service providers could also be
subject to cybersecurity incidents thar could adversely affect us.

[n addition, in 2020 and continuing into 2021, the overwhelming majority of our workforce temporarily transitioned 1o
working from home during the COVID-19 pandemic. The increase in the number of our employees working from home may
increase certain business and procedural control risks, including increased risk of cybersecuricy incidents and exposure of sensitive
business and client advertising and markering informarion as welt as personal data or information.

Risks Related to International Operations

Currency exchange rate fluctuations have impacted, and in the future could impact our business, results of aperations and
Jinancial position.

In 2020, our international eperations represernted approximarely 45% of our revenue. We operate in all major international
markets including the Euro Zone, the United Kingdom, or the U.K., Australia, Brazil, Canada, China and Japan. QOur agencies
transact business in more than 50 different currencies. Substantially al! of our foreign operations tansact business in their focal
currency, and accordingly their financial statements are translated into U.S. Dollars. As a result, both adverse and beneficial
fluctuations in forcign exchange rates impact our business, results of operations and financial posidon. In addition, funds
transferred to the Unired States can be adversely or beneficially impacted by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

As a global business we face certain risks of doing business internationally, and we are exposed to risks from operating in
bigh-growth markets and developing countries, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial position.

The operational and financial performance of our international businesses are affected by global and regional economic
conditions, competition for new business and staff, currency exchange rate fluctuarions, political conditions, diffeting regulatory
environments and other risks associated with extensive international operations. In addition, we conduct business in numerous
high-growth markers and developing countries that tend to have longer billing collection cycles, currency repatriation restrictions
and commercial laws thar can be undeveloped, vague, inconsistently enforced, retroactively applied or frequently changed. The risks
associated with our international operations could have a marerial adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
pesition. Additionally, our operations are subject to the United States Foreign Corrupt Pracrices Act and other anti-corruption and
anti-bribery laws and regulations. These laws and regulations are complex and stringent, and any vielation could have an adverse
effect on our business and repucation. For financial information by geographic region, see Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

We have substantial operations in the U.K. and the Euro Zone. On December 31, 2020, the U.K. complered its separation
from the European Union, or E.U., (commonly referred to as “Brexit”) and entered inco an agreement, or Brexit Agreement, with
the E.U. that defines the terms of their relationship, covering, among other things, trade and tariffs, services and travel. The
uncertainties refated to the impact of the Brexit Agreement have cross-border operational, financial and tax implications, among
others, and any economic volatility that may.arise in the UK., the E.U. or elsewhere may adversely affect our business.



Risks Related to Acquisitions
We may be unsuccessful in evaluating material risks involved in completed and future acquisitions.

We regularly evaluate porential acquisitions of businesses thart are complementary to our businesses and client needs. As part
of the process, we conduct business, legal and financial due diligence to identify and evaluate material risks involved in any
particular transaction. Despite our efforts, we may be unsuccessful in ascertaining or evaluaring all such risks. As a result, the
intended advantages of any given acquisition may not be realized. If we fail to identify certain material risks from one or more
acquisitions, our business, results of operations and financial position could be adversely affected.

Our goodwill is an intangible asset that may become impaired, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial position.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or U.S. GAAP or GAAP, we have recorded a
significant amount of goodwill related to our acquisicions; a substantial portion of which represents the intangible specialized
know-how of the acquired workforce. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, we review the carrying value
of goodwill for impairment annually at June 30 and whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable. The estimates and assumptions about future results of operations and cash flows made in connection with the
impairment testing could differ from future actual resules of operations and cash flows. While we have concluded, for each year
presented in the financial stacements included in this report, that our goodwill is not impaired, future events could cause us to
conclude thar the intangible asset values associated with a given operation may become impaired. Any resulting non-cash
impairment charge could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operarions and financial position,

Regulatory Risks

Government regulation and consumer advacates may limit the scope and content of our services, which could affect our
ability vo meet our clients’ needs, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
Jinancial position.

Governmenr agencies and consumer groups directly or indirectly affect or attempt w affect the scope, content and manner of
presentation of advertising, marketing and corporate communications services, through regulation or other governmental actior,
which could affect our ability to meer our clients’ needs. Such regulation may seek, among other things, to limirt the rax
deductibility of advertising expenditures by certain industries or for certain products and services. In addition, there has been a
tendency on the part of businesses to resort to the judicial system to challenge advertising practices and claims, which could cause
our clients affected by such actions ro reduce their spending on our services. Any regularory or judicial action that affects our ability
to meet our clients’ needs ot reduces client spending on our services could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial position.

Furcher, laws and tegulations related to user privacy, use of personal information and Interner tracking technologies have been
proposed or enacted in the United States and a number of international markets. These laws and regulations could affect the
acceptance of new communications rechnologies and the use of current communications technologies as advertising media. These
actions could affect our business and reduce demand for cerrain of our services, which could have a material adverse effect on our

business, resules of operations and financial position.
We could be affected by future laws or regulations enacted in response to climate change concerns and ather actions.

Our businesses could be indirectly affected by increased prices for goods or services provided to us by companies that are
directly affected by laws and regulations aimed at mitigating the impact of climate change. Specifically, these companies may seek to
pass their increased costs through o their customers. Further, if our clients are impacted by such laws or requirements, either
directly or indirectly, their spending for advertising and marketing services may decline, which could adversely impact our business,
results of operations and financial position. Additionally, to comply with potential furure changes in environmental laws and
regulations, we may need to incur additional costs; therefore, at this time, we cannot estimate what impact such regulations may
have on our business, results of operations and financial position.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

We conduct business and maintain offices throughour the world. The facility requirements of our businesses are similar across
geographic regions and disciplines. Substantially all our office space is leased under operating leases with varying expiration dates.
Lease obligations of our foreign operations are generally denominated in their local currency. We believe chat our facilities are
adequate for our current operations and are well maintained. Qur principal corporate offices are located at 280 Park Avenue,



New York, New York; 1055 Washington Boulevard, Stamford, Connecticut and 525 Okeechobee Boulevard, West Palm Beach,
Florida. We also mainrain executive offices in Londen, England; Shanghai, China and Singapore,

Notes 2 and 16 to the consolidared financial statements provide a description of our lease expense, which comprises a
significant component of our occupancy and other costs, and our lease commitments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various legal proceedings. We do not expect that these proceedings will
have a macerial adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.
PART 1I
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Steckholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Qur common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol OMC. As of February 11, 2021,
there were 1,930 registered holders of our common stock.

Commoen stock repurchases during the three months ended December 31, 2020 were:

Total Number of

Shares Purchased  Maximum Number of

as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet
Total Number of  Average Price Announced Plans Be Purchased Under

Period Shares Purchased  Paid Per Share or Programs the Plans or Programs
Ocrober 1 - Ocrober 31,2020 ............ ..ol 51,487 $50.22 — —
November 1 - November 30,2020 ..................... — —_— — —
December 1 - December 31,2020 .................... 5,316 64.34 — —
56,803 $51.54 — —_

During the three months ended December 31, 2020, we withheld 56,803 shares from employees to satisfy estimated starutory
income tax obligations related to the vesting of restricted stock awards. We did not purchase any shares of our common stock in the
open market. The value of the common stock withheld was based on the closing price of our common stock on the applicable
vesting or exercise date. There were no unregistered sales of equiry securities during the three months ended December 31, 2020.

For information on securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans, see Item 12, “Security Ownership
of Cerrain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockhoelder Marters,” which relevanc information will be included in
our definitive proxy statement, which is expected 1o be filed with the SEC by March 25, 2021.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on our Business

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted our business and results of operations. Efforts to midgare the impact of the
pandermic, including government actions o testrict travel, limit public gatherings, shelter-in-place ordets and mandatory closures of
businesses, resulted in many of our clients reducing or suspending their spending for our advertising, marketing and corporate
communication services. As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2020, revenue decreased $1,782.6 million, or 11.9%, compared to
2019, primarily due to the impacr of the COVID-19 pandemic. We andcipate that the negative impact from the pandemic on our
revenue will continue through the first quarter of 2021 as compared to the prior year period. However, we expect organic revenue growth
for the first half of 2021. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic ot our revenue has been, and may continue to be, material, depending
on several factors, including the potential for prolonged or addidenal governmental actions to mitigate the effects of the pandemic. [cis
possible cthat the COVID-19 pandemic will accelerace certin trends that began pre-pandemic, pardcularly those relating ro online
commerce, brand building and how we deploy our personnel. We expect that some of these wrends will benefit our agencies and provide
revenue growth opportunities, as well as increasing flexibility with respect to our use of physical locations and our cost structure, but some
trends may negatvely affect us including potential disruption by new participants and technologies.

In response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in the second quarter of 2020, we took actions to align our cost structure
and reduce our workforce and facility requirements and continued the review of businesses for disposal and assets for impairment. As a
resule, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $277.9 million, which is comprised of incremental severance of $150.0 million, real estace



operating lease right-of-use, or RO1J, asser and orher asset impairment charges of $55.8 million, other exit costs of $47.0 million and
dispositions and other charges of $25.1 million {see Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements). These actions reduced headcount by
over 6,000 and reduced the related facility requirements, which should result in significant reductions in future operatng expenses.

In addidion, during 2020, we reduced salary and service costs by $162.6 million related to reimbursements and ax credits under
goverrunent programs in several countries, including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, or the CARES Act, in the
United States, the Kurzarbeit program in Germany, and other government reimbursement programs in the U.K., France, Canada and
other jurisdictions (see Note | to the consolidated financial stacements). Further, in che fourth quarter of 2020, we recorded asset
impairment charges of $35.8 million associated with underperforming assets, which is included in salary and service costs.

The COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted most of our clients’ businesses. As a resulr, clients have cut costs, including
postponing or reducing marketing communication expenditures. While certain industries such as healthcare and pharmaceuricals,
technology and telecommunications, financial servires and consumer products have been less affected, as long as the COVID-19
pandemic remains a threat, global economic conditions contnue to be volatile and such uncertainty cuts across all clients, industries and
geographies. Overall, while we have a diversified portfolio of service offerings, clients and geographies, demand for our setvices can be
expected to continue to be adversely affected as marketers reduce expenditures in the short term due to the uncertain impact of the
pandemic on the global econamy. We expecr global economic performance and our performance to vary by geography until the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy moderates.

Although we have experienced a decrease in our cash flow from operaring activities, we took namerous proactive steps to strengthen
our liquidity and financial position that are intended to mitigate the potental impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our liquidicy. In
February 2020, we issued $600 million 2.45% Senior Notes due April 30, 2030, or the 2.45% Notes. In March 2020, the net proceeds
from the issuance of the 2.45% Notes were used to redeem the remaining $600 million principal amount of our 4.45% Senior Notes due
August 15, 2020, or the 2020 Notes. As a result, we have no notes maruring undl May 2022. [n April 2020, we issued $600 million of
4.20% Senior Notes due June 1, 2030, or the 4.20% Notes, and we entered into a new $400 million 364 day revolving credit facilicy, or
the 364 Day Credit Facility. The 364 Day Credic Facility is in addition to our exissing $2.5 billion muld-currency revolving credi facility,
or Credit Facility, which we extended to marure in February 2025. In additien, in March 2020, we suspended our share repurchase activity.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2020

We are a strategic holding company providing advertising, marketing and corporate communications services to clients
through our branded networks and agencies around the world. On a global, pan-regional and local basis, our networks and agencies
provide a comprehensive range of services in the following fundamental disciplines: advertising, CRM, which includes CRM
Censumer Experience and CRM Execution & Support, public refations and healthcare. Our business model was built and
continues to evolve around our clients. While our networks and agencies operate under different names and frame their ideas in
different disciplines, we arganize our services around our clients. Our fundamental business principle is chat our clients’ specific
marketing requirements are the cencral focus of how we structure our service offerings and allocate our resources. This client-centric
business model requires that multiple agencies within Omnicom collaborate in formal and informal virtual client nerworks adlizing
our key client marrix organization structure. This coltaboration allows us to cut across our internal organizational structures to
execute our clients’ marketing requirements in a consistent and comprehensive manner. We use our client-cencric approach to grow
aur business by expanding our service offerings ro existing clients, moving into new markets and obraining new cliencs. [n additien,
we pursue selective acquisitions of complementary companies with strong entrepreneurial management teams that typically
currently serve or could serve our existing clients.

As a leading global advertising, marketing and corporate communications company, we operate in all major markets and have
a large and diverse client base, In 2020, our largest client represented 3.4% of revenue and our 100 largest cliencs, which represent
many of the world’s major markerers, represented approximarely $4% of revenue. Qur clients operate in virtually every sector of the
global economy with no one industry representing more than 16% of our revenue in 2020. Although our revenue is generally
balanced between the United Staces and international markets and we have a large and diverse client base, we are not immune to

general economic downturns,

Global economic conditions have a direct impact on our business and financial performance. Adverse global or regional
economic conditens, such as those currently arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, pose a risk that our clients may reduce,
postpone or cancel spending on advertising, marketing and corporate communications services, which would reduce the demand
for our services. Revenue is typically lower in the firsc and third quarters and higher in the second and fourth quarters, reflecting
client spending patterns during the year and additional project work that usually occurs in the fourth quarter. As a result of the
impacs related 1o the COVID-19 pandemic, we experienced a significant decline in our year-over-year organic revenue growth in
the second, third and fourth quarters of 2020, which will likely continue at least through the first half of 2021. We anticipate that
the negative impact from the pandemic on our revenue will continue through the first quarter of 2021 as compared to the prior
year period. However, we expect organic revenue growth for the first haif of 2021.



In 2020, revenue decreased $1,782.6 million, or 11.9%, compared to 2019. Changes in foreign exchange rates reduced
revenue $60.9 million, or 0.4%, acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue, reduced revenue $56.7 million, or 0.4%, reflecting
the disposition of certain non-strategic businesses, and organic growth reduced revenue $1,665.0 million, or 11.1%.

Cerrain global events targeted by major marketers for advertising expendirures, such as the FIFA World Cup and the
Olympics, and certain national events, such as the U.S. election process, may affect our revenue period-over-period in certain
businesses. Typically, these events do not have a significant impact on our revenue in any period.

Beginning in March 2020 and continuing through the fourth quarter of 2020, our business experienced the effects from
reductions in client spending due co the impact related to the COVID-19 pandemic. The spending reductions impacted all our
businesses and markets. The most significantly impacted businesses were our adverdsing discipline, CRM Consumer Experience
discipline, especially in our event marketing businesses, and CRM Execution & Support discipline, primarily in our field marketing
and merchandising businesses. In North America, we experienced a decline in arganic revenue ateributable to the COVID-19
pandemic in all our disciplines, except healtheare. In Europe and the Middle East and Africa, almost all businesses and regions
experienced a dedline in organic revenue resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, which was marginally offset by an increase
primarily from the strengthening of the British Pound and Euro against the U.S. Dollar. [n addition, the ecenomic and political
conditions in the U.K. and the E.U. resulting from the implementation of the Brexit Agreement remain uncertain and could
negatively impact our businesses in the U.K. and the E.U. In Latin America, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic compounded
by the continuing unstable economic and political conditions in Brazil resuited in negative organic growth in Brazil and
throughout the region. In addirion, the weakening of foretgn currency exchange rates againse the U.S. Dollar in all countries
further contributed 1o the reduction in revenue in the region. In Asia-Pacific, almosr all our businesses in the region experienced
negative organic growth as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the weakening of most currencies against the U.S. Dollar had
a marginal negative impact on revenue. The economic and fiscal issues, including the impacr related to the COVID-19 pandemic,
facing the countries we operace in can be expected to continue to cause economic uncertainty and velatility; however, the impact
on our business varies by country. We monitor economic conditions closely, as well as client revenue levels and other factors. In
response to reductions in our revenue thae are expected to continue at least through the first half of 2021, beginning in the second
quarter of 2020, we rook actions to align our cost structure with changes in client demand and manage our working capital.
However, there can be no assurance whether, ot to what extent, our efforts to mitigate any impact of the current and furure adverse
economic conditions, reductions in client revenue, changes in client creditworthiness and other developments will be effective or
that additional actions will nor be necessary.

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, certain business trends generally had a positive impact on our business and industry. These
trends include cliencs increasingly expanding the focus of their brand strategies from national markets to pan-regional and global
markets and integrating traditional and non-traditional marketing channels, as well as utilizing new communications technologies
and emerging digital platforms. As clients increase their demands for marketing effectiveness and efficiency, they have made it a
practice to cansolidate their business within one service provider in the pursuit of a single engagement covering alt consumer touch
points. We have structured our business around dhese trends. While the current economic environmens caused many clienes to
reduce spending for our services, certain trends such as increased spending on digiral marketing platforms, and our key client
matrix organization structure approach to collaboration and integration of our services and solutions provide a comperitive
advancage to our business. We expect this advantage to continue over the medium and long term,

Drriven by our clients’ continueus demand for more effective and efficient marketing acrivities, we strive ro provide an
extensive range of advertising, marketing and corporate communications services through various client-centric networls that are
organized to meex specific client objectives. These services include, among others, advertising, brand consulting, content marketing,
corporate social responsibility consulting, crisis communications, custom publishing, data analytics, database management, digital/
direct marketing, digital ransformation, entertaintuent marketing, experiential marketing, field marketing, financial/corporate
business-to-business advertising, graphic arrs/digital imaging, healthcare marketing and communications, in-store design,
interactive marketing, investor relations, marketing research, media planning and buying, merchandising and point of sale, mobile
marketing, multi-cultural markering, non-profit marketing, organizational communicarions, package design, product placement,
promotional marketing, public affairs, public relations, retail marketing, sales support, search engine marketing, shopper marketing,
social media marketing and sports and event marketing.

We continually evaluate our portfolio of businesses to identify areas for investment and acquisition opporttunities, as well as to
identify non-strategic or underperforming businesses for disposition. In the first and second quarters of 2019, we disposed of
certain businesses, primarily in our CRM Execution & Support discipline.



Given our size and breadth, we manage our business by monitoring several financial indicators. The key indicators that we
focus on are revenue and operating expenses. We analyze revenue growth by reviewing the components and mix of the growth,
including growth by principal regional market and marketing discipline, the impact from foreign currency exchange rate changes,
growth from acquisitions, net of disposicions, and growth from our largest clients. Operating expenses are comprised of cost of
services, selling, general and administrative expenses, or SG&A, and depreciation and amortization.

In 2020, our revenue decreased 11.9% compared to 2019. Changes in foreign exchange rates reduced revenue 0.4%,
acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue, reduced revenue 0.4%, and organic growth decreased revenue 11.1% as all our
markets were negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The change in revenue across our principal regional markets were:
North America decreased 10.6%, Europe decreased 12.2%, Asia-Pacific decreased 8.8% and Latin America decreased 31.7%. The
change in revenue in 2020, compared to 2019, in our fundamental disciplines was: Advertising decreased 13.1%, CRM Consumer
Experience decreased 15.6%, CRM Execution & Support decreased 16.7%, Public Relations decreased 5.6% and Healthcare
increased 3.4%.

We measure cost of services in two distinct categories: salary and service costs and occupancy and other costs. As a service
business, salary and service costs make up the significant portion of our operaring expenses and substantially all these costs comprise
the essential components directly linked to the delivery of our services. Salary and service costs include employee compensation and
benefits, freelance labor and chird-party service costs, which include third-party supplier costs and client-related travel costs.
Occupancy and other costs consist of the indirect costs related to the delivery of our services, including office rent and other
occupancy costs, equipment tent, technology costs, general office expenses and other expenses.

SGB&A expenses, which decreased year-over-year, primarily consist of third-party marketing costs, professional fees and
compensation and benefits and occupancy and ocher costs of our corporate and executive offices, which includes group-wide
finance and accounting, treasury, legal and governance, hurman resource oversight and similar costs.

[n 2020, salary and service costs, which tend to fluctuate with changes in revenue, decreased $1,399.4 million, or 12.8%,
compared to 2019. Salary and related service costs in 2020 decreased $644.3 million, or 9.3%, year-over-year, primarily as a result
of the severance and furlough actions we wok in the second quarter of 2020. Also, during 2020, we reduced salary and service costs
by $162.6 million refated to reimbursernents and tax credits under government programs in several countries (see Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements). Third-party service costs, which include expenses incurred with chird-party vendors primarily
when we act as a principal when performing services for our clients, decreased $755.1 million, or 18.5%, year-over-year reflecting
the decrease in revenue and the impact of actions we took to align our cost structure. Occupancy and other costs, which are less
directly linked to changes in revenue than salary and service costs, decreased $83.3 million, or 6.8%, in 2020 as compared te 2019.
Operating profit decreased $523.5 million to $1,598.8 million. Operating margin decreased to 12.1% from 14.2%, and EBITA
margin decreased to 12.8% from 14.8% year-over-year. In 2020, operating profic, operating margin and EBITA margin included a
net decrease aggregating $171.1 million related to the COVID-19 repositioning costs recorded in the second quarter and asset
impairment charges recorded in the fourth quarter, partially offset by an increase related to reimbursements and rax credits under
government programs in several countries {see Note 1 1o the consolidated financial statements).

In 2020, net interest expense increased $5.5 million year-over-year to $189.5 million. Interest expense on debt decreased
$27.6 million o $199.6 million, primarily reflecting a reduction in interest expense from our refinancing activity at lower interest
rates in the second half of 2019 and the first quarter of 2020, partially offset by a loss of $7.7 million on the carly redemption of
the rematning $600 million principal amount of the 2020 Notes in the first quarter of 2020 and the interest expense from the
issuance of the 4.20% Notes in April 2020 (see Note 7 to the consolidated financial sratements). Interest income in 2020 decreased
$28.0 million year-over-year to $32.3 million primarily due to lower rates.

Our effective tax rate for 2020 increased year-over-year to 27.1% from 26.0%. The non-deductibility in certain jurisdictions
of a porrion of the COVID-19 repositioning costs recorded in the second quarter of 2020 had the effect of increasing our effective
tax rate for 2020. This increase was substantially offset by a lower effective tax rate on our foreign earnings resulting from a change
in legislation. In 2019, income tax expense was reduced by $10.8 million primarily from the net favorable settlements of uncertain
tax positions in certain jurisdictions. After considering these items, our effective rate for 2020 would have approximated the rate
for 2019.

Net income - Omnicom Group Inc. in 2020 decreased $393.7 million to $945.4 million from $1,339.1 million in 2019. The
year-over-year decrease is due to the factors described above. Diluted net income per share - Omnicom Group Inc. decreased to
$4.37 in 2020, compared to $6.06 in 2019, due to the factors described above, as well as the impact of the reduction in our
weighted average common shares outstanding resulting from repurchases of our common stock through March 2020, net of shares
issued for restricted stock awards, stock option exercises and the employee stock purchase plan during the year. As discussed above
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and in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, our results of operations for 2020 included COVID-19 repositioning costs
and asset impairment charges, which were partially offset by an increase atuibutable to reimbursements and rax credits under
government programs in several countries. The after-tax impact of these items on net income - Omnicom Group Inc. was

$146.8 million.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following summary of our critical accounting policies provides a better understanding of our financial statements and the
related discussion in chis MD8cA. We believe that the following policies may involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity
in their application than most of our accounting policies and represent the critical accounting policies used in the preparation of
our financial statements. Readers are encouraged to consider this summary together with our financial statements and the related
notes, including Note 2, for a more complete understanding of the critical accounting policies discussed below:

Estimates

We prepare our financial stacements in conformiry with U.S. GAAP and are required to make estimares and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We use a fair value approach in
testing goodwill for impairment and when evaluating our equity mechod investments to deterrnine if an other-than-temporary
impairment has occurred. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Acquisitions and Goodwill

The evaluation of potential acquisitions is based on various factors, including specialized know-how, repurtation, geographic
coverage, competitive position and service offerings of the rarget businesses, as well as our experience and judgment.

OQur acquisition strategy is focused on acquiring the expertise of an assembled workforce in order to continue to build upon
the core capabilities of our various strategic business platforms and agency brands through the expansion of their geographic reach
or their service capabilities to better serve our clients. Additional key factors we consider include the competitive position and
specialized know-how of the acquisition targets. Accordingly, as is typical in most service businesses, a substantial portion of the
assets we acquire are intangible assets primarily consisting of the know-how of the persennel, which is treated as part of goodwill
and is not required to be valued separately under U.5. GAAR For each acquisition, we undertake a detailed review to identify other
intangible assets that are required to be valued separacely. A significant portion of the identifiable intangible assets acquired is
derived from customer refationships, including the related customer contracts, as well as trade names. In valuing these identified
intangible assets, we typically use an income approach and consider comparable market participant measurements.

We evaluare goodwill for impairment at least annually at the end of the second quarrer of each fiscal year and whenever events
or circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Under FASB ASC Topic 350, Insangibles - Goodwilf and Other,
we have the option of either assessing qualitative factors to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that the carrying value of
our reporting units exceeds their respective fair value or proceeding directly 1o the goodwill impairment test. We performed the
annual impairment test and compared the fair vatue of each of our reporting unics w its respective carrying value, including
goodwill. We identified our regional reporting units as components of our operating segrnents, which are our five global agency
networks. The regional reporting units of each agency network are responsible for the agencies in their region. They report to the
segment managers and facilitare the administrative and logistical requirements of our key client matrix organization structure for
delivering services to clients in their regions. We have concluded that for each of our operating segments, their regional reporting
units have similar economic characteristics and should be aggregated for purposes of testing goodwill for impairmenc at the
operating segment level. Our conclusion was based on a detailed analysis of the aggregation criteria set forth in FASB ASC Topic
280, Segment Reporting, and in FASB ASC Topic 350. Consistent with our fundamental business strategy, the agencies wichin our
regional reporting units serve similar clients in similar industries, and in many cases the same clients. In addition, the agencies
within our regional reporting units have similar economic characteristics. The main economic components of each agency are
employee compensation and related costs and direct service costs and occupancy and other cests, which include rent and eccupancy
costs, technology costs that are generally limited to personal computers, servers and off-the-shelf software and other overhead
expenses. Finally, the expected benefits of our acquisitions are rypically shared by multiple agencies in various regions as they work
together 1o integrate the acquired agency into our virtual client nerwork strategy.

Goodwill bmpairment Review - Estimates and Assumptions

We use che following valuarion methodologies to determine the fair value of our reporting units: (1) the income approach,
which udilizes discounted expected future cash flows, (2) comparative market participant multiples for EBITDA (earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) and (3} when available, consideration of recent and similar acquisition transactions.
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In applying the income approach, we use estimares to derive the discounted expected cash flows (*DCE”) for each reporting
unit chat serves as the basis of our valuation. These estimates and assumptions include revenue growth and operating margin,
EBITDA, tax rates, capital expenditures, weighted average cost of capital and related discount rates and expected long-term cash
flow growth rates. All of these estimates and assumptions are affected by conditions specific to our businesses, economic conditions
related to the industry we operate in, as well as conditions in the global economy. The assurnptions that have the most significant
effect on our valuations derived using 2 DCF methodology are: (1) the expected long-term growth rate of our reporting units’ cash
flows and (2) the weighted average cost of capital (“WACC”) for each reporting unit.

At June 30, 2020 we adjusted our assumptions to reflect the economic conditions in light of the impact on our business
related to the COVID-19 pandemic, including downward adjustment to our revenue and earnings assumptions, reducing our
long-term growth rate and increasing the weighted average cost of capital, or WACC, for each reporting unit and limiting our
estimate of our equity value to reflect the decline in our share price that occurred during the first half of 2020. In addirion, the
assumptions reflected the expected cost reductions from our severance and real estate facility repositioning actions (see Notes 1 and

11 to the consclidated financial statements).

The assumprtions used for the long-term growth rate and WACC in our evaluations as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 were:

2020 2019
Long-Term Growth Rate ... ..o s 3% 4%
10.6% - 10.8% 10.1% - 10.6%

WACC ... e R

Long-term growth rate represents our estimate of the long-rerm growth rate for our industry and the markets of the global
economy we operate in, For the past ten years, the average historical revenue growth rate of our reporting units and the Average
Nominal GDB or NGDP, growth of the countries comprising the major markets that account for substantially all of our revenue
was approximately 4.2% and 4.3%, respectively. We considered this history when determining the long-term growth rates used in
our annual impairment test at June 30, 2020 and lowered it to reflect the porential future effects of the unprecedented COVID-19
pandemic on the global economy, which are not reflected in the 10-year historical analysis. We believe marketing expenditures over
the long term have a high correlation to NGDP Based on our historical performance, we also believe that our long-term growth
rate will exceed NGDP growth in the markets we operate in, which are similar across our reporting units. For our annual test as of
june 30, 2020, we used an estimated long-term growth rate of 3.0%.

When performing the annual impairment test as of June 30, 2020 and estimating the future cash flows of our reporting units,
we considered the current macroeconomic environment, as well as industry and market specific conditions at mid-year 2020. In the
first half of 2020, our revenue declined 11.7%, which excluded our net dispositien activity and the impact from changes in foreign
exchange rates. The COVID-19 pandemic significantly impacted the global economy. Government actions taken to mitigate the
impact of the pandemic negatively impacted many of our clients’ businesses, and in turn, clients have reduced their demand for our
services. In addition, the assumpuions reflected the expected cost reductions from our severance and real estate facility repositioning

actions {see Notes 1 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements).

The WACC is comprised of: (1) a risk-free rate of return, (2) a business risk index ascribed to us and to companies in our
industry comparable to our reporting unirs based on a marker derived variable that measures the volatility of the share price of
equity secutities relative to the volatility of the overall equity market, (3) an equity risk premium that is based on the rate of return
on equity of publicly traded companies with business characteristics comparable to our reporting units, and (4) a current after-tax
market rate of return on debt of companies with business characteristics similar to our reporting units, each weighced by the relative

market value percentages of our equity and debe.

Our five reporting units vary in size with respect to revenue and the amount of debr allocated to them. These differences drive
variations in fair value among our teporting units. In additien, these differences as well as differences in book value, including
goodwill, cause variations in the amount by which fair value exceeds book value among the reporting units. The reporting unit
goodwill balances and debt vary by reporting unit primarily because our three legacy agency networks were acquired at the
formation of Omnicom and were accounted for as a pooling of intetests that did not result in any additional debrt or goodwill being
recorded. The remaining two agency networks were buile through a combination of internal growth and acquisitions that were
accounted for using the acquisition methoed and as a result, they have a relatively higher amount of goodwill and debt.

Goodwill Impairment Review - Conclusion

Based on the results of our impairment test, we concluded that our goodwill at June 30, 2020 was not impaired, because the
fair value of each of our reporting units was in excess of its respective net book value. For our reporting units with negative book
value, we concluded that the fair value of their toral assets was in excess of book value. The minimum decline in fair value that one
of our reporting units would need to experience in order to fail the goodwill impairment test was approximately 20%.
Noewithstanding our belief that the assumptions we used for WACC and long-term growth rate in our impairment testing were
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reasonable, we performed a sensitivity analysis for each of our reporting units. The results of this sensitivity analysis on our

impairment test as of June 30, 2020 revealed thac if the WACC increased by 1% and/or the long-term growth rate decreased by

1%, the fair value of each of our reporting units would continue to be in excess of its respective net book value and would pass the

imnpairment test. i

We will continue to perform our impairment test each year at June 30th unless events or circumstances trigger the need for an
interim impairment test. There were no events through December 31, 2020 thar would change our impairment assessment. The
estimares used in our goodwill impairment test do not constitute forecasts or projections of future results of operations, but rather
are estimates and assumptions based on historical resulis and assessments of macreeconomic factors affecting our reporting units as
of the valuarion dare. We believe thac our estimartes and assumpdions are reasonable, but they are subject to change from period o
period. Actual results of operations and other factors will likely differ from the estimates used in our discounted cash flow
valuation, and it is possible that differences could be significant. A change in the estimares we use could result in a decline in the
estimated fair value of one or more of our reporting units from the amounss derived as of our latest valuation and could cause us to
fail our goodwill impairmenc test if the estimared fair value for the reporting unit is less than the carrying value of the net assets of
the reporting unit, including its goodwill. A large decline in estimated fair value of a reporting unic could result in a non-cash
impaitrment charge and may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Addirional information
abour acquisitions and goodwill appears in Notes 2, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial stacements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when a customer obuains control of promised goods or services {the performance obligation) in an
amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for these goods or services {the transaction price). We
measure revenue by estmating the transaction price based on the consideration specified in the client arrangement. Revenue is
recognized as the performance obligations are satisfied. Qur revenue is primarily derived from the planning and execution of
advertising communications and marketing services in the following fundamentcal disciplines: advertising, which includes creative .
advertising services and strategic media planning and buying services, customer relationship management or CRM, which includes
CRM Consumer Experience and CRM Execudon & Support, public relations and healthcare advertising. Our client contracts are
primarily fees for service on a rate per hour or per project basis. Revenue is recorded net of sales, use and value added taxes.

Performance Obligations. In substantially all our disciplines, the performance obligation is to provide advisory and
consulting services at an agreed-upon level of effort to accomplish the specified engagement. Qur client contracts are comprised of
diverse arrangements involving fees based on any one ot a combination of the following: an agreed fee or rate per hour for the level
of effort expended by our employees; commissions based on the client’s spending for media purchased from third parties;
qualitative or quantitative incentive provisions specified in the conrract; and reimbursement for third-party costs thar we are
required to include in revenue when we control the vendor services related to these costs and we act as principal. The transaction
price of a contract is allocared to each distinct performance obligation based on its relative stand-afone selling price and is
recognized as revenue when, or as, the customer receives the benefic of cthe performance obligadon. Clients typically receive and
consume the benefit of our services as they are performed. Substantially all our client contracts provide that we are compensared for
services performed to date and allow for cancellation by either party on short netice, typically 90 days, withour penalry.

Generally, our short-term contracts, which normally take 30 to 90 days to complete, are performed by a single agency and
consist of a single performance obligatien. As a result, we do not consider the underlying services as separate or distinct
performance obligadons because our services are highly interrelated, occur in close proximity, and the integration of the various
components of 2 marketing message is essential to overall service. In certain of our long-term client contracts, which have a term of
up to one year, the performance obligation is a stand-ready obligation, because we provide a constanc level of similar services over
the term of the contract. In other long-term contracts, when our services are not a stand-ready obligation, we consider our services
distincr performance obligations and allocare ¢he transaction price to each separate performance obligation based on its stand-alene
selling price, includiag contracts for strategic media planning and buying services, which are considered to be multiple performance
obligations, and we allocate the transaction price to each distinet service based on the staffing plan and the stand-alone selling price.
In substantially all of our creative services contracts, we have distinct performance obligations for our services, including certain
creative services contracts where we act as an agent and arrange, at the clienc’s direction, for chird parties to perform scudio
production efforts.

Revenue Recognition Methods. A substantial portion of our revenue is recognized over time, as the services are performed,
because the client receives and consumes the benefit of our performance throughout the contract period, or we create an asset with
no alternarive use and are contractually entitled to payment for our performance vo dare in the event the client terminates the
concract for convenience. For these client contracts, other than when we have a stand-ready obligation to perform services, revenue
is recognized over time using input measures that correspond to the level of staff effort expended to sarisfy the performance
obligarion on a rate per hour or equivalent basis. For client contracts when we have a stand-ready obligation to perform services on
an ongoing basis over the life of the contrace, rypically for periods up o one year, where the scope of these arrangements is broad

13



and there are no significant gaps in performing the services, we recognize revenue using a time-based measure resulting in a
straight-line revenue recognition. From time to time, there may be changes in the client service requirements during the term of a
contract and the changes could be significant. These changes are eypically negotiated as new contracts covering the additional
requiremencs and the associated costs, as well as additional fees for the incremental work to be performed.

To a lesser extent, for certain other contracts where our performance obligations are satisfied in phases, we recognize revenue
over time using certain output measares based on the measurement of the value transferred to the customer, including milestones
achieved. Where the transacton price or a portion of the transaction price is derived from commissions based on a percentage of
purchased media from thicd parties, the performance obligation is not satisfied until the media is run ard we have an enforceable
contract providing a right to payment. Accordingly, revenue for commissions is recognized at a point in time, typically when the
media is run, including when it is not subject to cancellation by che client or media vendor.

Principal vs. Agent. [n subscantially all our businesses, we incur third-party costs on behalf of clients, including direct costs
and incidental, or out-of-pocker costs. Third-party direct costs incurted in connection with the creation and delivery of adverusing
or marketing communication services include, among othets: purchased media, studio production services, specialized talent,
including artists and other freelance labor, event marketing supplies, materials and services, promotional items, market research and
third-party dara and other related expendicures. Qur-of-pocket costs include, among others: transportation, hotel, meals and
telecommunication charges incurred by us in the course of providing our services. Billings refated 10 our-of-pocket costs are
included in revenue since we control the goods or services prior to delivery to the client.

However, the inclusion of billings related to third-parcy direct costs in revenue depends on whether we act as a principal or as
an agenc in the client arrangement. In most of our businesses, including advertising, which also includes studio production efforts
and media planning and buying services, public relations, healthcare advertising and most of our CRM Consumer Experience
businesses, we act as an agent and arrange, at the client’s direction, for third parties to perform certain services. in these cases, we do
not control the goods or services prior to the transfer to the client. As a resul, revenue is recorded nec of these costs, equal to che

amount retained for our fee or commission.

In certain businesses we may act as principal when contracting for third-party services on behalf of our clienss. In our events
business and most of our CRM Execution & Support businesses, including field marketing and certain specialty markering
businesses, we act as principal because we control the specified goods or services before they are transferred to the client and we are
responsible for providing the specified goods or services, or we are responsible for directing and integrating third-party vendors to
fulfill our performance obligation at the agreed upon contractual price. In such arrangements, we also take pricing risk under the
terms of the client contract. In certain specialty media buying businesses, we act as principal when we control the buying process
for the purchase of the media and contract directly with the media vendor. In these arrangements, we assume the pricing risk under
the terms of the client contract. When we act as principal, we include billable amounts related to third-party costs in the
transaction price and record revenue over time at the gross amount billed, including out-of-pocket costs, consistent with the
manner that we recognize revenue for the underlying services contract. However, in media buying contracts where we act as
principal, we recognize revenue at a point in time, typically when the media is run, including when it is not subject ro cancellation

by the client or media vendor.

Variable Consideration. Some of our client arrangements include variable consideration provisions, which include
performance incentives, tiered commission structures and vendor rebates in certain markets outside of the United States. Variable
consideration is estimated and included in total consideration at contract inception based on either the expected value method or
the most likely outcome methed. These estimates are based on historical award experience, anticipated performance and other
facrors known ar the time. Performance incentives are typically recognized in revenue over time. Variable consideration for our
media businesses in certain internatonal markets includes rebate revenue and is recognized when it is probable that the media will
be run, including when it is not subject to cancellation by the client. In addition, when we receive rebates or credits from vendors
for transactions entered into on behalf of clients, they are remitred to the clienrs in accordance with contractual requirements or
retained by us based on the terms of the client contract or local law. Amounts passed on to clients are recorded as a liability and
amounts retained by us are recorded as revenue when carned, typically when the media is run.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See Note 22 1o the consolidated financial staterments for information on the adoption of new accounting standards and

accounting standards not yet adopred.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - 2020 Compared to 2019 (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
| 1 L PP $13,171.1  §$14,953.7
Ovperaring, Expenses:

Salary and Service COSIS ... .. ittt e 9,572.8 10,972.2
Occupancy and 0ther COSTS - .. .1 ee it ettt e et e e 1,1385 1,221.8
COVID-19 1epositioning COSS ..ottt ittt e e et e e e 2779 —
L0 s = o Ul U 10,989.2 12,194.0
Selling, general and administrative €XPENSES ... .. veo ittt e e 360.5 405.9
Depreciation and amMOTtzation ... ...oouune o e e e e 222.6 231.5
11,572.3 12,831.4
OPerating Profit . vu i i e 1,598.8 2,122.3
Operating Margin — 90 ... oo e 12.1% 14.2%
T T o T T S D 221.8 244.3
NeresT ICOmmE i e e 32.3 60.3
Income Before Income Taxes and Income (Loss) From Equity Method Investments .................. 1,409.3 1,938.3
[ncome Tax EXPense . .. oo e e e e e e e 381.7 504.4
Income (Loss) From Equity Method Investments ... ... ... i iiiiiiiiiiiiieaia it eeaaanins (6.8) 2.0
INEE INCOMIE - - ¢ e e et ettt e et e e e e e e e 1,020.8 1.435.9
Net Income Attributed To Noncontrolling Interests ................ e 75.4 96.8
Net Income - Omnicom Group Inc. ... oo e aa $ 9454 § 1,339.1
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use EBITA and EBITA Margin as additional operating performance measures that exclude the non-cash amortizacion
expense of intangible assets, which primarily consists of amortization of intangible assets arising from acquisitions. We define
EBITA as carnings before interest, taxes and amortizarion of intangible assets, and EBITA Margin as EBITA divided by revenue.
EBITA and EBITA Margin are non-GAAP financial measures. We believe that EBITA and EBITA Margin are useful measures for
investors ro evaluate the performance of our business. Non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in isolation from, or
as a substitute for, financial information presented in compliance wich U.S. GAAR Non-GAAP financial measures reported by us
may not be comparable to similarty cided amounts reported by other companies.

The following table reconciles the U.S. GAAP financial measure of net income - Cmnicem Group Inc. to EBITA and EBITA
Margin for the periods presented (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
Ner Income - Omnicom Group Inc. ... .o i $ 9454 $ 1,339.1
Net Income Artributed To Noncontrolling Interests .. ......oooo 75.4 96.8
I T T T 1,020.8 1,435.9
Income {Loss) From Equity Method Investments ........ooviiiiii i oie i i veeeaaas (6.8) 2.0
Tncome Tax EXPense ..o i iuuiit i e e e e e 381.7 504.4
Income Before Income Taxes and Income (Loss) From Equity Method Investments .................. 1,409.3 1,938.3
Interest BXperSe . . e 221.8 244.3
Interest INCOME .o oo e e 32.3 60.3
Operating Profit . ... 1,598.8 2,122.3
Add back: Amortization of intangible assets ...l 83.1 83.8
Earnings before interest, taxes and amortizacion of intangible assets (“EBITA™) ..., § 16819 § 22061
REVEIUE .« ittt et e e $13,171.1  $14.953.7
BB A L e $ L,681.9 5 2,206.1
EBITAMargin - %o .. oo 12.8% 14.8%

Revenue

Revenue for 2020 decreased $1,782.6 million, or 11.9%, compared to 2019. Changes in foreign exchange rates reduced
revenue 0.4%, acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue, reduced revenue 0.4% and negative organic growth decreased
revenue 11.1% as all our geographic markets were negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic (see Note 1 to che
consolidared financial scatements). The change in revenue across our principal regional markets were: North America decreased
$901.7 million, Europe decreased $499.7 million, Asia-Pacific decreased $145.8 million and Latin America decreased
$128.0 million. In North America, we experienced a decline in organic revenue ateributable to the COVID-19 pandernic in all our
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disciplines, except healthcare. In Europe and the Middle East and Africa, almost all businesses and regions experienced a decline in
organic revenue resulting from the COVID-t? pandemic, which was marginally offset by an increase primarily from che
strengthening of the British Pound and Euro against the U.S. Dollar. In Latin America, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
compounded by the continuing unstable economic and political conditions in Brazil resulted in negative organic growth in Brazil
and throughout the region. [n addition, the weakening of foreign currency exchange rates againsc the U.S. Dollar in all countries
further contributed to the reduction in revenue in the region. In Asia-Pacific, almost all our businesses in the region experienced
negative organic growth as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the weakening of most currencies against the U.S. Dollar had

a margina[ negativc impact on revenue,

The componencs of revenue change in the United States {“Domestic”} and the remainder of the world {"International”) were

(in millions):

Total Domestic International
$ % $ % $ %

Decernber 31, 2019 .o iiiiiiiiii i aaiaes $14,953.7 $8,033.0 $6,920.7
Components of revenue change:

Foreign exchange rate Impact .......ovvvvvvvinnins, (60.9; (0.4)% — —% (60.9) {(0.99%

Acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue ... ... (56.7) (0.4)% (36.8) {0.5)% (19.9) {0.3)%

Organicgrowth ... ..o (1,665.0) (11.1)% (810.1) (10.1)% (854.9 (12.4)%
December 31,2020 .....co0iviii i $13,171.1 (11.9% $7,186.1 (10.5)% $5,985.0 (13.9)%

The components and percentages are calculared as follows:

* The foreign exchange impact is calculated by translating che current period’s local currency revenue using the prior period
average exchange rates 1o derive currenc period constant currency revenue {in rhis case $13,232.0 million for the Tocal
column). The forcign exchange impact is the difference between the current period revenue in U.S. Dollars and the current
period constant currency revenue ($13,171.1 million less $13,232.0 million for the Total columun).

* Acquisition revenue is calculated as if the acquisition occurred twelve months prior to the acquisition date by aggregating
the comparable prior period revenue of acquisitions through the acquisition date. As a result, acquisition revenue excludes
the positive or negarive difference berween our current period revenue subsequent to the acquisition date and the
comparable prior period revenue and the positive or negarive growth after the acquisition is awributed to organic growth.
Disposition revenue is calculated as if the disposition occurred twelve months prior to the disposition date by aggregating
the comparable prior period revenue of dispositions through the disposition date. The acquisition revenue and disposition
revenue amoiints are netted in the able.

*  Organic growrh is catculared by subtracting the foreign exchange rate impact, and the acquisition revenue, net of
disposition revenue components from total revenue growth.

* The percentage change is calculated by dividing the individual component amount by the prior period revenue base of that
compenent ($14,953.7 million for the Total column).

Changes in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. Dollar affect our results of operations and financial position. For
the most part, because the revenue and expense of our foreign operations are both denominated in the same local currency, the
economic impact on operacing margin is mintmized. Assuming exchange rates at Fcbruary 12, 2021 remain unchanged, we expect
the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates to increase revenue between 2.5% and 3.0% in the first half of 2021, and by
approximacely 2.5% for che full year.

Revenue and organic growth in our principal regionat markets were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

% Organic
2020 2019 $ Chan& Growth

Americas:

North AMETICA ... o e et e e e teeaes $ 7,577.1 §$ 84788 & (901.7) (10.1)%

Latin AMEIICA ..ottt et e e e e e e 275.4 403.4 (128.0) (15.1)%
EMEA:

Burope ..o 3,607.7 4,107 .4 (499.7) {12.4)%

Middle Eastand AfTIca ... ooounti i e e 207.2 314.6 (107.4) (32.3)%
Asia-Pacific ... e 1,503.7 1,649.5 (145.8) (8.3)%

$13171.1 $14,953.7 3$(1,782.0) (11.1)%




Revenue in Europe, which includes our primary markets of the U.K. and the Euro Zone. decreased $499.7 million in 2020
compared to 2019. Revenue in the U.K,, representing 9.7% of revenue, decreased $151.5 million. Revenue in Continental Europe,
which comprises the Euro Zone and the ather European countries, representing 17.7% of revenue, decreased $348.2 million. The
decrease in revenue is due to negative organic growth resulting from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

In the normal course of business. our agencies both gain and lose business from clients each year due to a variety of factors. In
2020, the reduction in spending by existing clients resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic offset the benefit from gains of new
business. Under our client-centric approach, we seek to broaden our relationships wich all of our clients. In 2020 and 2019, our
largest client represented 3.4% and 3.0% of revenue, respectively. Qur ten largest and 100 largest clients represented 20.8% and
54.0% of revenue for 2020, respectively, and 19.6% and 51.3% of revenue for 2019, respectively.

[n an effort to monitor the changing needs of our clients and to further expand the scope of our services to key clients, we
monitor revenue across a broad range of disciplines and group them into the following categories: advertising, CRM, which
includes CRM Consumer Experience and CRM Execution & Support, public relations and healtheare.

All our business experienced the effects from client spending reductions related to the COVID-19 pandemic. The spending
reductions impacted afl our disciplines and markets. The most significanty impacted were our adverdsing discipline, cur CRM
Consumer Experience discipline, especially in our event marketing businesses, and our CRM Execution & Suppart discipline,
primarily in our field marketing and merchandising businesses. Our Public Relations discipline was less significancly impacred, and
our Healthcare discipline performed well. Revenue and organic growth by discipline were (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2020
¥S.
2020 2019 2019 2020
% of % of % Organic
§ Revenue $ Revenue $ Change Growth
AdVertising .. oovii i $ 7,369.0 56.0% § 8,483.8 56.7%  ${1,114.8) (12.2)%
CRM Consumer Experience ....................... 2,175.7 16.5% 2,577.9 17.2% (402.2) (15.8)%
CRM Execution & Support .........ooovviiiereess 1,133.5 8.6% 1,361.2 9.1% (227.7) (15.1)%
PublicRelatiens . ......... ... . i 1,301.8 9.9% 1,378.9 9.3% (77.1) (4.2)%
Healthcare ... ..o e 1,191.1 9.0% 1,151.9 7.7% 39.2 3.3%
$13,171.1 $14,953.7 $(1,782.6 (1L.1)%

We provide services to clients that operate in various industry sectors. Revenue by sector was:

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019

Food and Beverage ... ....ooiiii i e e 14% 14%
ConsUMET ProduCts oot e e e e i 8% 9%
Pharmaceuticals and Healtheare ... .v .. it e et e e e 16% 14%
Financial Services . ... i e e e 8% 8%
Techmology . . .o 9% 7%
2 o S 10% 10%
Travel and EDTEITaiMIMEIT ot e ve e s ettt e e e e oe et e e e e e e et et he et ea et e e aaeee e vanreen 7% 9%
el eCOMIMUIICAIONS . o .ttt et ittt et et et e e e ettt e rt e e e e e es 6% 6%
2 ¥ [ O S N 7% 7%
T3 T ol S O O A A 2% 2%
Ol Gas and UHes ... vttt e e e et et e e e e e e 1% 2%
NOT-HOr- POt oot e e e i e 1% 1%
L33 1 Tyt (=t v | S D S 3% 2%
0 Tt 7 o A 1% 1%
0 7 R 7% 8%

100% 100%

Certain indusiry secrors have been negatively affected by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic more significanely
than others.
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Operating Expenses

Operarting expenses were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2020 vs. 2019
% of % of
$ Revenue $ Revenue $ Change % Change
REVEIME oottt e e e e $13,171.1 $14,953.7 $(1,782.6) (11.99%
Operating Expenses:
Salary and service costs:
Salary and related service costs ................ 6,250.9 47.5% 6,895.2 46.1% (644.3) (9.3)%
Third-party service costs.......c.ovveeeean ... 3,321.9 25.2% 4,077.0 27.3% (735.1) (18.59)%
9,572.8 72.7% 10,9722 73.4% (1,399.4) (12.8)%
Occupancy and othercosts .. ...l 1,138.5 8.6% 1,221.8 8.2% (83.3) (6.8)%
COVID-19 repositioning costs .................. 277.9 2.1% — —% 277.9 —%
Costof services ..........oiiiiiieiiannnnnn. 10,989.2 12,194.0 (1,204.8)
Selling, general and adminiscrative expenses . ..... 360.5 2.7% 405.9 2.7% (45.4) (11.2)%
Depreciation and amortization ...............o.s 222.6 1.7% 231.5 1.5% (8.9) (3.8)%
11,572.3 87.9% 12,831.4 85.8% {1,259.1) (9.8)%
Operating Profit ... i $ 1,598.8 12.1% § 2,122.3 14.2% § (523.9) (24.7)%

In 2020, salary and service costs, which rend ro flucruate with changes in revenue, decreased $1,399.4 million, or 12.8%,
compared to 2019. Salary and relaced service costs in 2020 decreased $644.3 million, or 9.3%, year-over-year, primarily as a result
of the severance and furlough actions we took in the second quarter of 2020. Also, during 2020, we reduced salary and service costs
by $162.6 million relared to reimbursements and tax credits under government programs in several counrries (see Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements). Third-parcy service costs, which include expenses incurred with third-parry vendors primarily
when we act as a principal when performing services for our clients, decreased $755.1 million, or 18.5%, year-over-year reflecting
the decrease in revenue and the impacr of actions we took to align our cost structure, Occupancy and other costs, which are less
directly linked to changes in revenue than salary and service costs, decreased $83.3 million, or 6.8%, in 2020 as compared to 2019.
Operating profit decreased $523.5 million to $1,598.8 million. Operating margin decreased to 12.1% from 14.2%, and EBITA
margin decreased 10 12.8% from 14.8% year-over-year. In 2020, operating profit, operating margin and EBITA margin included a
net decrease apgregating $171.1 million related to the COVID-19 repositioning costs recorded in the second quarter and asset
impairment charges, which are included in salary and service costs, recorded in the fourth quarter, partially offset by an increase
telated to reimbursernents and tax credits under governmenr programs in several countrics duting the year (see Note | to the

consolidated financial statements).
Net Interest Expense

In 2020, nert interest expense increased $5.5 million year-over-year to $189.5 million. Interesc expense on debt decreased
$27.6 million to $199.6 million, primarily reflecting a reducrion in interest expense ftom our refinancing acrivity at lower interest
rates in the second half of 2019 and the first quarter of 2020, partially offset by a loss of $7.7 million on the carly redemption of
the remaining $600 million principal amount of the 2020 Notes in the first quarter of 2020 and the interest expense from the
issuance of che 4.20% Notes in April 2020 (see Note 7 to the consolidared financial statements). Interest income in 2020 decreased
$28.0 million year-over-year to $32.3 million primarily due to lower races.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate for 2020 increased year-over-year to 27.1% from 26.0%. The non-deductibility in certain jurisdictions
of a portion of the COVID-19 repositioning costs recorded in the second quarter of 2020 had the effect of increasing our effective
tax rate for 2020. This increase was substandally offset by a lower effective tax rate on our foreign earnings resulting from a change
in legislation. In 2019, income tax expense was reduced by $10.8 million primarily from the net favorable setlernents of uncertain
tax positions in certain jurisdictions. After considering these itetns, our effective rate for 2020 would kave approximared che rare
for 2019.
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Net Income and Net Income Per Share - Omnicam Group Inc.

Net income - Omnicom Group Inc. in 2020 decreased $393.7 miilion to $945.4 millien from $1,339.1 million in 2019. The
year-over-year decrease is due to the factors described above. Diluted net income per share - Omnicom Group [nc. decreased to
$4.37 in 2020, compared to $6.06 in 2019, due to the factors described above, as well as the impact of the reduction in our
weighted average commeon shares outstanding resulting from repurchases of our common stock through March 2020, net of shares
issued for restricted stock awards, stock option exercises and the employee stock purchase plan during the year. As discussed above
and in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, our results of operations for 2020 included COVID-19 repositioning costs
and asset impairment charges, which were partially offset by an increase attributable to reimbursements and rax credits under
government programs in several countries. The after-tax affect of these items oa net income - Omnicom Group Inc. was

$146.8 million.

The impact on net income Omnicom Group Inc. of these actions was {in mitlions):

Impairment Reimbursements
COVID-19 Charges- and Tax Credies
Repositioning Underperforming  Under Government
Costs Assets Programs Total
Increase {decrease) 1o income before income taxes ........... $(277.9) $(55.8) $162.6 $(17L.1)
Increase (decrease) in incorne tax expense ................ ... (54.8} (8.7) 39.2 (24.3)
Increase (decrease) in net income Omnicom Group Inc. ..... $(223.1 $(47.1) $123.4 $(146.8)
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RESULLS OF OPERATIONS - 2019 Compared to 2018 (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018

$14,953.7  $15,290.2

B evelIUe L.
QOperating Expenses;
Salary and service COSES . ... . e 10,972.2 11,306.1
Occupancy and Other COSES ..., .\t iyt e ettt e e 1,221.8 1,309.6
Net gain on disposition of subsidiaries ..., ... i — (178.4)
o8t OF SEIVICES .. .. Lo e 12,194.0 12,437.3
Selling, general and administrative eXPenses ........ooiviiiii i 405.9 435.4
Depreciation and amortization .. .........o..eeeiit e e 231.5 264.0
12,8314 13,156.7
Operating Profit ... 2,122.3 2,133.5
Operating Margin - Yo .. ..o 14.2% 14.0%
Inrerest Bapense ... e 244.3 266.4
Tnterest INCOMIE ... s 60.3 57.2
Income Before Income Taxes and Income From Equity Method Investments ..., 1,938.3 1,924.3
Income Tax Expense .. ... L e 504.4 492.7
[ncome From Equity Method Tnvestments . .....oooiiiiiir i i e 2.0 8.9
INEE INCOME - ..ottt e ettt ettt e e s e e e e 1,435.9 1,440.5
Net Income Attributed To Noncontrolling Interests ......oooviiiiin it 96.8 114.1
Net Income - Omnicom Group Inc. ... e $1,339.1  § 1,3264

Qur resuls for 2018 include the effect of the net gain on disposition of subsidiaries of $178.4 million and repositioning
charges of $149.4 million, afrer the allocation of $6.9 million to noncontrolling interests, and the additional income tax expense of
$3.9 million from the finalization of the provisional estimate of the effect of the Tax Cut and Jobs Act of 2017, or Tax Act,
substartially offset by the impact of a lower tax rate on the net gain on disposition of subsidiaries. The following discussion of our
results of operations compares 2019 to 2018 as reported and adjusted for the effeets of these ransactions. See page 24 for a
reconciliation of the adjusted 2018 amounts.

Non-GAAP Financigl Measures

We use EBITA and EBITA Margir: as additional operating performance measures that exclude the non-cash amortization
expense of intangible assers, which primarily consists of amortization of intangible assets arising from acquisitions. We define
EBITA as earnings before interest, taxes and amortization of intangible assets, and EBITA Margin as EBITA divided by revenue,
EBITA and EBITA Margin are non-GAAP financial measures. We believe that EBITA and EBITA Margin are useful measures for
investors o evaluate the performance of our business. Non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in iselation from, or
as a substitute for, financial information presented in compliance with U.S. GAADP. Non-GAAP financial measures reported by us

may not be comparable to similarly titled amounts reported by other companies.

The following rable reconciles the U.S. GAAP financial measure of net income - Omnicom Group Inc. to EBITA and EBITA

Margin for the petiods presented (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Net Income - Omnicom Group Ine. . ..oovverii o $1,339.1 % 1.3264
Net Income Attributed To Noncontrolling Ingerests . ......oovvvvereeieoe oo e 96.8 114.1
Net Ineome ..o e e 1,435.9 1,440.5
[ncome From Equity Method [nvestments ... 2.0 8.9
Income Tax EXPENSe .. ... .. i e 504.4 4927
Income Before Income Taxes and Income From Equity Method Investments ................ ... .. 1,938.3 1,924.3
[nrerest BXperise ... . e 2443 266.4
Interest INCOME ... e 60.3 57.2
Operating Profit ... 2,122.3 2,133.5
Add back: Amortization of intangible assets ..........oviiiii 83.8 1025
Earnings before interest, taxes and amortization of intangible assets ("EBITA”) ...............cools. $ 2,206.1 3 2.236.0
Ry enUE .o e e $14,953.7  $15,290.2
0 8 17 N $ 2,206.1 $ 2,236.0
EBITA Margin — % ..o 14.8% 14.6%
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Revenue

In 2019, revenue decreased $336.5 million, or 2.2%, to $14,953.7 million from $15,290.2 million in 2018. Changes in
foreign exchange rates reduced revenue $315.9 million, acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue, reduced revenue
$445.1 million, and organic growth increased revenue $424.5 million. The impact of changes in foreign exchange rates reduced
revenue 2.1%, or $315.9 million, primarily resulting from the weakening of substantially all foreign currencies, especially the Euro,
British Pound, Australian Dollar, Brazilian Real and Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar.

The components of revenue change in the United Stazes {“Domesdc”) and the remainder of the world (“International®) were
(in millions): '

Total Domestic International
$ % 3 % s %

December 31,2018 ... $15,290.2 $7.999.8 $7,290.4
Components of revenue change:

Foreign exchange rate impact ................... (315.9 2. 1)% — —% (315.9) {(4.3)%

Acquisition revenue, net of disposition revenue .. (445.1) (2.99% (180.6) (2.3)% (264.5) (3.60%

Organicgrowth ... 424.5 2.8% 213.8 2.7% 210.7 2.9%
December 31,2019 ..o $14,953.7 (2.2)%  $8,033.0 0.4% $6,920.7 (5.1)%

The components and percentages are calculated as follows:

* The foreign exchange impact is calculared by translating the current period's local currency revenue using the prior period
average exchange rates to derive current period constant currency revenue {in this case $15,269.6 million for the Tocal
column). The foreign exchange impact js the difference between the current period revenue in U.S, Dollars and the current
period constant currericy revenue ($14,953.7 million less $15,269.6 million for the Total column).

* Acquisition revenue is calculated as if the acquisition occurred twelve months prior to the acquisition date by aggregating
the comparable prior period revenue of acquisitions through the acquisition date. As a result, acquisition revenue excludes
the positive or negative difference between our current period revenue subsequent o the acquisition date and the
comparable prior period revenue and the positive or negative growth after the acquisition is acribured to organic growth.
Disposition revenue is calculared as if the disposition occurred twelve months prior to the disposition date by aggregating
the comparable prior period revenue of dispositions through the disposition date. The acquisition revenue and disposition
revenue amouncs are netted in the table.

¢ Organic growth is calculated by subtracting the foreign exchange rate impact, and the acquisition revenue, net of
disposition revenue componers from toral revenue growth.

¢ The percentage change is calculated by dividing the individual component amount by the prior period revenue base of that
component {$15,290.2 million for the Toral column).

Changes in the value of foreign currencies against the U.S. Dollar affect our results of eperations and financial position. For
the most pars, because the revenue and expense of our foreign operations are both denominated in the same local currency, the
ecoNomlic impact on opetating margin is minimized.

Revenue and organic growth in our principal regional markets were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

% Organic
2019 2018 $ Chznge Growth
Americas:
A o0 W2V 1= 2 T R $ 84788 § 84425 § 363 2.8%
Latin America ..... D 403.4 457.5 {54.1) (0.2)%
EMEA:
BUEODE © - et eee e e e 41074 43754 (268.0) 3.1%
Middie Eastand Africa ... ... i e 314.6 304.4 10.2 6.5%
AsIa-Paciiic . e 1,649.5 1,710.4 (60.9) 2.2%
$14,953.7 $15,290.2 ${336.5) 2.8%

Revenue in Europe, which includes our primary markets of the U.K. and the Euro Zone, decreased $268.0 million in 2019 as
compared ro the prior year. Revenue in the UK, representing 9.6% of total revenue, decreased §23.7 million, primarily due to the
weakening of the British Pound against the U.S. Dollar. Revenue in Continental Europe, which comprises the Eure Zone and the
other European countries, representing 17.9% of total revenue, decreased $244.3 million, primarily due to disposition activity and
the untavorable impact from changes in foreign exchange rates.
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In North America, improved organic growth in the United States and Canada was substantially offset by a decrease in revenue
resulting from disposition activity in the United States and the weakening of the Canadian Dollar against the U.S. Dollar. Organic
revenue growth in the United Scates was led by our advertising and media, CRM Consumer Experience and healthcare businesses,
and was pardially offset by a decrease in organic revenue growth primarily in our CRM Execution & Supporrt businesses. In Europe,
modest organic growth in the region, especially in the U.K. and Spain, was offser by the weakening of substandally all currencies in
the region against the U.S. Dollar, disposition activity and negative performance in France. In Latin America, the weakening of
currencies in the region against the U.S. Dollar and negative performance and disposition activity in Brazil offser modest organic
growth in Chile and Mexico. In Asia-Pacific, organic growth in mast countries in the region, especially Japan, New Zealand and
India, was offset by the weakening of most currencies in the region against the U.S. Dollar, disposition activity and negarive
performance in China, which faced 2 difficult comparison due o strong organic growth in 2018.

In the normal course of business, our agencies both gain and lose business from clients each year due to a variety of factors.
The net change in 2019 was an overall gain in new business. Under our client-centric approach, we seek to broaden our
relationships with all of our clients. In 2019 and 2018, our largest client represented 3.0% of revenue. Our ten largest and 100
largest clients represented 19.6% and 51.3% of revenue in 2019, respectively, and 19.1% and 50.7% of revenue in 2018,

respectively.

Revenue and organic growth by discipline were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2019
VS,
2019 2018 2018 2019
% of % of % Organic
3 Revenue $ Revenue $ Change Growth

Adverrsing ... $ 8,451.7 56.5% % 8,281.0 54.2% $170.7 4.5%
CRM Consumer Experience ....................... 2,610.0 17.5% 2,629.6 17.1% (19.6) 1.6%
CRM Execution & Support ....................... 1,361.2 92.1% 1.891.6 12.4% (530.4) {3.2)%
Public Refations ... ...t 1,378.9 9.2% 1,435.1 9.4% (56.2) (2.00%
Healthcare ... ... o . 1,151.9 7.7% 1,052.9 6.9% 99.0 9.5%
$14,953.7 $15,290.2 $(336.5 2.8%

We provide services to clients that operate in various industry sectors. Revenue by sector was:
Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Food and Beverage ... .o 14% 14%
ConsUImEr ProdUers ... ov ettt e e s 9% 9%
Pharmaceuticals and Health Care ... o e 14% [4%
Financial Services . ....ioieit ittt e e s 8% 8%
Technology .. oo 7% 8%
- L <o S 10% 10%
Travel and Enrertainmimerit . ... .o ottt e et e e e e 9% 8%
TeleCOMMUNICATIONS .. ...ttt ittt et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e et e iaiaeanens 6% 5%
Reetail oo 7% 8%
=S s 1o PP 2% 2%
Ol Gas and UHImies v oe et e e e e e e e e e e 2% 2%
N O PIO It L oo e 1% 2%
L0 Y7 q o411 | A 2% 2%
EdUCation .ot i e e e s 1% —9%
01 7 U 8% 8%

100% 100%

22



Operating Expenses
Operating expenses for 2019 compared to 2018 were (in millions}):
Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2019 vs. 2018
% of % of
$ Revenue $ Revenue $ Change % Change
REVENUE .\ttt e e $14,953.7 $15,290.2 $(336.5) 2.2)%
Operating Expenses:
Salary and service costs:
Salary and service €osts ... 6,895.2 46.1% 7,127.1 46.6% (231.9) (3.3)%
Third-party service €osts.............ooove... 4,077.0 27.3% 4,179.0 27.3% (102.0) (2.4)%
10,972.2 73.4% 11,306.1 73.9% (333.9) 3.00%
Occupancy and othercosts .............oovie 0. 1,221.8 8.2% 1,309.6 8.6% (87.8) (6.7)%
Net gain on disposition of subsidiaries ........... — —% {178.4) (1.2)% 178.4
Costofservices ... 12,194.0 12,437.3 (243.3)
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... . .. 405.9 2.7% 4554 3.0% {49.5) (10.9%
Depreciation and amortization .................. 231.5 1.5% 264.0 1.7% {32.5) (12.3)%
12,831.4 85.8% 13,156.7 86.0% (325.3) (2.5)%
Operating Profit ... $ 2,122.3 14.2% § 2,1335 14.0% $ 12 {0.5)%

Operating expenses in 2019 decreased $325.3 million, or 2.5%, year-over-year, primarily as a result of our disposition activity
in 2019 and 2018, and the weakening of substantially all foreign currencies against the U.S. Dollar. Operating expenses for 2018
also included a net reduction of $29.0 million, comprised of a $178.4 million reduction for the impact of the net gain on
disposition of subsidiaries, partially offset by an increase in operating expenses of $149.4 million for repositioning charges, which
included $73.7 million in salary and service costs for incremental severance and $73.5 million in occupancy and other costs for
office lease rermination and consolidation. Salary and service costs, which tend to fluctuare with changes in revenue, decreased
$333.9 million, or 3.0%, in 2019 compared to 2018 due to our disposition activity in 2019 and 2018, as well as the incremental
severance charge of $73.7 million recorded in 2018 thar did not affecc 2019. Occupancy and other costs, which are less direcdly
linked to changes in revenue than salary and service costs, decreased $87.8 million, or 6.7%, in 2019 compared to 2018 due o our
disposition acrivity in 2019 and 2018, ard the office lease termination and consolidation charge of $73.5 million recorded in 2018
thar did not affect 2019. Operating margin increased 0.2% to 14.2% year-over-year and EBITA margin increased (.2%
year-over-year to 14.8%. The net decrease in operadng expenses of $29.0 million in 2018 related o the net gain on disposition of
subsidiaries pardally offset by the charges for the repositoning actions, increased both operating margin and EBITA margin for
2018 by 0.2%. Adjusting for the net decrease of $29.0 million in 2018 in operating expenses, Non-GAAP operating margin for
2019 increased to 14.2% from 13.8% in 2018 and adjusted EBITA margin for 2019 increased to 14.8% from 14.4% in 2018. The
year-over-year increase primarily reflects a change in the mix of our business during the currenc peried, including the positive
effects following the disposition of underperforming businesses in the current and prior year and our repositioning activity in the
third quarter of 2018, as well as our ongoing efforts o manage our cost structure and increase the efficiency of the operations of
our agencies.

Net Interest Expense

In 2019, net interest expense decreased $25.2 million year-over-year to $184.0 miilion. In 2019, interest expense on debr
decreased $14.7 million o $227.2 million, primarily reflecting a reduction in incerest expense from refinancing activity in the third
quarter of 2019 at lower incerest rates, including the maturity and retirerenc of the 2019 Notes and the settlement of che
outstanding fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps, partially offset by a loss on the partial redemption of the 2020 Notes and the
issuance of the Euro Notes (see Note 7 to the consolidated financial sratements). Interest income in 2019 increased $3.1 million
year-over-year to $60.3 million due to higher cash balances at our treasury cenrers.

Income Taxes

Qur effective rax rate for 2019 increased slightly year-over-year to 26.0% from 25.6% in 2018. The effective tax rate for 2019
includes a reduction of $10.8 million primarily from che net favorable settlement of uncertain tax pesitions in the second quarter of
2019. The effecrive tax rate for 2018 reflects a net increase of $3.9 million related 10 an increase in income tax expense for an
adjustment to the provisional amounts related to the Tax Act, substantially offset by the impact of a lower tax rate on the net gain
on disposition of subsidiaries.
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Net Income and Net Income Per Share - Omnicom Group Inc.

Net income - Omnicom Group Inc. in 2019 increased, due to the factoes described above, $12.7 million, or 1.0%, to
$1.339.1 million from $1,326.4 million in 2018. The net gain on disposition of subsidiaries and repositioning charges, after the
allocated share of $6.9 million to noncontrolling interests, and the additional income tax expense from the finalization of the
provisional estimate of the effect of the Tax Act, increased net income - Omnicom Group Inc. in 2018 by $18.2 million. Diluted
net income per share - Omnicom Group ne. increased 3.9% to $6.06 in 2019, compared to $5.83 in 2018, due to the factors
described above, as well as the impact of the reduction in our weighted average common shares outstanding resulting feorm
repurchases of our common stock, net of shares issued for restricted stock awards, stock option exercises and the employee stack
purchase plan. The net gain on disposition of subsidiaries and repositioning chatges net of the additional income tax expense from
the finalization of the provisional estimare of the effect of the Tax Act, increased diluted net income per share - Omnicom Group
Inc. in 2018 by $0.08, and Non-GAAP diluted net income per share - Omaicom Group Ine. increased 5.4% in 2019 compared to
2018 adjusted for these items.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Non-GAAP operating profit, adjusted EBITA, Non-GAAP net income -~ Omnicom Group [n¢., and Non-GAAP diuted net
income per share — Omnicom Group Inc. are Non-GAAP financial measures which adjusts the 2018 financial measures for the
itnpact of the net gain on disposicion of subsidiaries of $178.4 million and repositoning charges of $149.4 million, a ner increase
of $3.9 miltion in income tax expense, and an allocation of $6.9 miltion te noncontrolling interests for these items. Accordingly,
when comparing operating profit, EBITA, net income - Omnicom Group Inc. and diluted net income per share - Omnicom
Group Inc. for 2019 to 2018, we also present the 2018 reported amounts and EBITA on page 14 adjusted for the effects of these
transactions. We believe rhese Non-GAAP measures aid investors by providing additional insight into our operational performance
and help clarify trends affecting our business. For comparability of reporting, management considers Non-GAAP measures in
conjunction with GAAP financial results in evaluating business performance. These Non-GAAP financial measures presented
should not be considered a substitute for, or superior to, the measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAPR

The following zable reconciles our financial results presented above to the Non-GAAP Financial Measures (in millions, except

per share amounts):
Year Ended December 31,

2019 2018
Non-GAAF operating profir and adjusted EBITA:
Net Income - Omnicom Group [ .....ooiu i et $1,339.1 $1,326.4
Net [ncome Attributed To Noncentrolling Interests .....ooooooiiiiiiiiiii s 96.8 114.1
L= o T o o T 1,435.9 1,440.5
Income From Equity Method [nvestments ....oooooiiiiiii i 2.0 8.9
Income Tax Expense .. ..o oo e 504.4 492.7
Income Before Income Taxes and [ncome From Equity Method Investments ... [,938.3 1,924.3
Interest EXpemse ... oo oo e e 2443 266.4
T (= e Tl 4 U= DY 60.3 57.2
Operating profit ... oo 2,122.3 2,133.5
Net gain on disposition of subsidiaries ....... ... . o — (178.4)
Repositioning charges ... i — 149.4
Non-GAAP operating profit ... 2,122.3 2,104.5
Add back: Amortization of intangible assets ........ ... . . 83.8 102.5
Adjusted EBITA ... s $2,206.1 $2,207.0
Non-GAAP net income - Omnicom Group Inc. and Non-GAAP diluted net income per share
Omnicom Group Inc.:
Netincome - Omnicom Group INC. ...ooiviiiin i i e $1,339.1 $1,326.4
Net pre-rax gain on disposition of subsidiaries and repositioning actions .......ooviiiiiiiiiaie o — (29.0)
Net income tax benefit of gain on disposition of subsidiaries and repositioning actions ............. — (25.0)
Allocation 10 noncontrolling INTELESTS . ...\ vuv vttt ettt e - 6.9
Net increase in tax expense refated to the TIX Act ...l e e — 28.9
Non-GAAP net income - Omnicom Group Inc. ... i $1,339.1 $1,308.2
Diluted Net Income Per Share - Omnicom Group Inc. ..., $ 6.06 $ 5.83
Net gain on disposition of subsidiaries, repositioning actions and impact of Tax Act......oooun i, — (0.08)
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share - Omnicom Group Inc. .....ooovvviiiniiiiin e onns $ 6.06 §_ 575
Weighted average shares ............o.c.. i 2209 227.6



LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Although we experienced a decrease in our cash flow from operations, we took numerous proactive steps to strengthen our
liquidity and financial position that are intended o mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our liquidity. In
February 2020, we issued $600 million of the 2.45% Notes. In March 2020, the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2.45%
Notes were used to redeem the remaining $600 million principal amount of the 2020 Notes. As a result, we have no notes
maturing undl May 2022. In April 2020, we issued $600 million of the 4.20% Notes, and we entered into the $400 million
364 Day Credit facility macuring on April 2, 2021. The 364 Day Credit Facility is in addition to our existing $2.5 billion Credit
Facility. Addlitionally, in March 2020, we suspended our share repurchase activity.

Cash Sources and Requirements

Qur primary liquidity sources are our operating cash flow and cash and cash equivalents. Additional liquidizy sources inciude
our $2.5 billion Credit Facility maturing on February 14, 2023, che $400 million 364 Day Credit Facility maturing on April 2,
2021, the uncommirted credic lines aggregating $1.1 billion, the ability to issue up to $2 billion of commerciat paper and access the
capital markets. Our fiquidity funds our non-discretionary cash requirements and our discretionary speading.

Borrowings under our credit facilities may use LIBOR as the benchmark interest rate. The LIBOR benchmark rate is expected
to be phased out by the end of June 2023. We do not expect thac the discontinuation of the LIBOR rate will have a material impact
on our liquidity or results of operations.

Working capiral is our principal non-discretionary funding requirement. In addicion, we have contractual obligations related
to our long-term debt (principat and interest payments), recurring business operations, primarily related to lease obligations, and
contingent purchase price obligations (earn-ours} from acquisitions. Qur principal discredonary cash spending includes dividend
payments to common shareholders, capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions and repurchases of our common stock. Our typical
working capital cycle results in a shorc-term borrowing requirement that normally peaks during the second quarter of the year due
to the timing of paymenss for incentive compensation, income taxes and contingent purchase price obligations.

Cash and cash equivalents increased $1,294.8 million from December 31, 2019. The components of the increase, including
the net increase from our refinancing activites, were {in millions):

Sources
Cash flow from operations . ... .. e $1,724.6
Less: Increase in operating capital ... ... o e (30.9}
Principal cash sources ... 1,693.7
Uses
Capital expenditres ...... ..o i e $ (75.4)
Dividends paid to common shareholders ....... ... (562.7)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest shareholders ... oo (95.5)
Acquisition payments, including payment of contingent purchase price obligations and
acquisition of additional noncontrolling interests, net of proceeds from sale of invesements . .. . (117.4)
Repurchases of commen stock, net of proceeds from stock plans . ... oL 217.9)

Principal cash tses .. ... L {1,068.9)
Principal cash sources in excess of principal cash uses ............... .. .. ... ... 624.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .. ..................... ... 114.7
Other net financing and investing activities . ................ i 524.4
Increase in operating capital ... ... ... 30.9
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ... ... $1,294.8

Principal cash sources and principal cash uses are Non-GAAP liquidiry measures. These amounts exclude changes in working
capital and other investing and financing activides, including commetcial paper issuances and redemptions used to fund working
capital changes. This presentation reflects che metrics used by us to assess our sources and uses of cash and was derived from our
consolidated statement of cash flows. We believe chac this presencation is meaningful ro understand the primary sources and uses of
our cash flow and the effect on our cash and cash equivalents. Non-GAAP liquidity measures should not be considered in isolation
from, or as a substitute for, financial information presented in compliance with U.S. GAAD Non-GAAP liquidity measures as
reported by us may not be comparable to similarly citled amounts reporred by other companies. Additienal information regarding
our cash flows can be found in our consolidared financiat statemenrs.
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At December 31, 2020, we have the foliowing contractual obligations:

» Principal payments on [ong-term debr of $5.8 billion, of which $1.25 billion is due in 2022 and $750 millien is due in 2024
{see Note 7 to the consolidared financial stacements). Depending on the conditions in the credic markets we may refinance this
debt, or we may use cash from operations, including temporally accessing our Credit Facility, to repay this debr.

* Interest payments on long-term debt due within the next five years aggregate $684.1 million, of which $176.4 million is payable
in 2021.

* The liabilicy for minimum lease payments for operating leases and finance leases due within the next five years aggregate
$1.2 billion, of which $363.5 million is due in 2021 (see Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements).

At December 31, 2020, the obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $309.3 million and the liability for our
postemployment arrangements was $164.6 million. In 2020, we contributed $9.1 million to our defined benefit plans and paid
$8.7 million for our postemployment arrangements. We do not expect these payments to increase significantly in 2021 (see
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements).

* The liability of contingenc purchase price paymencts (earn-outs) at December 31, 2020, was $71.9 million, of which $32.1
million is payable in 2021 (see Note 5 to the consolidated financial statemencs).

* The liability for the transition tax on accumulated foreign earnings due in the next five years is $105.6 million, of which
$11.6 million is payable in 2021 (see Note 11 wo the consolidated financial statements}.

Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe that our operating cash flow will be sufficient to meet our

non-discretionary cash requirements for the next twelve months.

Cash Management

Our regional treasury centers in North America, Europe and Asia manage our cash and liquidity. Each day, operations with
excess funds invest those funds with their regional treasury center, Likewise, operations that require funds borrow from their
regional treasury center. Treasury centers with excess cash invest on a short-term basis with chird parties, generally with maturities
ranging from overnight to less than 90 days. Certain treasury centers have notional pooling arrangements that are used to manage
their cash and set-off foreign exchange imbalances. The arrangemenss require each treasury center to have its own notional pool
account and to mainrain a notional positive accouns balance, Additionally, under the terms of the arrangement, set-off of foreign
exchange positions are limited to the long and short positions within their own account. To the extent that our treasury centers
require liquidity, they have the ability to issue up to a toral of $2 billion of U.S. Dollar-denominated commercial paper or borrow
under rhe Credit Faciliry, 364 Day Credit Facility, or the uncommitced credit lines. This process enables us to manage our debt
more efficiently and utilize our cash more effectively, as well as manage our risk to foreign exchange rate imbalances. In countries
where we either do not conduct treasury operations or it is not feasible for one of our treasury centers to fund net borrowing
requitements on an intercompany basis, we arrange for local currency uncommitted credit lines. We have a policy governing
counterparty credit risk with financial institutions that hold our cash and cash equivalents and we have deposit limits for each
institution. In countries whete we conduct treasury operations, generally the counterparties are either branches or subsidiaries of
institutions that are party to the Credir Facility. These institutions generally have credir racings equal ro or better than our credit
ratings. In countries where we do not conduct treasury operations, all cash and cash equivalents are held by counterpariies thar

meet specific minimum credic standards.

At December 31, 2020, our foreign subsidiaries held approximately $2.3 billion of our total cash and cash equivalents of
$5.6 billion. Most of the cash is available to us, net of any foreign withholding taxes payable upon repatriation to the United Stares.

At December 31, 2020, our net debe position, which we define as toral debr, including sherc-term debt, less cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments decreased $624.4 million as compared to December 31, 2019. The decrease in nec debt
primarily resulted from the excess of principal cash sources over principal cash uses of $624.8 million.

The components of net debt were {in millions):
December 31,

2020 2019

$§ 39 $ 101
5,807.3 5,134.3
5,811.2 5,144.4

Shortterm debr ..o e i e
Long-term debt, including current portion ... .

Total debt. ..o e
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments ........... ... 5,600.5 4,309.3
IS0« = =1 <A AR $ 2107 $ 835.1
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Net debe is a Non-GAAP liquidity measure. This presentation, together with the comparable U.S. GAAP liquidity measures,
reflects one of the key metrics used by us 1o assess our cash management. Non-GAAP liquidicy measures should not be considered
in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial informartion presented in compliance with U.S. GAAP Non-GAAP liquidity
measures s reporied by us may not be comparable to similarly tidled amounts reported by other companies.

Debt Instruments and Related Covenants

On February 19, 2020, we issued $600 million of the 2.45% Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance, after deducting the
underwriting discount and offering expenses, were $592.6 million and were used to redeem the remaining $600 million principal
amount of the 2020 Notes on March 23, 2020, In connection with the redemption, we recorded a loss on extinguishmenrt of
$7.7 million in interest expense. Following the redemption, there were ne 2020 Notes ousstanding,

On April 1, 2020, in response to the potential effects on market liquidity arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, we issued
$600 million of the 4.20% Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance, after deducring the underwriting discount and offering
expenses, were $592.5 million and were used for general corporate purposes, which included working capital expenditures, fixed
asset expenditures and repayment of commercial paper and short-term debe.

The 2.45% Notes and the 4.20% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Qmnicom that rank equal in right of payment
with all existing and future unsecured senior indebedness.

Omnicom and its wholly owned finance subsidiary, Omnicom Capital Inc., or OCI, are co-obligors under the senior notes
due 2022, 2024 and 2026. These notes are a joint and several liability of Omnicom and OCI, and Omnicom unconditionally
guarantees OCI’s obligations with respect to the notes. OCI provides funding for our operations by incurring debt and lending the
proceeds to our operating subsidiaries. OCI's assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents and intercompany loans made to
our operating subsidiaries, and the related interest receivable. There are no restrictions on rhe ability of OCI or Omnicom o obrain
funds from our subsidiaries through dividends, loans or advances. Such notes are senior unsecured obligations that rank equal in
right of paymenc with all existing and future unsecured seniot indebredness,

Ornicorn and OCT have, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally guaranceed OFHP’s obligations with respect to the
Euro denomirated notes due 2027 and 2031. OFHP’s assets consist of its investments in several wholly owned finance companies
that function as treasury centers thar provide funding for various operating companies in Europe, Brazil, Australia and other
countries in the Asia-Pacific region. The finance companies” assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and intercompany loans that
they make or have made o the operating companies in their respeccive regions and the relared interest receivable, There are no
restrictions on the ability of Omnicom, OCI or OFHP to obeain funds from their subsidiaries through dividends, loans or
advances. The Euro denominated notes and the related guarantees are senior unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of
payment with alf existing and future unsecured senior indebtedness of OFHP and each of Omnicom and OCI, respectively.

The Credic Facility and the 364 Day Credit Facility each contain a financial covenant that requires us to maintain a Leverage
Ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and
non-cash charges) of no more than 3.5 times for the most recently ended 12-month period. On October 26, 2020, we amended
the Credit Facilicy and the 364 Day Credit Facility to provide additional flexibility with respect to the Leverage Ratio covenant.
The amendments increase the maximum Leverage Rario to 4.0 times through December 31, 2021 for the Credit Agreement and to
4.0 times through the marurity for the 364 Day Credir Facilicy. At December 31, 2020, we were in compliance with these
covenants as our Leverage Ratio was 3.0 times. The Credit Facility and the 364 Day Credit Facility do not limit our ability to
declare or pay dividends or repurchase our common stock.

At December 31, 2020, our long-term and short-term debe was rated BBB+ and A2 by S&P and Baal and P2 by Moody's.
Qur access to the commercial paper marker and the cost of these borrowings ase affected by market conditions and our credic
ratings. Our long-term debt, Credit Facility and the 364 Day Credit Facility do not conrain provisions chat require acceleracion of
cash payments in the event of a downgrade in our credit ratings.

Credit Markets and Availability of Credit

In lighe of the uncerainty of future economic conditions, we will continue to take actions available to us to respond to
changing economic conditions, and we will continue to actively manage our discretionary expenditures. We have not repurchased
any of our common stock since March 13, 2020, and we do not plan to resume our repurchases until we helieve economic
conditions have begun to stabilize. We will continue to monitor and manage the level of credit made available o our clients. We
believe that these actions, in addition to the availability of our Credit Facility and 364 Day Credic Facility, are sufficient to fund our
rear-term working capital needs and our discretionary spending. For additional information about our credit facilities, see Note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.
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We have typically funded our day-ro-day liquidity by issuing commercial paper. In the third and fourth quarters of 2020, we
recuced our commercial paper issuances as compared to the prior year period primarily as a resulr of the issuance of the 4.20%
Notes in April 2020, In 2019, we issued shorr-term debt in a private placemens to reduce our commercial paper issuances. This
short-term debr was redeemed in the third quarter of 2019. Additional liquidicy sources include our Credir Facilicy, 364 Day Credit
Facility or the uncommitred credic lines. At December 31, 2020, there were no outstanding commercial paper issuances or
borrowings under the Credit Facility, the 364 Day Credit Facility or the uncommirted credit lines.

Commercial paper activity was (dollars in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Average amount ousstanding during the year ............. ... % 50.1 82723 $ 4117
Maximum amount outstanding during the year ... $401.2 $825.0 $1,218.7
Average days outstandifig ... .o ii i e 4.6 4.0 5.7
1.52% 2.40% 2.19%

Weighted average interest rate .. ....... ... i

We expect to continue issuing commercial paper to fund our day-to-day liquidity. However, disruptions in the credir markecs
may lead to periods of illiquidity in the commercial paper market and higher credic spreads. To mitigate any disruption in the credic
markets and to fund our liquidity, we may borrow under the Credic Facility, 364 Day Credit Facility or the uncomimitred credit
lines or access the capital markets if favorable conditions exist. We will continue to moniter closely our liquidity and conditions in
the credit markers. We cannot predict with any cerrainty the impact on us of any disruptioas in the credit markers. In such
circumstances, we may need ro obrain additional financing o fund our day-to-day working capital requiremenis, Such additonal

financing may not be available on favorable terms, or ar all.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We manage our exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risk through various strategies, including the use of derivative
financial instruments. We use forward foreign exchange contracts as economic hedges to manage the cash flow volarility arising frora
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. We may use interest rate swaps to manage our interest expense and strucrure our long-term debr
portfolio to achieve a mix of fixed rate and floating rate debt. We do not use derivatives for trading or specularive purposes. Using
derivarives exposes us to the risk that counterparties to the derivative contracts will fail to meet their contracmal obligations. We manage
that risk through careful selection and ongoing evaluation of the counterparty financial institutions based on specific minimum credit

standards and other factors.

We evaluate the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and other relevant market risks on our derivacives.
We periodically determine the potential loss from marker risk on our derivadves by performing a value-at-risk, or VaR, analysis. VaR is a
statiscical model thar uses historical currency exchange rate data o measure the potental impact on furure earnings of our derivative
financial instruments assumning normal market conditions. The VaR model is not intended o represent actual losses bue is used as a risk
estimarion and management tool. Based on the results of the model, we estimate with 95% confidence a maximum one-day change in the
net fair value of our derivative financia! instruments at December 31, 2020 was not significant.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

In 2020, our international operations represented approximately 45% of our revenue. Changes in the value of foreign
currencies against the U.S. Dollar affect our results of operations and financial position. For the most part, because the revenue and
expenses of our foreign operations are denominarted in the same local currency, the economic impact on operating margin is
minimized. The effects of foreign currency exchange transactions on our results of operations are discussed in Note 2 to the

consolidated financial statements.

We operate in all major international markets including the Euro Zone, the UK, Australia, Brazil, Canada, China and Japan.
Our agencies transact business in more than 30 different currencies. As an integral part of our global treasury operarions, we
centralize our cash and use notional multicurrency pools te manage the forsign currency exchange risk that arises from imbalances
between subsidiaries and their respective treasury centers. In addition, there are circumstances where revenue and expense
transactions are nor denominared in the same currency. In chese instances, amounts are either promptly settled or hedged with
forward foreign exchange contracts. To manage this risk, at December 31, 2020 and 2019, we had outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $169.6 million and $284.2 million, respectively. At December 31, 2020
and 2019, the net fair value of the forward foreign contracts was not material {see Note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements).
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Foreign currency derivatives are designated as economic hedges; therefore, any gain or loss in fair value incurred on those
instruments is generally offset by decreases or increases in the fair value of the underlying exposure. By using these financial
instrumenrs, we reduce financial risk of adverse foreign exchange changes by Foregoing any gaint which might occur if the markets
move favorably. The terms of our forward foreign exchange contracts are generally less than 90 days.

Interest Rate Risk

We may use interest rate swaps to manage our interest cost and structure our long-term debr portfolio to achieve a mix of
fixed rate and floating rate debt. At December 31, 2020, our long-term debr consists entirely of fixed-rate debt.

Credit Risk

We provide advertising, marketing and corporate communications services to several thousand clients that operate in nearly
every sector of the global economy and we grant credit to qualified clients in the normal course of business. Due to the diversified
naturs of our client base, we do not believe that we are exposed to a concentration of credic risk as our largest client represented
3.4% of revenue in 2020. However, during periods of economic downrurn, the credit profiles of our clients could change.

In the normal course of business, our agencies enter into contracrual commirments with media providers and production
companies on bebalf of our clients at levels that can substandially exceed the tevenue from our services. These commitments are
included in accounts payable when the services are delivered by the media providers or producrion companies. [f permitted by local
law and the client agreement, many of our agencies purchase media and production services for our clients as an agent for a
disclosed principal. In addition, while operating practices vary by country, media type and media vendor, in the United States and
certain foreign markets, many of our agencies’ coneracts with media and production providers specify that our agencies are not
liable to the media and production providers under the theory of sequential Hability until and o the extent we have been paid by
our client for the media or production services.

Where purchases of media and production services are made by our agencies as a principal or are not subject to the theory of
sequential liability, the risk of a material loss as a result of payment default by our clients could increase significantly and such a loss
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of eperarions and financial position.

In addition, our methods of managing the risk of payment default, including obtaining credit insurance, requiring payment in
advance, mitigaring the potential loss in che marketplace or negotiating with media providers, may be less available or unavailable
during a severe economic downturn,

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
See [tem 15, “Exhibits, Financial Sctatement Schedules.”

Item 9. Changes in and Disagrecements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure thac information required co be disclosed in reports we file with
the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within applicable fime periods. Disclosure controls and procedures include,
withour limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or
submit under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is accurnulated and communicated to managemenr,
including our Chief Executive Officer, or CEQ, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFQ, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. Management, including our CEO and CFO, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure conwols
and procedures as of December 31, 2020. Based on that evaluation, our CEQ and CFQ concluded thar, as of December 31, 2020, our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that decisions can be made timely with respect to required disclosures, as well as
ensuring that the recording, processing, swmmarization and reporting of information required to be included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 are appropriate.

Qur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, with the participation of our CEQ, CFO and our agencies,
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporring bascd on the framework in fnternal
Control ~ Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsaring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on that evaluation, our CEQ and CFO concluded that our internal conrrol over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2020. There have noc been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our most tecent fiscal
quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm that audited our consolidated financial statements included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an actestation report on Omnicom’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020, dated February 18, 2021, which is included on page F-2 of this 2020 i0-K.

Item 9B, Other Information

None.
PART 11T

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information regarding Executive Officers of the Registrant is included in Part I, Item 1, “Business.” Addirional
information called for by this [tem, to the extent not included in this document, is incerporated herein by reference to che
information 1o be included under the captions “Ttem 1 - Election of Dhirectors,” “Stock Ownership Information” and “Additional
Information - Shareholder Proposals and Director Nominations for the 2022 Annual Meeting” in our definitive proxy statement,
or Proxy Statement, which is expected 10 be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020,

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be included under the
captions “Executive Compensation,” “[tem 1 - Election of Directors - Directors’ Compensation for Fiscal Year 2020” and “Trem 1 -
Election of Directors - Board Policies and Processes - Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in our

Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Qwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information catled for by this [tem is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be included under the
captions “Stock Ownership Information - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Stock
Ownership I[nformation - Equity Compensation Plans” in our Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information called for by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information to be included under the
captions “Item 1 - Election of Directors - Board Policies and Processes - Transactions with Related Persons” and “Itern 1 - Election
of Directors - Omnicom Board of Directors - Director Independence” in our Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information called for by this Item is incorporared herein by reference to the information to be included under the
caption “Irem 3 - Ratification of the Appaintment of Independent Auditors - Fees Paid to Independent Audicors” in our

Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibit and Financial Statement Schedules

@1

(@y(2)

(a)(3)
Exhibit
Number

3(i)
3(ii)

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5
4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Financial Statements: Page
Management Report on [nternal Control Qver Financial Reporting F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F2
Consolidared Balance Sheets ar December 31, 2020 and 2019 F-4
Conselidated Starements of Income for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2020 E-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2020 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Three Years Ended Decernber 31, 2020 E-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2020 E-8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Starements F-9
Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2020 §-1

All other schedules are omitted because chey are not applicable.
Exhibits:

Description
Restated Certificate of [ncorporarion of Omnicom Group Inc. {Exhibit 3.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
{File No. 1-10551) for the quarter ended Septernber 30, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference).
By-taws of Omnicom Group Inc., as amended and restated on December 11, 2018 (Exhibir 3.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K (File Neo. 1-10551) dated December 14, 2018 and incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2009, among Cmnicom Group Inc., Omnicom Capital Inc., Omnicom Finance Inc.
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (2009 Base Indenture”) (Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) dated July 1, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference).

Third Supplemental Indenture to the 2009 Base Indenture, dated as of April 23, 2012, among Omnicom Group Inc,,
Ormnnicom Capital Inc., Omnicom Finance Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, in
connection with our issuance of $750 million 3.625% Senior Notes due 2022 (Exhibic 4.1 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) dared April 23, 2012 and incorporated herein by reference).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the 2009 Base Indenture, dated as of fuly 20, 2012, among Omnicom Group Inc.,
Omnicom Capital Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, {Exhibir 4.4 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) dated July 20, 2012 and incorporated herein by reference).

Eifth Supplemental Indenture to the 2009 Base indencure, dated as of August 9, 2012, among Omnicom Group Inc.,
Omnicom Capital [nc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, in connection with our issuance of
$500 million: 3.625% Senior Notes due 2022 (Exhibic 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8- (File No. 1-10551)
dated Auguse 9, 2012 (“August 9, 2012 8-K”) and incorporated herein by reference).

Eorm of 3.625% Notes due 2022 (Exhibit 4.2 w the Augusc 9, 2012 8-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Base Indenture, dated as of October 29, 2014, among Omnicom Group Inc., Omnicom Capiral Inc. and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (“2014 Base Indenture”), (Exhibic 4.1 o our Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 1-10551) dared October 29, 2014 (“October 29, 2014 8-K”) and incorporated herein by reference).

First Supplemental [ndenture to the 2014 Base Indenture, dated as of Ocrober 29, 2014, among Omnicom Group
Inc,, Omnicom Capital Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, in connection with our issuance
of $750 million 3.65% Senior Notes due 2024 (Exhibir 4.2 ro the October 29, 2014 8-K and incorporared herein by
reference).

Form of 3.65% Notes due 2024 {included in Exhibit 4.2 to the October 29, 2014 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Second Supplemental Indenture ro the 2014 Base Indenture, dated as of April 6, 2016, ameng Omnicom Group Inc.,
Omunicom Capital Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, in connection with the issuance of
$1.4 billion 3.60% Senior Notes due 2026 {Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) dated
April 6, 2016 (“April 6, 2016 8-K") and incorporated herein by reference).
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4.10

4.12

413

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

10.1

10.2

Form of 3.60% Notes due 2026 {included in Exhibic 4.1 to che April 6, 2016 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Base Indenture, dated as of July 8, 2019, among Omnicom Finance Holdings plc, as issuer, Omnicom Group Ine. and
Omnicom Capital Inc., as guarantors, and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (“2019 Base
Indencure™), (Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. [-10551) dated July 8, 2019 (“July 8, 2019
8-K”} and incorporated herein by reference).

First Supplemental Indenture to the 2019 Base [ndenture, dated as of July 8, 2019, among Omnicom Finance
Holdings plc, as issuer, Omnicom Group Inc. and Omnicom Capirtal Inc., as guarancors, and Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas, as trustee, in connection with the issuance of €500 millien aggregate principal amount of Senior
Notes due 2027 and €300 million aggregare principal amount of Senior Notes due 2031 (Exhibit 4.2 ro the [uly 8,
2019 8-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of 0.80% Notes due 2027 {included in Exhibit 4.2 to the July 8, 2019 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of 1.40% Notes due 2031 (included in Exhibit 4.2 to the July 8, 2019 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Base Indenture, dated as of February 21, 2020, ameng Omnicom Groap Inc., as issuer, and Deutsche Bank Trusc
Company Americas, as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551} filed on February
21, 2020 ("February 21, 2020 8-K”) and incorporated herein by reference).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 21, 2020, among Omnicom Group Inc., as issuer, and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to the February 21, 2020 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of 2.450% Notes due 2030 (Included in Exhibit 4.2 to the February 21, 2020 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Second Supplemental Indencure, daced as of April 1, 2020, among Omnicom Group Inc., as issuer, and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) filed
on April 1, 2020 (“April 1, 2020 8-K”} and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of 4.200% Notes due 2030 (Included in Exhibit 4.1 to the April 1, 2020 8-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Deescription of Securities (Exhibit 4.17 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-10351) for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amended and Restared Five Year Credit Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2020, by and among Omnicom
Capital Inc., a Connecticut corporation, Omnicorm Finance Limited, a private limited company otganized under the
laws of England and Wales, Omnicom Group Inc., a New York corporation, any ather subsidiary of Omunicom Group
Irc. designated for borrowing privileges, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders and initial
issuing bartks listed on the signature pages thereof, Citibank, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., and Wells Fargo
Securities, LLC, as lead arrangers and book managers, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as syndication agenes, Bank of America, N.A., BNP Paribas, Barclays Bank PLC, Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as documentation agents, and Citibank, N.A., as
administrative agent for the lenders (Exhibir 10.1 to our Current Report o Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) filed on
February 19, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference).

364-Day Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2020, by and among Omnicom Capital Ine., Omnicom Group Inc.,
the banlks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders and initial issuing banks listed on the signarure pages
thereof, Citibank, N.A., BofA Securides, Inc., Mizuho Bank, Led. and U.S. Bank National Association, as joint lead
arrangers and joine book managers, Bank of America, N.A., Mizuho Bank, Ltd. and U .S. Bank National Association,
as syndication agents, and Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent for the lenders (Exhibir 10.1 1w our Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551} filed on April 6, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

1G.21

Amendment No. | to the Credic Agreement, dated October 26, 2020, to the Second Amended and Restated Five Year
Credit Agreement, dated as of February 14. 2020, by and among Omnicom Capital Inc., Omnicom Finance Limirted,
Omnicora Group Inc., any other subsidiary of Omnicom Group Inc. designated for borrowing privileges, the banks,
financial institutions and other institurional lenders party therero, Ciribank, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, NLA,, and
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as lead arrangers and book managers, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as syndication agents, Bank of America, N.A., BNP Paribas, Barclays Bank PLC,
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and HSBC Bank USA, National Assaciation, as documentation agents, and Citibank,
N.A., as administrative agent for the lenders (Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-10551)
for the quarter ended Sepeember 30, 2020 ("September 30, 2020 10-Q”) and incorporated herein by reference).
Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement, dated Ocrober 26, 2020, to the 364-Day Credit Agreement, dated 2s of
April 3, 2020, by and among Omnicom Capital Inc,, Omnicom Group Inc., the banks, financial institutions and
other institutional lenders party thereto, Citibank, N.A., BofA Securities, Inc., Mizuho Bank, Lid. and U.S. Bank
Natienal Associaticn, as joint lead arrangers and joint book managers, Bank of America, N.A., Mizuho Bank, Led. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as syndication agents, and Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent for the lenders
{Exhibit 10.2 to the September 30, 2020 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference).

Director Compensation and Director Compensation and Deferred Srock Program Stock Program (Exhibic 10.1 to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-10551) for the quarcer ended March 31, 2020 (“March 31, 2020 10-Q)
and incorporated herein by reference).

Standard form of our Executive Salary Coutinuation Plan Agreement (Exhibir 10.5 to our Annual Report on Form
10-K (File No. 1-10551) fot the year ended December 31, 2012 and incorporared herein by reference).

Standard form of the Director Indemnification Agreement (Exhibit 10.25 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 1-10551) for the year ended December 31, 1989 and incorporated herein by reference).

Senior Management Incentive Plan as amended and restated on December 4, 2008 {Exhibit 10.9 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-10531) for the year ended December 31, 2008 (“2008 10-K"} and incorporated
herein by reference).

Omnicom Group Inc. SERCR Plan (Exhibit 10.10 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 1-10551) for the
year ended December 31, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference}.

Form of Award Agreement under the Omnicom Group Inc. SERCR Plan (Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report ont
Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551) dated December 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference).

Owmnicom Group Inc. Amended and Restated 2007 Incencive Award Plan (Appendix A to our Proxy Statemence {File
No. 1-10551) filed on April 15, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-10551) for the
quarter ended June 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference).

Restricred Stock Unit Deferred Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.16 to che 2008 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Restricted Scock Deferred Compensacion Plan {Exhibic 10.17 to the 2008 10-K and incotporated herein by
reference).

Amendment Ne. 1 to the Restricted Stock Deferred Compensation Plan {Exhibir 10.18 to the 2008 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

Amendment No. 2 to the Restricted Stock Deferred Compensation Plan {Exhibit 10.19 to the 2008 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Grant Notice and Option Agreement {Exhibit 10.20 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
1-10551) for the year ended December 31, 2010 (*2010 10-K”) and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Grant Netice and Restricted Stock Agreement (Exhibir 10.21 to 2010 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Grant Notice 2nd Restricted Stock Unic Agreemnent {Exhibit 10.22 1o 2010 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Grant Notice and Performance Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Exhibic 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 1-10551) for the quarter ended June 3{, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference).
Omnicom Group [ac. 2013 Inceative Award Plan (Appendix A to our Proxy Sratement (File No. 1-10551) filed on
April 11, 2013 and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.22

10.23

10.24

21
23
31.1

32

101.INS

101.5CH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE
104

Director Compensation and Deferred Stock Program (Exhibit 10.19 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No.
1-10551) for the year ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference).

Separation Agreement, dated October 12, 2018, by and between Omnicom Capital Inc. and Dennis Hewitt (Exhibit
10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 1-10551} filed on Ocrober 18, 2018 and incorporated herein by
reference).

Rochelle Tarlowe employmenct letter (Exhibic 10.3 to the March 31, 2020 10-Q and incotporated herein by
reference).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 132-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended.

Cerrification of Execurtive Vice President and Chief Financtal Officer requiied by Rule 132-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.5.C. Section
1350.

Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its
XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

Iniine XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

[nline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Cover Page Interactive Dara File {formatted as inline XBRL and contained in Exhibir 101)

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related information of Omnicom
Group Inc., or Omnicom. Management uses its best judgment to ensure that the consolidated financial statements presenc fairly, in
all material respects, Omnicon’s consolidated financial position and results of operations in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States.

The financial statements have been audited by an independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board. Their report expresses the independent accountant’s judgment as to
the fairness of management’s reported financial position, results of operations and cash flows. This judgment is based on the
procedures described in the fifth and sixch paragraphs of their report.

Omnicom management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer, or CEQ, Chief Financial Officer, or CFO, and our agencies, conducted an evaluacion of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework in fnternal Control - Integrated Framewark (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that evaluation, our CEQ and CFO concluded thar our
internal ¢ontrol over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2020. There have not been any changes in our internal
control over financial reporting during our fourth fiscal quarter that have marerially affected or are reasonably likely ro affect our
internal control over financial reporting.

KPMG LLE an independent registered public accounting firm that audited our consolidated financial statcements included in
this Anntual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an attestation report on Omaicom’s internal concrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020, dated February 18, 2021.

The Board of Directors of Omnicom has an Audit Commirtee comprised of four independent directors. The Audic
Committee meets periodically with financial management, Internal Audit and the independent auditors to review accounting,

control, audit and financial reporting marters.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ta the Shareholders and Board of Directors
Omnicom Group I[nc.:

Opinions on the Consofidated Financial Statements and Internal Conerol Over Financial Reporiing

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Omnicom Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as
of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes and financial statemenc schedule I1
(collectively, the consolidated financial statements). We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Ineernal Control - Integrated Framewark (2013} issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above presenc fairly, in all marerial respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Alse in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in fnternal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizarions of the Treadway Commission.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidared financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for
leases effective January I, 2019 due to the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s managemenc is responsible for these consolidated financial staternencs, for maincaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of che effectiveness of internal control over firancial repordag, included in
the accompanying Management Report on [nternal Conrrol Over Financial Reporting. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company'’s consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audics. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required o be independent with respect co the Company in accordance with che U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the conselidated financial statements are free of material misstarement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

Our audits of the consolidared financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due ro error or fraud, and performing precedures that respond ro
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as wel{ as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
thar a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A cotmpany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasenable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial staternents for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records thar, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that rransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thar receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or dimely decection of unauchaorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial staternencs.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal concrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstacernents. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to furure periods are subject to the risk that controls may becorne inadequare because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may dereriorate.

Critical Audit Marter

The cricical audic matter communicaced below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit commictee and ehar: (1) relates to accounts or
disclosures thar are material to the consolidared financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of a critical audic matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separarte
opinion on the critical audit macter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Evaluation of the sufficiency of audit evidence aver revenue recognition

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial starements, the Company provides an extensive range of advertising,
marketing and corporate communication services through its branded networks and agencies, which operate in all major
markets throughout the Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific regions. Consolidated revenues across ail disciplines and global
economic markets was $13,171.1 million for the year-ended December 31, 2020.

We identified the evaluation of the sufficiency of audit evidence over revenue recognition as a critical audit matter. Revenue is
recognized from conrracts with cuscomers that are based on statements of work which are typically separately negotated with
the client at a local agency level and local agencies execute tens of thousands of contracts per year. Evaluating the sufficiency
of audir evidence obuined required 2 high degree of auditor judgment because of the volume of contracts entered into across
the branded networks and agencies for which revenue was recorded. This included selecting the locations where testing would
be performed and the supervision and review of procedures performed at those locadions.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We applied auditor judgment ro
derermine the scope of agencies ar which we performed audit procedures and the nature and extent of the procedures
performed ar each location. At each agency where procedures aver revenue were performed, we (1) evaluared the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of certain internal controls over revenue recognition, including controls to check that local
agencies recorded revenue in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies and billings were recorded and presented in
accordance with client agreements, (2) examined a selection of contracts and assessed that the Company’s accounting policies
were applied consistently and accurately, and (3) assessed the recording of revenue by selecting certain transactions and
comparing the amounts recognized for consistency with the underlying documentation including contracts with customers.
We evaluated the sufficiency of audit evidence obtained by assessing the results of procedures performed over revenue

recognition.

/sf KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2002.

New York, New York
February 18, 2021
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OMNICOM GROUT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In milliens, excepr per share amounts)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ... o
Short-term IMVESTIMIEILIS, A0 COSL ...\ttt e e e e e et r e e e e e a it raernean e aanens
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $30.4 and $21.5 ............
Work in process ........ e e e

Other current assets

Total CUITEIT ASSEES | ot ittt i ie e et t e et e e e e e e em et ma e anaeaanns

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT at cost, less accumnulated depreciation of $1,156.7 and $1,142.8 ...
OPERATING LEASE RIGHT-OF-TUSE ASSETS & o\ttt iteaae s am e aeraetian e cannananeaias
EQUITY METHOD INVES TV ENTS .« ottt it et e et e e e e e et e et et et aencne e
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortization of $817.2and $759.2 ... ... ... . ...
O THER A E TS ittt ittt ettt et e e et et ettt e e e e rr e e aaes

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable ...
CUSEOMIET RAVAICES « o . o .ttt et ettt et et e e e e e
Current portion of debt ... o
Short-term debt ... i S N
Taxes payable ... ...
Orher current liabilities .. ... o e
Total Current Liabilities .. ....ovir it et e
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES « 0\ v v ttavee e mn e etttsttrsamemt e e e m e et e e et b baae et annas
LONG-TERM LIABILITY — OPERATING LEASES L.\ttt iet e i e oottt e veraesaanans
LONG- T ERM BT L.ttt it e et e e
DIEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES L\t itut vt c e et tietae e nvemtete e et a e et ia e ie e ienee s
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIiABILITIES (NOTE 18)
TeMPORARY EQUITY — REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS «tv vt viivinnrananenanaranens
Equity:
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 7.5 million shares authorized, none issued ..............
Commeon stock, $0.15 par value, 1.0 billion shares authorized, 297.2 million shares
issued, 215.0 million and 217.1 miliion shares outstanding ...
Additional paid-in capital ...
Retained earnings . ... oo i e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ...
Treasury stock, at cost, 82.2 million and 80.1 million shares .......... ... ... ...
Total Sharcholders’ Equity ...
Nonconerolling INTEIests ... .. ... it
Total EQUILY Lvoon i e

ToTAL LIaBHITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes to the consalidated financial statements are an integrat pare of these statements.
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December 31,

2020 2019
$ 35,6005 $ 4,305.7
— 36
7.813.4 7,829.0
1,101.2 1,257.6
_ 10750 _ 11888
15,5901 14,584.7
585.2 663.4
1,223.4 1,398.3
83.3 106.8
9,609.7 9,440.5
298.5 338.2
255.0 251.5
$27,647.2 $26,783.4
$11,513.0 $11,768.4
1,361.3 1,215.3
— 602.4
3.9 10.1
244.5 252.8
2,402.4 2,131.9
15,525.1 15,980.9
970.7 1,006.8
1,114.0 1,274.7
5,807.3 4,531.9
443.5 408.1
209.7 207.3
44.6 44.6
747.8 760.9
8,190.6 7,806.3
(1,213.8) (1,197.6)
(4,684.8) (4,560.3)
3.084.4 2,8539
492.5 519.8
3.576.9 33737
$27,647.2 $26,783.4




OMNICOM GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{In millions, except per share amouncs)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

RV ENUE o ettt ittt e et ettt ettt e e s e e $13,171.1 $14,953.7 $15,290.2
QOPERATING EXPENSES:

Salary and service COSTS ... i .ot e 9,572.8 10,972.2 11,306.1

Occupancy and other €osts ..o i 1,138.5 1,221.8 1,309.6

COVID-19 repositioning Costs .. ....... ..., 277.9 — —

Net gain on disposition of subsidiaries ..............ooo oo — — (178.4)

st OF SEIVICES .« o vttt e 10,989.2 12,194.0 12,437.3
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...l 360.5 405.9 455.4
Depreciation and amortization ............c i iiiii e 222.6 231.5 ﬂ
11,572.3 12,831.4 (13,1567

O P ERATING PROFIT oottt et e e e e 1,598.8 2,122.3 2,1335
INTEREST EXPENSE .« oottt e e e e e 221.8 244.3 266.4
INTEREST INCOME .ttt et et e ettt et e et e e 32.3 60.3 572
INcoME BeEroRe INCOME Taxes anD INCOME (Loss) From

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS 41t tet ittt et tiriairainnaarnn 1,409.3 1,938.3 1,924.3
INCOME TAX EXENSE oottt et e e e e e e e 381.7 504.4 492.7
Incoume (Loss) FroM EQUITY METHOD [NVESTMENTS o.vivniiieieianan.. (6.8) 2.0 8.9
INET INCOME « ettt ettt et et e e e e e e e e 1,020.8 1,435.9 1,440.5
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTED TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS ..ovnvvinnnnn.. 75.4 9G.8 1141
NET INCOME - OMNICOM GROUP INC. L1ttt eeiie e i e ere i $ 9454 $ 1,339.1 $ 1,326.4
INET INCOME PER SHARE - OMNICOM GROUP INC.;

Basic ot e et e e $4.38 $6.09 $5.85

Dibited .. $4.37 $6.06 $5.83

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial staterments are an integral parr of these statements.
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OMNICOM GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{In millions)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
INET INCOME &1t e e ettt e e ae s e et ee et e e e e e e e e iaa e iaaenae e nanes $1,020.8 $1,435.9
OTHER COMPREHENSTVE INCOME (LOss):
Cash flow hedge:
Amorrization of loss included in interest expense .............co.0oes 3.5 5.5
Treomme tax effect oo et e et (1.6} (1.6}
3.9 3.9
Defined benefit pension plans and postetnployment arrangements:
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) and prior service cost for the
period ..o e (29.5) (45.5)
Amortization of prior service cost and actuarial losses .............. e 13.9 8.7
Income tax effect ... i s 4.5 10.7
{11.1} (26.1}
Available-for-sale securities:
Reclassification ... ... i i e — —
Foreign currency wanslation adjustment ... (5.0) 74.9
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) vvvni vt caeees (12.2) 52.7
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Lot e i 1,008.6 1,488.6
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTED TO NONCONTROLLING [NTERESTS ..... 79.5 96.3
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - OMNICOM GROUP INC. ..., $ 929.1 $1,392.3

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial staternents are an integral part of these statemencs.
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$1,440.5

0.3

(319.9)

(295.7)
1,144.8
83.9
$1,060.9



OMNICOM GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(In millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Common Stock, shares. ... ... . s 297.2 297.2 297.2
Common Stock, parvalue . ..... ..o § 446 $ 446 $ 446
Additional Paid-in Capitai:
Beginning balance ............. 760.9 728.8 828.3
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests ........... ... 5.7 (22.3) (39.7)
Change in teMpPoTary quity ... .o.vveiviet ittt 3.3 38.2 7L.1
Share-based compensation ... ..o 71.0 72.5 70.5
Stock issued, share-based compensation ... (93.1) (56.3) (59.23
Ending balance ....... ... 0 o e 747.8 760.9 728.8
Rerained Earnings:
Beginning balance ... ... . 7,806.3 7,016.1 6,210.6
Cumulative effect of accounting changes ... — 22.3 23.6
N T 1ol e oL 945.4 1,339.1 1,326.4
Common stock dividends declared ... o (561.1) {571.2} (544.9)
Ending balance ... . o 8,190.6 7.806.3 7.016.1
Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Beginning balance ... (1,197.6) (1,228.5) {963.0}
Cumulative effect of accounting changes ......... ... ...l — (22.3) —
Other comprehensive income (10S5) ..o (16.2) 53.2 (265.5)
Ending balance ...... ... (1,213.8) (1,197.6) (1,228.5)
Treasury Stock:
Beginning balance ......... ..o {4,560.3) (4,013.9) (3,505.4)
Stock issued, share-based compensation ..........oooiviiiii i 97.5 63.8 72.8
Common stock repurchased ... ... ... i (222.00 {610.2) (581.3)
Eading balance ... .o .. (4,684.8) (4,560.3) (4,013.9
Shareholders Equity ....oovoi i 3,084.4 2,853.9 2,547.1
Noncontrolling Interests:
Beginning balance ......... ... 519.8 559.8 537.1
Cuarmnulative effect of accounting changes .................cooo — — 0.4
NELIIICOIME ittt e e et e 75.4 96.8 114.1
Orher comprehensive income (1055} ... ... iiiiic i e ee 4.1 (0.5) (30.2)
Dividends to nonconrolling intetests ...........cooiiiiiiii s (95.5) (97.3) (134.9)
Acquisition of nonconrrolling interests ...........oiiiiiiiiiiii (42.0) (54.4) (42.3)
Increase in noncenwolling interests from business combinations ............. 30.7 15.4 115.6
Ending balance ... ... 492.5 519.8 559.8
Total Bquity ..o s $ 3,576.9 $3,373.7 $ 3,106.9
Dividends Declared Per Comumon Share ... ... o i i, $2.60 $2.60 $2.40

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an inregral part of these staternents.
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OMNICOM GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions)

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Cash Flows from Operaring Activities:
NELIICOMIE ... o\ttt ettt e e e et e ee e et et e ettt e e e et ia e $1,020.8 $1,435.9  § 14405
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nert cash provided by operating acrivicies:
Depreciation and amortization of right-of-use assets ...........ooooviiii i 139.5 147.7 161.5
Amortization of intangible assets ...........o. o 83.1 83.8 102.5
Amortization of net deferred gain on ingerest rate swaps ........oooviiiiiii e, (8.1) (14.8) (12.9)
Share-based compensation ... ... 70.8 72,5 70.5
COVID-19 repositioning COSTS . ..oivuuuei it iiiae e e eieeaeaean 277.9 — —
Net gain from disposition of subsidiaries ......... ...l — — (178.4)
Impact of Tak ACT .. oo e — — 28.9
Oher, Ber Lo e e 109.7 5.8 29.2
Increase in operating capital ... 309 125.1 80.5
Net Cash Provided By Operating ACUVIHES .. ... \uuuuviee oo eeiaeiaaeenaen 1,724.6 1,856.0 1,722.3
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital EXpendITUTES . ..ottt (75.4) (102. 7 (195.7)
Acquisition of businesses and interests in affiliates, net of cash acquired ........... ... (67.1} (16.0) (350.4)
Proceeds from disposition of subsidiaries ......... ... o 3.2 79.4 308.4
Proceeds from sale of investmentsand other ...t 3.2 1.9 15.9
Net Cash Used [n Investing ACEVILES . ..otiei oo ae {136.1) (30.9) (221.8)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowings . ..o.vvv vt o e 1,186.6 1,112.4 —
Repayment of debr. .. ..o s (600.0) {900.0) —
Change in short-term debt ... o e (5.6} 2.0 —_
Dividends paid to common shareholders . .............oo oL (562.7) (564.3) (548.5)
Repurchases of common stock .......ooiiiiiiii (222.0) (610.2) (581.3)
Proceeds from stock plans ..... ... .o 4.1 6.5 13.0
Acquisition of additional noncontrolling interests .......... oo, {22.3) (L4 (43.6)
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interest shareholders ................. ... {95.5) 97.3) (134.9)
Payment of contingent purchase price obligations ..........................o (31.2) (64.6) (99.0)
[0 14 3T PN (59.8) (55.1) (46.8)
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities .............. ... . i (408.4) (1,222.0) (1,441.1)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalencs .............. ... 114.7 50.2 (203.0)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... e, 1,294.8 653.3 (143.6}
Cash and Cash Equivalents ac the Beginning of Year ............oiiiiiiin.. 4,305.7 3.652.4 3,796.0
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of Year .........ocooiiiiii i $5,600.5 $43057 $3,6524

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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OMNICOM GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The terms “Omnicom,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” each refer to Omnicom Group Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the
context indicates otherwise. The accompanying consolidated financial statemnents were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the Unired States, or U.S. GAAP or GAAD All intercompany balances and transacrions have been eliminated.

We prepare our financial statemencs inn conformity with U.S. GAAP and are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial stacements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates

and assumprions.
Risks and Uncertainties
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on our Business

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted our business and resulis of operations. Efforts to mitigare the impacr
of the pandemic, including government actions to reserict travel, limit public gatherings, shelter-in-place orders and mandatory
closures of businesses, resulted in many of our clients reducing or suspending their spending for our adverdsing, marketing and
corporate communication services. As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2020, revenue decreased $1,782.6 million, or
11.9%, compared to 2019, primarily due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
our revenue has been, and may continue to be, material, depending on several factors, including the potential for prolonged or
additional governmental actions to mitigate the effects of the pandemic in the near-term, and the intermediace and long-rerm

tmpact on marketers’ spending plans.

[n response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in the second quarter of 2020, we wok actions to align our cost
structure and reduce our workforce and facility requirements and conrinued the review of businesses for disposal and assecs for
impairment. As a result, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $277.9 million, which is comprised of incremental severance of
$150.0 million, real estate operating lease right-of-use, or ROU, asset and other asset impairment charges of $55.8 million, other
exit costs of $47.0 million and dispositions and other charges of $25.1 million.

fn addition, during 2020 we reduced salary and service costs by $162.6 million related to reimbursements and tax credits
undet government programs in several countries, including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act, or the CARES
Act, in the United States, the Kurzarbeit program in Germany, and other government reimbursement programs in the U.K.,
France, Canada and other jurisdictions.

The COVII-19 pandemic negatively impacted most of our clients’ businesses. As a result, clients have cut costs, including
postponing or reducing marketing communication expenditures. While certain indastries such as healshcare and pharmaceuticals,
technology and telecommunications, financial services and consumer products have been less affected, as long as the COVID-19
pandemic remains a threat, global economic conditions continue to be volatile and such uncerrainty cuts across all clients,
industries and geographies. Overall, while we have a diversified portfolio of service offerings, clients and geographies, demand for
our services can be expected to continue to be adversely affected as marketers reduce expenditures in the short term due to the
uncerrain impact of the pandemic on the global economy. We expect global economic performance and our performance to vary by
geography untl the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy moderates.

Although we have experienced a decrease in our cash flow from operating activities, we ook numerous proactive steps to
strengthen our liquidity and financial position that are intended to mitigate the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
our liquidicy. [n February 2020, we issued $600 million 2.45% Senior Notes due April 30, 2030, or the 2.45% Notes. In
March 2020, the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2.45% Notes were used to redeem the remaining $600 million principal
amount of our 4.45% Senior Notes due August 15, 2020, or the 2020 Notes. As a result, we have no notes maturing until May
2022. In April 2020, we issued $600 million of 4.20% Senior Notes due June 1, 2030, or the 4.20% Notes, and we entered ince a
new $400 million 364 day revolving credi facility, or the 364 Day Credit Facility. The 364 Day Credir Facility is in addition to our
existing $2.5 billion muld-currency revolving credic facility, or Credit Facility, which we extended to mature in February 2025. In
addition, in March 2620, we suspended our share repurchase activity.

The impact on the global economy and resulting decline in the price of our comimon siock was derermined to be a trigger
event in the first quarter of 2020 that required us to perform a review of our long-lived assets for impairment, primarily relared to
goodwill, amortizable intangible assers and equity method investments. We updated our review in June 2020, and the result of the
review of intangible assers and goodwill is discussed in Note 5. In the second quarter of 2020, we disposed of one of our equiry
method investments and recognized a non-cash after-tax charge of $3.9 million. In the fourth quarter of 2020 we recorded asset
impairment charges of $55.8 million associated with underperforming assets, which is included in salary and service costs.
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The impact of these actions on operating profit and income (loss) from equity method investments was {in millions}:

Increase {Decrease)

Income (Loss)
from Equity
Operating Method
Profit Investments
COVID-19 repOSIIONIIE COSLS .« vttt rat ettt itt ettt a e ee e e et st e s s o iian e eoee $(277.9)
{mpairment charges - underperforming assets .................... ... e et (55.8)
Impairment charge - equity method investment....... ... $3.9
Reimbursements and rax credits under government Programs ... ...ooivviivuriier s riiiiininirarsns 162.6
7LD $G3.9)

Accounting Changes
Adoption of ASU 2016-13

On January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Fnstruments - Crediz Losses: Measurement of Credis Losses on Financial
Inseruments, or ASU 2016-13, which changes the impairment model for most financial assets, including accounts receivable. The
new model uses a forward-looking expected loss method. Historically, the credit foss experience on our client billings has not
resulted in marerial bad debt expense. Accordingly, the adoption of ASU 2016-13 did nort have a significant impact on out financial
posttion, or on our results of operarions.

As a resulr of the adoprion of ASU 2016-13, we changed our accounting policy for allowance for doubdful accounts as follows:
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts related to potential losses that could arise due to our customers” inability to make
required paymencs. This allowance requires management to apply judgment in deriving the estimated reserve. In connection with
the estimate of our allowance, we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition, including information
related to their credit ratings obtained from independent third-party firms. If, as a resulc, we become aware that additional reserves
may be necessary, we perform additoenal analysis including, but not limited to, factors such as a customer’s creditworchiness, intent
and ability w pay and overall financial position. If the data we use to calculace the allowance for doubtful accounts does not timely
reflect the future ability to collect ourstanding receivables, including the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our clients’ credi,
additional provisions for doubtful accounts may be needed and our results of operations could be affected. For 2020, we recorded
bad debt expense of $23.5 million and increased our allowance for doubtful accounts w $30.4 million.

Adoption of ASU 2018-15
On January 1, 2020, we adopted ASU 2018-15, fnsangibles - Goodwill and Other, Internal-Use Software, or ASU 2018-15, which

aligns the accounting for implementation costs incurred in a doud computing arrangement that is a service contract with the
requirements for capiralizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. We adopted ASU 2018-150na
prospective basis for implementation costs for new or existing arrangements incurred on or after the adoption date. The adoption of ASU
2018-15 did not have a significant impact on our results of operations or financial position.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services (the
performance obligatien) in an amousnt chat reflects the considerartion we expect ro receive in exchange for those goads or services
{the transaction price), We measure revenue by estimating the transaction price based on the consideration specified in the clienc
arrangement. Revenue is recognized as the performance obligations are satisfied. Our revenue is primarily detived from the
planning and execution of advertising communications and marketing services in the following fundamental disciplines:
advertising, which includes creative advertising services and strategic media planning and buying services, customer relationship
management or CRM, which includes CRM Consumer Experience and CRM Execution & Support, public relations and
healthcare advertising, QOur client contracts are primarily fees for service on a rate per hour or per project basis. Revenue is recorded
net of sales, use and value added caxes.

Performance Obligations. [n substandally all our disciplines, the performance obligation is to provide advisory and
consulting services at an agreed-upon level of effort to accomplish the specified engagement. Our client contracts are comprised of
diverse arrangements involving fees based on any ane or a combination of the following: an agreed fee or rate per hour for the level
of effort expended by our employees; commissions based on the client’s spending for media purchased from third parties;
qualitative or quantitative incentive provisions specified in the contract; and reimbursement for third-party costs chac we are
required to include in revenue when we conurol the vendor services related to these costs and we act as principal. The transaction
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price of a contrac is allocated o each distinct performance obligarion based on its relative stand-alone selling price and is
recognized as revenue when, or as, the customer receives the benefit of the performance obligation. Clients typically receive and
consume the benefit of our services as they are performed. Substantially all our client contracts provide thar we are compensated for
services performed to date and allow for cancellation by either party on short notice, typically 90 days, withourt penalty.

Generally, our short-rerm contracts, which normally rake 30 to 90 days to complete, are performed by a single agency and
consist of a single performance obligation. As a result, we do not consider the underlying services as separate or distinct
performance obligations because our services are highly interrelated, occur in close proximity, and the integration of the various
components of a marketing message is essential o overall service. In certain of our long-term clienc contracts, which have a term of
up to one year, the performance obligation is a stand-ready obligation, because we provide a constant level of similar services over
the term of the contract, [n other long-term contracts, when our services are not a stand-ready obligation, we consider our services
distinct performance obligations and allocate the transacrion price to each separate performance obligation based on its stand-alone
setling price, including contracts for strategic media planning and buying services, which are considered to be multiple performance
obligations, and we allocase the transacrion price to each distincr service based on the staffing plan and the stand-alone selling price.
In substantially ali of our creative services contracts, we have distinct performance obligations for cur services, including certain
creative services contracts where we act as an agent and arrange, at the client’s direction, for third parties to perform studio

production efforts.

Revenue Recognition Methods. A substantial portion of our revenue is recognized over time, as the services are performed,
because the client receives and consumes the benefit of our performance throughour the contract period, or we create an asset with
no alternative use and are conrractually entitled to payment for our performance to date in the event the client terminates the
contract for convenience. For these client contracts, other than when we have a stand-ready obligarion to perform services, revenue
is recognized over time using input measures that correspond to the level of staff effort expended to satisfy the performance
obligation on a rate per hour or equivalent basis. For client contracts when we have a stand-ready obligation to perform services on
an ongoing basis over the life of the contract, typically for periods up to one year, where the scope of these arrangements is broad
and there are no significant gaps in performing the services, we recognize revenue using a time-based measure resulting in a
straight-line revenue recognition. From time to time, there may be changes in the client service requirements during the term of a
contract and the changes could be significant. These changes are rypically negotiated as new contracts covering the additional
requirements and the associated costs, as well as additional fees for the incremental work o be performed.

To a lesser extent, for cerrain other conrracts where our performance obligations are satisfied in phases, we recognize revenue
over time using certain output measures based on the measurement of the value transferred to the customer, including milestones
achieved. Where the transaction price or a portion of the transaction price is detived from commissions based on a percentage of
purchased media from chird parties, the performance obligation is not satisfied untl the media is run and we have an enforceable
contract providing a righr to payment. Accordingly; revenue for commissions is recognized at a point in time, typically when the
media is run, including when it is not subject to cancellation by the client or media vendor.

Principal vs. Agent. In substantially all our businesses, we incur third-party costs on behalf of clients, including direct costs
and incidental, or cut-of-pocket costs. Third-party direct costs incurred in connection with the creation and delivery of adverdsing
or marketing communication services include, among others: putchased media, studio production services, specialized talent,
includiag artists and other freelance labor, event marketing supplies, materials and services, promotional icems, market research and
third-party daca and other related expendicures. Qut-of-pocket costs include, among others: rransportation, hotel, meals and
telecommaunicaion charges incurred by us in the course of providing our services. Billings related to out-of-pocket costs are
included in revenue sirce we control rhe goods or services prior to delivery to the client.

However, the inclusion of billings related to third-party direct costs in revenue depends on whether we act as a principal or as
an agent in the client arrapgement. [n most of our businesses, including advertising, which also includes studio production efforts
and media planning and buying services, public relations, healthcare adverrising and mast of our CRM Consumer Experience
businesses, we act as an agent and arrange, at the client’s direction, for third parties to perform certain services. In these cases, we do
not control the goods or services prior to the ransfer to the client. As a result, revenue is recorded net of these costs, equal to the
amount rerained for our fee or commission,

In cerrain businesses we may act as principal when conrracting for third-party services on behalf of our clients. In our events
business and most of cur CRM Execution & Support businesses, including field marketing and cerrain specialty marketing
businesses, we act as principal because we control the specified goods or services before they are transferred o the cliencand we are
responsible for providing the specified goods or services, or we are responsible for directing and integraring third-party vendors to
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fulfill our performance obligation at the agreed upon contractual price. In such arrangements, we also take pricing risk under the
terms of the client coneract. In certain specialty media buying businesses, we act as principal when we control the buying process
for the purchase of the media and contract directly with the media vendor. In these arrangements, we assume the pricing risk under
the rerms of the client contract. When we act as principal, we include billable amourns related to chird-party costs in the
transaction price and record revenue over time at the gross amount billed, including out-of-pocket costs, consistent with the
manner that we recognize revenue for the underlying services contract. However, in media buying contracts where we act as
principal, we recognize revenue at a poinc in time, typically when the media is run, inciuding when it is not subject to cancellation
by the client or media vendor.

Variable Consideration. Some of our client arrangements include variable consideration provisions, which include
performance incentives, tiered commission structures and vendor rebates in certain markers outside of the United States. Variable
consideration is estimated and included in roral consideration at contract inception based on either the expected value method or
the most likely outcome method. These estimates are based on historical award experience, anticipared performance and other
factors known ar the rime. Performance incentives are typically recognized in revenue over time. Variable consideration for our
media businesses in cerrain incernational markets includes rebate revenue and is recognized when it is probable that the media will
be run. including when it is not subject to cancellation by the client. In addition, when we receive rebates or credics from vendors
for transactions entered into on behalf of clients, they are remitred to the clients in accordance with contractual requirements or
retained by us based on the terms of the client contract or local law. Amounts passed on to clients are recorded as a liabilicy and
amounts rerained by us are recorded as revenue when earned, typically when the media is run.

Operating Expenses. Operating expenses include cost of services, selling, general and administrative expenses, or SG&A, and
depreciation and amorrization. We measure cost of services in two distinct categories: salary and service costs and eccupancy and
other costs. As a service business, salary and service costs make up the vast majority of our operaring expenses and substantially all
these costs comprise the essential components directly linked to the delivery of our services. Salary and service costs include
employee compensation and benefits, freelance labor and direct service costs, which include third-party supplier costs and
client-related rravel costs. Occupancy and other costs consist of the indirect costs related 1o the delivery of our services, including
office rent and other occupancy costs, equipment rent, rechnology costs, general office expenses and other expenses. SG&A
expenses primatily consist of third-party marketing costs, professional fees and compensation and benefits and occupancy and ocher
costs of our corporate and execurive offices, which includes group-wide finance and accounting, treasury, legal and governance,
human resource oversight and similar costs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and highly liquid inerest-bearing time
deposits wich original maturites of three moaths or less. Due o the short-rerm nature of these investments, carrying value
approximates fair value. We have a policy governing counterparty credit risk for financial instirutions that hold our cash and cash
equivalents and we have deposit limits for each instirution.

Short-Term Investrnents. Short-term investments include interest-bearing time deposits with marurities of less than twelve
months. Shert-term investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Work in Process. Work in process represents accrued costs incurred on behalf of customers, including media and production
costs, and fees and other third-party costs that have not yet been billed. Media and production costs are billed during the
production process in accordance with the terms of the client contract. Substantially afl unbilled fees and costs will be billed within
the next 30 days.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are carried ax cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of
the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives range from seven to ten years for furniture and three ro five
years for equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life of the asset. Assets under finance leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Equity Method Investments, Investments in companies where we exercise significant influence over the operating and
financial policies of the investee and own less than 50% of the equity are accounted for using the equity method. Our
proporionate share of the net income or loss of equity method investments is included in results of operations and any dividends
received reduce the carrying value of the investment. The excess of the cost of our investment over our proportionate share of the
fair value of the net assets of the investee ar the acquisition date is recognized as goodwill and included in the carrying amount of
the investment. Goodwill in the equity method investments is not amortized. Gains and losses from changes in our ownership
incerests are tecorded in results of operations until control is achieved. In circumstances where a change in our ownership interest
resules in obtaining control, the existing carrying value of the investment is remeasured to the acquisition date fair value and any
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gain or loss is recognized in results of operations. We periodically review the carrying value of the equity method investments to

determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in carrying value. A variety of facrors are considered when determinin
porary Ty

if a decline in carrying value is other-than-temporary, including the financial condition and business prospects of the investee, as

well as our investment intent.

Marketable Equity Securities. Matketable equity securities are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized

in results of operations.

Non-Marketable Equity Securities. Non-marketable equity securities do not have a readily determinable fair value and are
measured at cost, less any impairment, and are adjusted for observable changes in fair value from transactions for identical or

sirnilar securities of the same issuer.

Goodwill and Intangible Assers. Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the ner assets
acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is periodically reviewed for impairment. Intangible assets comprise customer relationships,
including the related customer contracts and trade names, and purchased and internally developed software and are amortized over
their estimated useful lives ranging from five to twelve years. We consider a number of factors in determining the useful lives and
amortization method, including the pattern in which the economic benefits are consumed, as well as trade name recognition and

customer attrition. There is no estimated restdual value for the intangible assets.

We review the carrying value of goodwill for impairment annually at June 30 and whenever events or circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable. The impairment evaluation compares the fair value of cach reporting unis, which we
idendfied as our five agency networks, to its carrying value, including goodwill. If cthe fair value of the reporting unit is equal to or
greater than its carrying value, goodwill is not impaired. Goodwill is impaired when the carrying value of the reporting uniz exceeds
its fair value. Goodwill is written down to its fair value through a non-cash expense recorded in results of operations in the peried

the impairment is identified.

We idendfied our regional reporting units as components of our operating segments, which are our five agency networks. The
regional reporting units and pracrice areas of each agency network monitor the performance and are responsible for the agencies in
their region. The regional reporting unics report to the segment managers and facilitate the administrative and logistical
requirements of our client-centric strategy for delivering services to clients in their regions. We have concluded that, for each of our
operating segtnents, theit regional reporting units had similar economic characteristics and should be aggregared for purposes of
testing goodwill for impairment at the operating segment level. Our conclusion was based on a detailed analysis of the aggregation
criteria set forth in FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting, and the guidance set forth in FASB ASC Topic 350, fnuangibles -
Goodwill and Other. Consistent with our fundamental business strategy, the agencies within our regional reporting units serve
similar clients in similar industries, and in many cases the same clients. The main economic components of each agency are
employee compensation and related costs and direct service costs and occupancy and other costs, which include rent and occupancy
costs, technology costs that are generally limited to personal computers, servers and off-the-shelf software and other overhead costs.
Finally, the expected benefits of our acquisitions are typically shared by multiple agencies in various regions as they work together to
integrate the acquired agency into our client service strategy. We use the following valuation methodologies to determine the fair
value of our reporting units: (1) the income approach, which utilizes discounted expected fucure cash flows, (2) comparative market
participant multiples of EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization} and (3) when available,
consideration of recenc and similar acquisition transactions.

Based on the results of the annual impairment test, we concluded thar at June 30, 2020 and 2019 goodwill was not impaired
because either the fair value of each reporting unit was substantially in excess of its respective net book value, or for reporting units
with a negative book value, fair value of assers exceeds total assets. Subsequent to the annual impairment test of goodwill ar June 30,
2020, there have been no events or circumstances thart triggered the need for an interim impairment test.

Debt Issuance Costs. Debrt issuance costs are capitalized and amortized in interest expense over the life of the related debt
and are presented as a reduction o the carrying amount of deb.

Temporary Equity - Redeemable Noucentrolling Interests. Owners of noncontrolling equity interests in some of our
subsidiaries have the right in certain circumstances to require us to purchase all or a portion of their equity interests at fair value as
defined in the applicable agreements. The intent of the parties is to approximate fair value at the time of redemption by using a
multiple of earnings thac is consistenc with generally accepred valuation practices used by market participants in our industry. These
contingent redemption rights are embedded in the equity security at issuance, are not free-standing instruments, do not represent a

de facto financing and ate not under our control.
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Treasury Stock. Repurchases of our common stock are accounted for at cost and are recorded as treasury stock. Reissued
wreasury stock, primarily in connectdon with share-based compensation plans, is accounced for at average cost. Gains or losses on
reissued treasury stock arising from the difference berween the average cost and the fair value of the award are tecorded in
additional paid-in capital and do not affect results of operations.

Business Combinations. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method and accordingly, the assets

acquired, including identified intangible assets, liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling incerest in the acquired business are
recorded at acquisition dare fair value. In circumstances where control is obrtained and less than 100% of a business is acquired,
goodwill is recorded as if 100% were acquired. Acquisition-related costs, including advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other
costs are expensed as incurred. Certain acquisitions include an inital payment at closing and provide for future additonal
contingent purchase price payments (earn-outs), which are recorded as a liabiliry ar the acquisition date fair value using the
discount rate in effect on the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the liability are recorded in results of
operations, Amounts carned under the contingent purchase price arrangements may be subject to a maximum and payment is not
contingent upon future employment. The results of operations of acquired businesses are induded in results of operadons from the
acquisition date.

Nencontrolling Interests. Noncontrolling interests represent equity interests in certain subsidiaries held by third parties.
Noncontrolling interests are presented as a component of equity and the proportionate share of net income atrsibuted o the
noncontroiling interests is recorded in results of operations. Changes in nonconrrolling interests that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for in equity. Gains and losses resulting from a loss of control are recorded in results of operations.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions. Substantially all of our foreign subsidiaries use their local currency as their
functional currency. Assets and liabilicies are translated into U.S. Dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheer date and revenue
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Net foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recorded in results of operations. In 2020 and 2019,
we recorded losses of $4.8 million and $11.2 miilion, respectively, and in 2018, we recorded gains of $2.1 million.

Share-Based Compensation. Share-based compensation for restricted stock and stock option awards is measured at the grant
date fair value. The fair value of restricted stock awards is determined and fixed using the closing price of cur common stock on the
grant dawe and is recorded in additional paid-in capital. The fair value of stock option awards is determined using the Black-Scholes
option vafuation model. For awards with a service only vesting condition, compensation expense is recognized on a straighr-line
basis over the requisize service period. For awards with a performance vesting conditon, compensation expense is recognized on a
graded-vesting basis. Typically, all sharc-based awards are sectled with treasury stock. See Note 10 for additional information
regarding our specific award plans,

Salary Continuation Agreements. Arrangements with certain present and former employees provide for continuing
payments for periods up to ten years after cessation of full-time employmenc in consideration for agreement by the employees not
to compete with us and to render consulting services during the postemployment period. Such payments, which are subject to
certain limitations, including our operating performance during the postemployment period, represent the fair value of the services
rendered and are expensed in such periods.

Severance. The liabilicy for one-time termination benefits, such as severance pay or benefit payouts, is measured and
recognized at fair value in the period the liability is incurred. Subsequent changes to the liability are recognized in results of
operations in the period of change.

Defined Benefir Pension Plans and Postemployment Arrangements. The funded status of our defined benefit plans is
recorded as an asset or liability. Funded status is the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit obligation at
December 3!, the measurement date, determined en a plan-by-plan basis. The benefit obligation for the defined benefit plans is
the projected benefir obligation ("PBO"), which represents the actuarial present value of benefits expected to be paid upon
retiremnent based on estimated future compensation levels. The fair value of plan assets represents the current market value.
Overfunded plans where the fair value of plan assets exceeds the benefit obligation are aggregated and recorded as a prepaid pension
asset equal to the excess. Underfunded plans where the benefir obligation exceeds the fair value of plan assets are aggregated and
recorded as a liability equal to the excess. The benefit obligation liability for our postemployment arrangements is the PBO and
these arrangements are not funded. The current portion of the benefic obligation for the defined benefit plans and postemployment
arrangements, which represenss the actuarial presenc value of benefits payable in the next twelve months that exceed the fair value
of plan assets, is recorded in other current liabilities and the long-term porction is recorded in long-term liabilices.
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Deferred Compensation. Some of our subsidiaries have deferred compensation arrangements with certain executives thae
provide for payments over varying rerms upon retirement, cessation of employment or death. The cost of these arrangements is

accrued during the employee’s service period.

Income Taxes. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under chis method, income tax expense
is recognized for the amount of taxes payable for the current period and the deferred taxes recognized during the peried. Deferred
income taxes reflect the remporary difference between assets and liabilities thac are recognized for financial reporting purposes and
income tax purposes and are recorded as noncurrent. Deferred income taxes are measured using the enacted tax rates that are
assumed to be in effect when the differences reverse. Valuation allowances are recorded where it is more likely than noc thatall ora
portion of a deferred rax asset will ot be realized. [n assessing the need for a valuatien allowance, we evaluate factors such as prior
earnings history, expected future earnings, carry-back and carry-forward periods and tax strategies thaz could potentially enhance
the likelihood of the realization of a deferred tax asser.

Interest and penalties refated to tax positions taken in our tax returns are recorded in income tax expense. We record a
liability for uncertain tax positions that reflects the treacment of certain tax positions taken in our tax returns, or planned to be
taken in future tax returns, which have not been reflected in income tax expense. Until these positions are sustained by the taxing
authorities or the statute of limitations concerring such issues lapses, we do not generally recogpize the tax benefits resulting from
such positions.

Net Income Per Share. Basic net income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares ourstanding
during the period. Diluted ner income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, plus the
dilutive effect of commen share equivalents, which include outstanding stock options and restricted stock awards.

Leases. Ac the inception of a contract we assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if any one of the following criteria are met: the lease transfers ownership of the asset by the end of the lease cerm, the [ease
contains an option to purchase the asset that is reasonably certain to be exercised, the lease term is for a major parr of the remaining
aseful life of the asser or the present value of the lease payments equals or exceeds substantially all of the fair value of the asser. A
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not meet any one of the criteria. Substantially all our operating leases are leases for
office space, and substantially all our finance leases are leases for office furniwre and technology equipment.

For all leases a ROU asset and lease liability are recognized at the lease commencement date. The lease liability represents the
present value of the lease payments under the lease. The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which includes che initial lease
liability, phus any initial direct costs incurred, consisting mainly of brokerage commissions, less any lease incentives received. All
ROU assecs are reviewed for impairment. The lease liability is initially measured as the present value of the lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, our secured incremental
borrowing rate for the same term as the underlying lease. For real estate and certain equipment operating leases, we use our secured
incremental borrowing rate. For finance leases, we use the rate implicic in the lease or our secured incremental borrowing rare if the

tmplicit lease rate cannot be determined.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilicy comprise: the fixed noncancelable lease payments, payments
for optional renewal periods where it is reasonably certain the renewal period will be exercised, and payments for early termination
options unless it is reasonably certain the lease will not be terminated early. Lease components, including fixed payments for real
estate taxes and insurance for office space leases, are included in the measurement of the initial lease liability.

Office space leases may contain variable lease payments, which include payments based on an index ot rate. Variable lease
paymenes based on an index or rate are initially measured using the index or rate in effect at lease commencement. Additional
payments based on the change in an index or rate, or payments based on a change in our portion of the operating expenses,
including real estate taxes and insurance, are recorded as 2 period expense when incurred. Lease modifications result in
remeasurermnent of the lease liability.

Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease expense may include variable lease
payments incurred in the period that were not included in the initial lease liabiliry. Finance lease expense consists of the
amortization of the ROU asset on a straight-line basis over the lease term and interest expense determined on an amertized cost
basis. Finance lease payments are allocated between a reduction of the lease liability and incerest expense.
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Concentration of Credit Risk, We provide advertising, marketing and corporate communications services to several
thousand clients that operate in nearly every industry sector of the global economy and we grant credit to qualified clients in the
normal course of business. Due to the diversified nature of our client base, we do not believe thar we are exposed to a concentration
of credit risk as our largest client accounted for 3.4% of revenue in 2020.

Dertvative Financial nstruments. All derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, are recorded at fair value. Derivatives qualify for hedge accounting if: the hedging instrument is designated as a hedge,
the hedged exposure is specifically identifiable and exposes us to risk, and a change in fair value of the derivative financial
instrument and an oppesite change in the fair value of the hedged exposure have a high degree of correlation. The method of
assessing hedge effectiveness and measuring hedge ineffectiveness is formally documented. Hedge effectiveness is assessed, and
hedge ineffectiveness is measured at least quarterly chroughour the designated hedge period. If the derivative is a hedge, depending
on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative will either be offset against the change in fair value of the
hedged asset, liability or firm commitment through results of operations or recognized in other comprehensive income until the
hedged item is recognized in results of operations. We do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. Using derivatives
exposes us to the risk chat counterparties to the derivative contracts will fail to meer their contractal obligations. We manage that
risk through careful selection and ongoing evaluation of the counterparty financial institutions based on specific minimum credic
standards and other factors.

Fair Value. We apply the fair value measurement guidance in FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Vilue Measurements and Disclosures,
for our financial assets and iiabilities that are required to be measured ar fair value and for our nonfinancial assets and liabilities that
are not required to be measured ar fair value on a recurring basis, which includes goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets.
The measurement of fair value requires the use of techniques based on observable and unobservable inpurts. Observable inputs
reflect market daea obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect our market assumptions. The inputs
crearte the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markers for similar assets or liabilites; unadjusted quoted prices for idendcal
assets or liabiliries in markets that are nort active; and model-derived valuations with observable inputs.

* Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

We use unadjusted quoted markert prices to determine the fair value of our financial assets and liabtlities and classify such
items in Level 1. We use unadjusted quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and model-derived
valuations and classify such items in Level 2.

In determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, we consider certain market valuation adjustments that market
participants would consider in determining fair value, including: counterparty credic risk adjustments applied to financial assets and
liabilities, taking into account the actual credit risk of the counterparry when valuing assets measured ac fair value and credir risk
adjustments applied to reflect our credit risk when valuing liabilities measured at fair value.

Reclasstfications. Cerrain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial information to conform to the current
year presentation,

3. Revenue
Nature of our services

We provide an extensive range of advertising, marketing and corporate communications services through various client-centric
networks that are organized to meet specific client objectives. Qur branded networks and agencies operate in ail major markets and
provide services in the following fundamental disciplines: advertising, customer relationship management, or CRM, which includes
CRM Consumer Experience and CRM Execudien & Support, public relations and healtheare. Advertising includes creative
services, as well as strategic media planning and buying and dara analytics services. CRM Consumer Experience includes
Omnicom’s Precision Marketing Group and digital/direct agencies, as well as our brand consulring, shopper marketing and
experiential marketing agencies. CRM Execution & Support includes field marketing, sales support, merchandising and point of
sale, as well as other specialized marketing and custom communications services. Public relations services include corporate
communications, crisis management, public affairs and media and media relations services. Healthcare includes advertising and
media services to global healthcare clients. At the core of all our services is the ability to create or develop a client’s markerting or
corporate communications message into content that can be delivered to a target audience across different
communications mediums.
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Primarily as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic (see Note 1), our revenue decreased in all our major markerts and all
disciplines except for healthcare, as compared to the prior year periods.

Revenue by discipline was {in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
AdVETTSINE .1t e $ 7.369.0 § 84838 § 82810
CRM Consumer EXPerience .........oouuiii it iaini i as 2,175.7 2,577.9 2,629.6
CRM Execution & SUPPOIT ..\t s e 1,133.5 1,361.2 1,891.6
PUblic Relations .. oo vttt e e e 1,301.8 1,378.9 1,435.1
Healtheare ... o 1,191.1 1,151.9 1,0529

$13,171.1  $14,933.7  $15,290.2

Eeonomic factors affecting our revenue

Global economic conditions have a direct impact on our revenue. Adverse economic conditions pose a risk that our cliencs
may reduce, postpone or cancel spending for our services, which would impact our revenue (see Note 1),

Revenue in our principal geographic markets was (in millions}):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Americas:

North AmMErica o oottt et e e e e $ 7577.% % 8,478.8 8§ B8,4425%

LAt AMEIICA oottt ettt e e e e 275.4 403.4 £57.5
EMEA:

S o P 3,607.7 4,107.4 4,375.4

Middle East and Africa ..... e e e e 207.2 314.6 304.4
ASIa-PaCHIC L.ttt i e e e 1,503.7 1,649.5 1,710.4

$13,171.1  $14953.7  $15,290.2

The Americas is comprised of North America, which includes the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico, and Latin America,
which includes South America and Mexico. EMEA is comprised of Eurepe, the Middle East and Alftica. Asia-Pacific includes
Australia, Greater China, India, Japan, Korea, New Zealand, Singapore and other Asian countries. Revenue in the United States in
2020 and 2019 was $7,186.1 million and $8,033.0 million, respectively.

Contract assets and Labilities

Wark in process includes coniract assets, unbilled fees and costs, and media and production costs. Contract liabilities
primarily consist of customer advances. Work in process and contract liabilities were (in millions):
December 31,

2020 2019
Work in process:
Contracr assets and unbilled fees and costs ... i ie $ 501.1 § 0689.2
Media and prodUuction COSES - .. ...\ ev ittt e e 600.1 568.4

1,101.2 $1,257.6
Contract liabilities:
U TOIIET AVAIICES . ettt ittt et e vt et e et e e e e e e e et e e $1,361.3 $1,215.3

Work in process represents accrued costs incurred on behalf of customers, including media and production costs, and fees and
other third-parry costs that have not yet been billed. Media and production costs are bitled during the producrion process in
accordange with the terms of the client contract. Conrracr assets primarily include incentive fees, which are not material and will be
billed to clients in accordance with the terms of the cliene contracr. Substantially all unbilled fees and eosts will be billed within the
next 30 days. The contract liability primarily represents advance billings to customers in accordance with the terms of the client
contracts. primarily for the reimbursement of third-party costs that are generally incurred in the near rerm. No impairment losses to
the contract assets were recorded in 2020 and 2019.
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4. Net Income per Share

The computations of basic and dilured ner income per share were {in millions, except pet share amounts):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018

Net income available for commeon shares:

Net income - Qmnicom Group Inc. .........oviiiii i $945.4 $1,339.1 $1,326.4
Weighted average shares:

BasIC o e e e 215.6 219.8 226.6

Diludve stock options and restricted shares .. ............... oL 0.6 1.1 1.0

0 216.2 220.9 227.6
Anti-dilutive stock options and restricted shares ............ ... oL 0.8 — 1.0
Net income per share - Cmaicom Group Inc.:

5 $4.38 $6.09 $5.85

Diluted . oo e $4.37 $6.06 $5.83

5. Business Combinations

Acquisitions completed in 2020 increased goodwill $82.4 million. In addition, during 2020, we acquired addidonal equity incerests in
certain majority owned subsidiaries, which are accounted for as equity ransactons, and no addidenal goodwill was recorded. None of the
acquisitions in 2020, either individually or in the aggregate, was material to our results of operations or finandial position.

The evaluation of potential acquisitions is based on various factors, induding specialized know-how, reputation, geographic coverage,
competitive position and service offerings, as well s our experience and judgment. Our acquisition strategy is focused on acquiring the expernse
of an assembled wordoree in order to continue to build upon the core capabilides of our strategic business platforrms and agency brands, dirough
the expansion of their geographic area or their service capabilicies to betrer serve our clients. Cetrain acquisitions include an initial payment at
closing and provide for furure additonal contingent purchase price payments (earn-outs), which are derived using the performance of the
acquired company and are based on predetermined formulas. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, condngent purchase price obligations were
$71.9 million and $107.7 million, respectively; of which $32.1 million and $29.5 million, respectively, are included in other current liabilities.

For each acquisition, we undertake a deniled review to identify other incangible assets thar are required to be valued separately. We
use several market participant measurements to determine fair value. This approach includes consideration of similar and recent
transactions, as well as utilizing discounted expected cash flow methodologies, and when available and as appropriate, we use comparative
market muldples to supplement our analysis. As is rypical for most service businesses, a substantial portion of the intangible asset value we
acquire is the specialized know-how of the workforce, which is treated as part of goodwill and is not valued separasely. A significant
porton of the identifiable intangible assets acquired is derived from customer reladonships, including the related customer contracts, as
weil as trade namnes, One of the primary drivers in executing our acquisition strategy is the existence of, or the ability to, expand our
existing client refadenships. The expected benefits of our acquisitions are typically shared across multiple agencies and regions.
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6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets were (in millions):

December 31,

2020 2019
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Goodwill ...... ... $10,141.6 $(531.9 39,609.7 $9.957.5 $517.0 $9,440.5
[ncangible assets:
Purchased and internally developed
software ... 5 3776 $(307.0) $§ 706 $ 3507 - ${(288.5) $ 622
Customer related and other ............. 738.1 (510.2) 227.9 746.7 (470.7) . 276.0

31,1157 $(817.2) § 2985 $1,097.4 $(759.2) - § 3382

Changes in goodwill were (in millions): .
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
JAMATY | o e e $9,440.5 $9,384.3
ACQUESTTONS «\ .ttt ittt ittt tet ittt et et e e et e maa bbb aa e s e e e e 50.8 5.5
Nonconrrolling interests in acquired businesses ...t 316 17.2
Contingent purchase price obligations of acquired businesses ..........covvvir i — 24.7
DISPOSILOMS &1ttt ettt ittt s et ettt ettt ettt e e e st s it s e et et (18.8) (19.13
Foreign currency mranslation ... ... e 105.6 27.9
December 31 . e $9,609.7 $9,440.5

The decline in our stock price at the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020 was determined to be a trigger event
requiring us to perform an impairment review of our goodwill. We concluded our goodwill was not impaired. At June 30, 2020, we
updated our first quarter 2020 assessment and performed our annual goodwill impairmenc test. Our assumprions reflect the
econemic conditions in light of the impacr of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, including downward adjusement to our
revenue and earnings assumptions, reducing our long-term growth rate to 3.0%, compared to 3.5% in the prior year, increasing the
weighted average cost of capital, or WACC, for each reporting unit to between 10.6% and 10.8%, compared 10 berween 10.1%
and 10.6% in the prior year, and limiting our estimare of our equity valie to reflect the decline in our share price thar occurred
during the first half of 2020. In addicion, the assumprions reflect che expected cost reductions from our severance and real estate
repositioning actions (see Notes 1 and 13). Based on the results of the impairment test, we concluded thar at June 30, 2020 our
goodwill was not impaired because the fair value of each of our reporting units was significantly in excess of its respective carrying
value, and for our reporting units with negarive book value, we concluded that the fair value of their total assets was in excess of
book value. We performed a sensitivity analysis of our assumptions, including a 1 percent change o our WACC or long-term
growth assumptions. The tesults of the sensitvity analysis confirmed our conclusion that goodwill at June 30, 2020 was not
impaired. If economic conditions further deteriorate from June 30, 2020, including further declines in GDP estimates, our share
price, increased interest rates or other factors, our goodwill could becomne impaired, and we could incur a non-cash charge against
our earnings. The minimum decline in fair value that one of our reporting units would need o experience in order to fail the

goodwill impairment test was approximately 20%.

In addition, we evaluated our customer related and other intangible assets for impairment. We compared the carrying value of
these assets against the undiscounted cash flows expected ro be generated from the assets, and we concluded thart at June 30, 2020,
our customer related and ether intangible assets were not impaired.

There wete no events through December 31, 2020 that would change our assumptions and resulting impairment assessments.
No goodwill impairment losses were recorded in 2020 or 2019, and there are no accumulated goodwill impairment losses.
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7. Debt
Credit Facilities

On February 14, 2020, we amended our $2.5 billien Credit Facilicy to extend its term to February 14, 2025. To swrengthen
our liquidity position to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic (sez Note 1), on April 3, 2020, we entered into the
$400 million 364 Day Credir Facility, maturing on April 2, 2021, We have uncommirted credit lines aggregating $1.1 billion and
the ability to issue up to $2 billion of cornmercial paper. These facilities provide additional liquidity sources for operating capital
and general corperate purposes. At December 31, 2020, there were no outstanding commercial paper issuances or borrowings
under the Credit Facility, the 364 Day Credit Facility or the uncommited credir lines.

The Credit Facility and the 364 Day Credit Facility each contain a financial covenant chat requires us to maintain a Leverage
Ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated EBTTDA {earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and
non-cash charges) of no more than 3.5 times for the most recently ended 12-month period. On Ocrober 26, 2020, we amended
the Credir Facility and the 364 Day Credit Facilicy to provide additlonal flexibility with respect to the Leverage Ratio covenant.
The amendments increase the maximum Leverage Ratio to 4.0 times through December 31, 2021 for the Credit Agreement and to
4.0 times through the maturity for the 364 Day Credit Facility. At December 31, 2020, we were in compliance with these
covenants as our Leverage Ratio was 3.0 times. The Credic Facility and the 364 Day Credir Facility do not limit our ability to
declare or pay dividends or repurchase our common stock.

Short-Term Debt

Ar December 31, 2020 and 2019, short-term debrt of $3.9 miilion and $10.1 million, respectively, represented bank overdrafts
and short-term borrowings primarily of our international subsidiaries. The weighted average interest rate was 3.5% and 2.5%,
respectively. Due o the short-term nature of this debt, carrying value approximates fair vahue.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt was (in millions):

December 31,

2020 2019

4.45% Senior Notes due 2020 .. .ot i e i e 3 — $ 600.0
3.625% Senior Notes due 202 ..o 1,250.0 1,250.0
3,65% Senior Notes due 2024 oo vt 750.0 750.0
3.60% Senior Nates die 2026 ... ittt e 1,400.0 1,400.0
€500 Million 0.80% Sertior Notes due 2027 ...t e e e 611.5 561.4
2.45% Senior Notes due 2030 ..o oot i e 600.0 —
4.20% Senior Notes due 2030 ..o ovu e iir i i i m e e 600.0 —
€500 Million 1.40% Senior Notes due 2031 ... i, e, 6115 561.4
5,823.0 5,122.8

Unamortized premitm (discount), net . .....ooooue e i (5.1) 0.8
Unamortized debt ISSUanee CostS « ...yt ee it it e e s (27.0) {20.0)
Unamortized deferred gain from settlement of interest rate swaps ..., ... e 16.4 30.7
5,807.3 5,134.3
CUTTENE POLLIOM .. .o eet ittt e ettt et e e e e et e e e e e e — (602.4)
Long-termidebe ... o $5.807.3 $4,531.9

On February 19, 2020, we issued $600 million of the 2.45% Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance, afrer deducting the
underwriting discount and offering expenses, were $392.6 million and were used to redeem the remaining $600 million principal
amount of the 2020 Notes on March 23, 2020. In connection with the redemption of the 2020 Notes, we recorded a loss on
extinguishment of 7.7 million in interest expense. Foliowing the redemprion, there were no 2020 Notes outstanding.

Additionally, co swrengthen our liquidity and financial position and to mitigate the potenrial impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, on April 1, 2020, we issued $600 million of the 4.20% Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance, after deducting, che
underwriting discount and offering expenses, were $592.5 million and were used for general corporate purposes, which included
working capital expenditures, fixed asser expenditures, acquisitions, repayment of commercial paper and short-term debr,
refinancing of other debe, or other capiral transactions.
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The 2.43% Notes and the 4.20% Notes are senior unsecured obligations of Omnicom that rank equal in right of payment
with all existing and future unsecured senior indebredness.

Omnicom and its wholly owned finance subsidiary. Omnicom Capiral Inc., or OCI, are co-obligors under the senior notes
due 2022, 2024 and 2026. These notes are a joint and several liability of Omnicom and OCI, and Omnicom uncondidenally
guarantees OCI's obligations with respect to the notes. OCI provides funding for our opetations by incurring debt and lending the
proceeds to our operating subsidiaries. OCI’s assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents and intercornpany loans made to
our operating subsidiaries, and the related interest receivable. There are no restrictions on the ability of OCI or Omnicom to obtain
funds from our subsidiaries through dividends, loans or advances. Such notes are senior unsecured obligations thar rank equal in
right of payment with all existing and future unsecured senior indebredness.

Omnicom and OCI have, jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of Omnicom Finance
Holdings plc, or OFHP a U.K.-based wholly owned subsidiary of Omnicom, with respect to the Euro denominated notes due
2027 and 2031. OFHP’s assets consist of its investments in several wholly owned finance companies that function as treasury
centers, which provide funding for various operating companies in Europe, Brazil, Australia and other countries in the Asia-Pacific
region. The finance companies’ assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and intercompany loans that they make or have made to
the operating companies in their respective regions and the refated interest receivable. There are no restrictions on the ability of
Omnicom, OCI or OFHP to obtain funds from their subsidiaries through dividends, loans or advances. The Euro denominated
notes and the related guarantees are senior unsecured obligations that rank equal tn right of payment with all existing and furure
unsecured senior indebredness of OFHP and each of Omnicom and OCI, respectively.

At December 31, 2020, the maturities of our long-rerm debc were (in millions):

L 17/ AN 3 —_
7 AN 1,250.0
1 X —
. S 750.0
102 —
B T £ O 3,823.0
Total principal PAyIEnts . .... . oi et e e e e e $5,823.0
Interest Expense
Interest expense is camposed of {in millions):
Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Long-termdebt. ... o $186.4 $194.6 $201.6
Commercial paper ... ... 0.9 6.5 9.6
TNEEEEST FATE SWADS L.ttt it o et ottt e et e et ie ettt et — 6.1 5.2
Amortization of deferred gain on interest rate swaps ...l {8.1) (14.8} {12.9)
T 6.5 4.7 5.6
Pension and oTher INteTesT . ... .. ue ettt e aar e e e e aeaaans 36.1 47.2 57.3
221.8 $244.3 $266.4

8. Segment Reporting

Our five branded agency networks operate in the advertising, marketing and corporate communications services industry, and
are organized into agency networks, virtual client networks, regional reporting units and operating groups or practice areas. Our
networks, virtual client networks and agencies increasingly share clients and provide clients with integrated services. The main
economic components of each agency are employee compensation and related costs and direct service costs and occupancy and
other costs which include rent and occupancy costs, technology costs and other overhead expenses. T'herefore, given these
similarities, we aggregate our operating segments, which are our five agency networks, into one reporting segment.

The agency networks’ regional reporting units comprise three principal regions: the Americas, EMEA and Asia-Pacific. The
regional reporting units monitor the performance and are responsible for the agencies in their region. Agencies within the regional
reporeing units serve similar clients in similar industries and in many cases the same clients and have similar economic

characteristics.
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Revenue and long-lived assets and goodwill by geographic region were (in millions):

Americas EMEA Asia-Pacific
Decemnber 31, 2020
REVEIILIE L. ittt it ettt e e e e e $7.852.5 $3,814.9 $1,503.7
Long-lived assets and goodwill ........ ... ... 7,610.9 3,142.3 665.1
December 31, 2019
T 1L N $8,882.2 $4,422.0 $1,649.5
Long-lived assets and goodwill ... ... .. .. 7,782.0 3,061.3 658.9
December 31, 2018
REVEmlE L i e e $8,900.0 $4,679.8 $1,710.4
Long-lived assets and goodwill ... 6,946.1 2,578.9 553.7

9. Equity Method Investments

Income (foss) from our equity method investments in 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $(6.8) million, $2.0 million and
$8.9 million, respectively. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, our proportionate share in the net assets of the equity method
investments was $30.1 million and $37.0 million, respectively. Equity method investments are not material to our results of
operations or financial position; therefore, summarized financial information is not required to be presented. In the second quarter
2020, we sold an equity method investment and recorded a loss of $3.9 million (see Note 1).

10. Share-Based Compensation Plans

Share-based incentive awards are granted to employees under the 2013 Incentive Award Plan, or the 2013 Plan, which is
administered by the Compensation Commirtee of the Board of Directers, or the Compensation Commirtee. Awards include stock
options, restricted stock and other stock awards. The maximum number of shares of common stock that can be granted under the
2013 Plan is 33 million shares plus any shares awarded under the 2013 Plan and any prior ptan that have been forfeited or have
expired. Stock option awards reduce the number of shares available for grant on a one-for-one basis and all other awards reduce the
number of shares available for grant by 3.5 shares for cach share awarded. The terms of each award and the exercise date are
determined by the Compensation Committee. The 2013 Plan does noe permic the holder of an award to elect cash setclement
under any circumstances. At December 31, 2020, there were 21,419,944 shares available for grant under the 2013 Plan. If all shares
available for grant were for awards other than stock options, shares available for grant would be 6,119,984,

Share-based compensation expense in 2020, 2019 and 2018 was $70.8 million, $72.5 million and $70.5 million, respectively.
At December 31, 2020, unamortized share-based compensation that will be expensed over the next five years is $168.0 million.

We record a deferred tax asset for the share-based compensation expense recognized for financial reporting putposes that has
not been deducted on our income tax return. Any excess tax benefit or deficiency relaced to share-based compensation is recorded
as compensation expense in results of operations upon vesting of restricted stock awards or exercise of stock options. Excess tax
benefits and deficiencies represent the difference between the actual compensation deduction for tax purposes, which is calculated
as the difference between the grant date price of the award, and the price of our common stock on the vesting or exercise dare. In
2020, we recognized a tax deficiency of $3.6 miltion, and in 2019, we recognized a tax benefit of $2.8 million.

Stock Options

The exercise price of stock oprion awards cannot be less than 100% of the market price of our commeon stock on the grant
date and have a maximum contractual life of 10 years.

Stock option activity was:
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

January 1 ...l 866,000 $83.80 988,050 $80.37 1,593,422 $63.11
Exercised ...................... — — (57,300) $23.40 (500,122) $24.43
Forfeited ...................... (97,250) $84.94 {64,750) $84.94 (105,250) $84.94
December 31 .................. 768,750 $83.65 866,000 $83.80 988,050 $80.37
Exercisable December 31 ....... 768,750 $83.65 60,000 $68.42 117,300 $46.43
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At December 31, 2020, options outstanding and exercisable were:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Exercisc Price Range Shares Conuractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$66.00 0 $71.00 .................. 60,000 3.4 years $68.42 60,000 $68.42
$84.00 0 $85.00 .................. 708,750 2.3 years $84.94 708,750 $84.94
768,750 768,750

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock activity was:
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2009 2018
January Lo s 2,547,001 2,553,902 2,859,373
Granted ..o 1,511,719 956,135 815,810
Vested . oo {874,431) (798,468) (944,048)
Forfeited ..o (171,381) (164,568) (177,233)
Decetmber Bl L s 3,012,988 2,547,001 2,553,902
Weighted average grant date fair value of shares granted in the period .......... $51.26 $72.13 $67.62
Weighted average grant date fair value ac December 31 .................. ..., $61.44 $70.89 $69.77

Generally, restricted shares vest ratably over five years from the grant date provided the employse remains employed by us.
Restricted shares may not be sold, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered until the forfeiture restrictions lapse. Under most
circumstances, the employee forfeits the shares if employment ceases prior to the end of the restriction period.

Performance Restricted Stock Units

The Compensation Committee grants certain employees performance restricted stock units, or PRSU. Each PRSU represents
the right to receive one share of common stock on vesting. The ultimate number of PRSUs received by the emplayee depends on
the Company’s average return on equity over a three year period compared to the average return on equity of a peer group of
principal competitors aver the same period. The PRSUs vest three years from che grant date. The PRSUs have a service and
performance vesiing condition and compensation expense is recognized on a graded-vesting basis. Over the performance period,
compensation expense is adjusted upward or downward based on our estimate of the probability of achieving the performance
target for the portion of the awards subject o the performance vesting condition. We have assumed thar all the PRSUs will vest.

PRSU aCtiVi[y Was:
Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Grant Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
January 1 ..o Ll 538,134 $77.99 509,844 $80.41 488,887 $82.01
Granted ....................... 186,197 61.36 181,782 75.64 182,582 73.72
Distributed ..., (173,770) 84.94 (153,492) 83.23 {161,625) 77.68
December 31 ... ._......... 550,561 $70.17 538,134 $77.99 509,844 $80.41

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP enables employees to purchase our common stock through payroll deductions
aver each plan quarter at 95% of the market price on the last rrading day of the plan quarter. Purchases are limired to 10% of
eligible compensation as defined by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA. In 2020, 2019 and 2018,
employees purchased 91,605 shares, 76,040 shares and 91,086 shares, respectively. All shares purchased were treasury stock, for
which we received $5.2 million, $5.6 million and $6.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2020, there were 8,507,706 shares
available under the ESPP.
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11. Income Taxes

The components of income before income taxes were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
[0 T T o § 7111 $ 913.1 $ 6437
U o T T | 698.2 1,025.2 1,280.6
$1,409.3 $1,938.3 $1,924.3

Income tax expense (benefir) was (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Current:
U federal ... o e e $172.2 $180.2 $273.8
U, state and local - ..o o 39.5 339 353
International ... .. .. i e 189.1 306.9 305.2
400.8 521.0 614.5
Deferred:
U federal oo i e {17.4) 19.1 (104.2)
US.stateand local ... oo s (6.1) (22.3) 2.8
International ... ... . s 4.4 {13.2) (20.4)
(19.1) (16.6) (121.8)
$381.7 $504.4 §4927
The reconciliation from the statucory U.S, federal income rax rate to our effective tax rate is:
. 2020 2019 2018
Seacutory U.S. federal income tax rate ... 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
U.S. stace and local income taxes, ner of U.S. federal income tax benefit ........ 2.2 0.5 1.6
et of TaX At oot ettt e — — 1.5
Impact of foreign operations .. ... ... o 3.4 4.5 ‘ 3.8
Other . 0.5 = (2.3)
Effective Tax (a8 - ettt ittt e 27.1% 26.0% 25.6%

Qur effective tax rate for 2020 increased year-over-year to 27.1% from 26.0%. The non-deductibility in certain jurisdictions
of a portion of the COVID-19 repositioning cests recorded in the second quarter of 2020 had the effect of increasing our effective
tax rare for 2020. This increase was substantially offset by a lower effective tax rate on our foreign earnings resulting frorm a change
in legislation. The effective tax rate for 2019 includes a reduction of $10.8 million primarily from the net favorable sectlement of
Uncertin tax positions in various jurisdictions in the second quarter of 2019. The international tax rate differentials in 2020 and
2019 are primarily auributed to our earnings in Germany, Australia, France, Japan and Brazil being taxed at higher rates than the
U.S. statutory tax rate.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, or Tax Act, among other things, implemented a territorial tax system and imposed a
one-time transition tax on the deemed repatriation of accumulated earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Ac December 31, 2020 and
2019, the transition tax liability was $112.0 million and $123.6 mitlion, respectively. The territorial cax system allows us to
repatriate earnings of our foreign subsidiaries without incurring additional U.S. tax by providing a 100% dividend exemption.
While a territorial tax system limics U.S. federal income rax to domestic source income, foreign source income is subject to tax in
the appropriate foreign jurisdiction at the local rate, which in certain jurisdictions may be higher than the U.S. federal statutory
income rax rate of 21%. As a resulr, the foreign tax rate differential will cause our effective tax rate to be higher than the U.S.
federal statutory income rax rate.

We have elecred to account for any tax on the global intangible low-taxed income, or GILTT, in the period in which it is
incurred. In 2020 and 2019, we provided $3.0 million and $14.7 million, respectively, for tax impacts of GILTL

Income rax expense in 2020, 2019 and 2018 includes $3.8 million, $2.2 mitlion and $3.6 million, respectively, of interest, net
of tax benefit, and penalties related to tax positions raken on our rax returns. Ar December 31, 2020 and 2019, accrued interest and
penalties were $23.5 million and $20.0 million, respectively.
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The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities and balance sheet classification were (in millions):
December 31,

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
COMPENSATION .. ... .. i e e $236.5 $210.9
Tax loss and credit carryforwards . ... . oo i e e 67.0 60.6
Basis differences from acquisitions .. .....oo o i 20.8 22.9
Basis differences from short-term assets and liabilities ...... ... .. . ... ... ... . .. ... ... . ....... 34.4 422
Oher L e (5.8) 4.6
Defermed LA aS5EIS oo ottt 352.9 341.2
Valuation allowance ... ... o e e s (15.9) {7.6)
Net deferred tax @5888 « ittt e $337.0 $333.6
Deferred rax liabilities:
Goodwill and intangible assers ... ..o s $611.1 $598.0
Unremitted foreign earnilpgs . ... ... oo s 91.9 69.0
Basis differences from INVESTMENTS ... .uvnint ettt et et e e e e e e (1.1} 9.0
Financial Instuments ..o 0.8 0.9
Deferred tax liabilities ....oooooiii o e $702.7 $676.9
Long-term deferred rax assets ..o oo e $ 77.8 $ 64.8
Long-term deferred wax liabilities ... ... e $443.5 $408.1

We have concluded that it is more likely than not that we will be able to realize our net deferred tax assets in future periods
because results of future operations are expected o generate sufficient taxable income. The valuation allewance of $15.9 million
and $7.6 million ar December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. relates to tax losses and tax credit carryforwards in the U.S. and in
international jurisdictions. Tax loss and credit cartyforwards for which thete is no valuation allowance are available for periods
ranging from 2021 to 2040, which is longer than the forecasted utilization of such carryforwards.

A reconciliation of our unrecognized tax benefits is (in millions):
December 31,

2020 2019

JaIUAEY L L e $206.8 $182.8
Additions:

CULTENE YEAT EAX POSILOMS ..ttt ittt ittt e ee st e et te e et a e e annnan e e e nans 3.9 12.3

Prior year tax POSIEIONS .. ... u . it e 2.8 294
Reduction of prior year tax Posicions . .........ouiie i (26.1) (13.1)
R [ 2= 11 O O (2.3) (5.0)
Foreign currency tanslation .. ... ..o i i e e {2.0) 0.4
ol 1T T $182.9 $206.8

The majority of che liabilicy for uncereain rax positions is recorded in long-term labilities. At December 31, 2020 and 2019,
approximacely $174.0 millien and $179.0 million, respectively, of the liability for uncertain tax positions would affect our effective

tax rate upon resolution of the uncertain tax positions,
We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return and income tax returns in various state and local jurisdictions. Qur
subsidiaries file tax recurns in various foreign jurisdictions. Qur principal foreign jurisdictions include the United Kingdom, France

and Germany. The Internal Revenue Service has completed its examination of our U.S. federal rax returns through 2015, Tax
returns in the Unired Kingdom, France and Germany have been examined chrough 2017, 2016 and 2009, respectively.

In response to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the CARES Act, was signed into law on March 27, 2020.
We have determined that the CARES Act did not have a material impact on our income tax expense or effective rax rate for 2020.
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12, Pension and Other Postemployment Benefiis
Defined Coneribution Plans

Our domestic and international subsidiaries provide retirement benefits for their employees primarity through defined contribution
profic sharing and savings plans. Conaibutions o the plans vary by subsidiary and have generally been in amounts up to the maximum
percentage of total eligible compensadon of participating employees that is deductble for income tax purposes. Contribution expense in
2020, 2019 and 2018 was $108.1 million, $115.2 million and $118.8 million, respectively.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Two of our U.S. businesses and several of our non-U.S. businesses sponsor nonconeributory defined benefic pension plans. These
plans provide benefits to employees based on formulas recognizing length of service and earnings. The U.S. plans cover approximately 800
participants, are closed to new parricipants and do not accrue furure benefit credits. The nan-U.S. plans, which include plans required by
local law; cover approximately 5,100 participants and are not subject to ERISA.

We have a Senior Executive Restrictive Covenant and Retention Plan, or Retention Plan, for certain execurive officers selected by the
Compensation Committee. The Retention Plan is 2 non-qualified deferred compensatien severance plan thar was adopted to secure
non-competition, nor-solicitation, non-disparagement and ongoing consulting services from such executive officers and to strengthen the
rerention aspect of executive officer compensation. The Retencion Plan provides annual payments upon terminadon following ac least
seven years of service with Omnicom or its subsidiaries to the participants or to their beneficiaries. A participant’s annual benefit is payable
for 15 consecurive calendar years following termination, but in no event prior to age 55. The annual benefit is equal to the lesser of (i) the
participant’s final average pay times an applicable percentage, which is based upon the execurive’s years of service as an execurive officer,
not 0 exceed 35% or () $1.5 million adjusted for cost-of-living, beginning with the second annual payment, not to exceed 2.5% per
year. The Retention Plan is not funded and benefits are paid when due.

The components of net periodic benefit expense were (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
BTt o e 1 A O A PSR $ 75 $79 $ 7.7
L = g L S 7.7 8.2 7.9
Expected recurnon plan assets ... (2.6) (3.9 (2.8}
Amortization of PLIOF SEMVICE COST 1. it ittt i e e n e ias 0.8 0.8 4.4
Amortization of actuarial 1oss - ... .ol i e 6.7 2.5 6.9

$20.1 $15.9 $24.1

[ncheded in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were unrecognized actuarial losses and
unrecognized prior service cost of $96.5 million ($60.2 million net of income taxes) and $93.9 millien ($58.3 million net of income
taxes), respectively, that have not yet been recognized in net periodic benefic cost. The unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and
unrecognized prior service cost included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected 1o be recognized in net periodic
benefit cost in 2021 is $7.5 million.

The weighted average assurmptions used to determine net periodic benefir expense were:
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Discount rate . ... e 2.4% 2.9% 3.6%
COMPENSATION TICEEASES - . . vt eetv ettt e s tite e iear e et e s et e it ettt teaaeeeaanes 2.5% Z.5% 2.5%
Expected returnon plan assets ... ... e e 5.1% 5.5% 5.8%

The expected long-term: rate of return for plan assets for the U.S. plans is based on several facrors, including current and expected
asset allocations, historical and expected rerurns on various asset classes and current and future market conditions. A rotal return
investrnent approach using a mix of equities and fixed income investments maximizes the leng-term rerurn. This strategy is intended to
minimize plan expense by achieving long-term requrns in excess of the growth in plan liabilitics over time. The discount rate used to
compute net periodic benefit cost is based on yields of available high-quality bonds and reflects the expected cash flow as of the
measurement date. The expected returns on plan assets and discount tates for the non-ULS. plans are based on local factors, including each
plan’s investment approach, local interest rates and plan participant profiles.

Experience gains and losses and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are generally amortized over a period no longer than
the expected average future service of active employees.
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Our furding policy is to conwribute amounts sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements in accordance with the
applicable employee benefit and tax laws that the plans are subject to, plus such additional amounts as we may determine to be
appropriate. In 2020 and 2019, we contributed $9.1 million and $7.1 million, respectively, eo the defined benefic pension plans.
We do not expect the contributions for 2021 to differ materially from the 2020 concributions.

The change in benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets of the defined benefit pension pians were {in milliens):
December 31,

2020 2019
Benefit Obligation:
JamUary | oo $293.5 $258.4
R Tt -1 N 7.5 7.9
ST T A sy S 7.7 8.2
Amendments, curtailments and settlements ... ..o e (0.2) 1.4
Actarial boss .. o e e e s 17.2 28.8
Benefits paid ... (13.5) (9.2}
Foreign currency translation .. .....vuuen i 2.9 (2.00
December 31 ... $309.3 $293.5
Fair Value of Plan Assets:
R $ 643 $ 57.4
Actual return on plan assets ... 5.0 8.7
Employer contributions -.... .o e 9.1 7.1
Bemefits paid ... .o e (13.5) (9.2)
Foreign currency transladon and other ... oo oo o (1.6) 0.3
Decemmber Bl oo $ 63.3 $ 64.3

The funded status and balance sheer classification of the defined benefit pension plans were (in miitions):
December 31,

2020 2019
Funded Statls .o e 3(246.0) $(229.2)
L0 T T P T S $ 27 5§ 28
Other current Habilities . ... e (5.2) (5.1}
Long-term liabilities ... ... o o e (243.5) (226.9)

$(246.0} $(229.2)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the accumulated benefic obligation for our defined benefic pension plans was
$243.9 million and $268.9 million, respectively.

Plans wich benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were (in millions):

December 31,
2020 2019
Benefit obligation . ... ..o e $(294.0 $(280.7)
BT 45.4 48.3

$(248.6) $(232.4)

December 31,
2020 2019
DTy T 1 1o - =S R 1.7% 2.8%
Compensation INCIEASES .. ... .. ... ...t 27% 27%

22 £ 65
2 16.5
3 16.7
) PPN 15.8
1 18.7
2026 — 2030 . e 104.9
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Postemployment Arrangements

We have executive retiternent agreements under which benefits will be paid to participants or to their beneficiaries over
periods up to ten years beginning after cessation of full-time employment. Our postemployment arrangements are unfunded and
benetits are paid when due.

The companents of net periodic benefic expense were {in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
B EIVICE COSE ettt e ettt e et e e e e e $ 46 3 4.4 $ 47
R L 3.4 4.3 3.6
Amortization of prior SEIVICe COST . ........uiiiiiiiiii e 43 4.5 3.5
Amortization of actuarial losses ... ... ... s 2.1 0.9 1.8
$14.4 $14.1 $13.6

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2020 and 2019 were unrecognized actuarial losses
and unrecagnized prior service cost of $73.8 million ($46.4 million ner of income taxes) and $60.8 million {§37.2 million ner of
income taxes}, respectively, that have not yet been recognized in the net periodic benefir cost. The unrecognized actuarial gains and
losses and unrecognized prior service cost included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in
net petiodic benefit cost in 2021 is $8.0 million.

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit expense were:
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
L0 T o O R 2.5% 2.9% 3.4%
Compensation ICIEASES ... ... . .ot re et aiain e e e et a e aaiae s s 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%

Experience gains and losses and effects of changes in actuarial assumprions are amortized over 2 period no longer than the
expected average furure service of active employees.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the benefit obligation and balance sheet classification were (in millions):
December 31,

2020 2019

TR G e $146.0 $126.5
BT Tt L+ 1 S 4.6 4.4
BT xS o 1 A A 3.4 4.3
P20 T s Ty T o U T O 3.0 4.5
ACtUATIal Lo8S o o e e e 16.3 14.1
Benefits paid ..o oo i e 8.7 (7.8)
ot oY 3 O O $164.6 $146.0
Orther current liabilities ... ... s $ 95 § 846
Long~term liabilities ... ... o i e 155.1 137.4

$164.6 $146.0

The weighted average assumptions used 1o determine the benefit obligation were:
December 31,

2020 2019
T3 1 G (<IN G 1.9% 2.9%
Compensation increases ........ AR 3.5% 3.5%

At December 31, 2020, the estimated benefits expected to be paid over the next 10 years are (in millions):

1) g $ 25
22 e e 10.5
D e e e s 10.0
2024 P 9.9
S e e e e 10.2
2026 - 2080 o e e e 50.7
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13. COVID-19 Repositioning Costs

In response to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, in the second quarter of 2020, we took actions to align our cost
strucrure and reduce our workforce and facility requirements and reviewed businesses for disposal and assets for impairment. As a
result of these actions, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $277.9 million, which is comprised of incremental severance of
$150.0 million, real estate operaring lease ROU asset and other asset impairment charges of $55.8 million, other exic costs of
$47.0 million and disposirions and other charges of $25.1 million. Substantially all the liability related to real estate will be paid
over the applicable lease rerm. The ROU asset and other asset impairment charges and the dispesition and other charges are

non-cash charges.

At December 31, 2020 the liability for the COVID-19 repesitioning costs was (in millions):

Opening balance .. .. e $197.0
O s o117 N (113.2)
December 31, 2020 .. .ot e § 838

We expect thar the liability for the COVID-19 repositioning costs will be substanzially paid by the end of 2021.
Nez Gain on Dispositions and Repositioning Actions

in the third quarter of 2018, we disposed of certain businesses, primarily in our CRM Execution & Support discipline, and
recorded a net gain of $178.4 million. Additonally, we took certain repositioning actions in an: effort to continue to improve our

strategic position and achieve operating efficiencies and recorded charges of $149.4 million, which included $68.4 million for
severance, $73.5 million for office fease consolidation and termination and other costs of $7.5 million. At December 31, 2020,

substantially all the liability was paid.
14. Supplemental Cash Flow Data

The change in operating capital was (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
{(Increase) decrease in accounes receivable ... .. ... .. Ll $ 141.2 ${156.6) $ 88.3
(Increase) decrease in work in process and other currentassets ................. .. 293.0 (99.8) (269.3)
Increase {decrease} in accounts payable............. ... (428.6) 276.3 242.9
[ncrease (decrease) in customer advances, raxes payable and other current
T T T P 65.9 87.2 54.3
Change in other assets and liabilities, net .............. i, . {40.6) 18.0 (35.7)
Increase in operating capital ... i $§ 309 $125.1 $ 805
Income taxes paid ... ... $ 376.5 $361.0 $390.9
$ 205.5 $ 246.3 $243.2

Interest paid ... oo e

Supplemental non-cash information related to leases was (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 19
Net increase in lease liabiliey:
Operating leases ... ... $133.9 $1,816.7
FINanCE Jomses .o o e e e, $ 321 § 541

15. Noncontrolling Interests

Changes in the ownership interests in our less than 100% owned subsidiaries were {in millions):
Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019 2018
Net income aztributed to Omnicom Group Inc. ... $945.4 $1,339.1 $1,326.4
Ner transfers (to) from noncontrolling interests ....... ... 5.8 (22.3) {39.7)

Change from net income attribured to Omnicom Group Inc. and transfers (o) from
noncontrolling Mterests ... ... i e

$951.2 $1,316.8 $1,286.7
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16. Leases

On January 1, 2019, we adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 842, Leases, or ASC 842. As
permitted by ASC 842, we elecred the adoption date of January 1, 2019, which is the date of initial applicasion. Prior to January 1,
2019, rent expense continues to be reported under ASC Topic 840, Leases, or ASC 840.

The components of lease cost under ASC 842 were (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2020 2019
Operating lease COSE .. ...t i e $303.6 $317.8
T T (o Tl 1t G 285 382
SROrt-term Lease OB .ttt et e e 4.3 4.9
SUB S IO COMIE © o\ ot e et e e e e e (0.9} (5.1)
335.5 355.8
Finance lease cost:
Arnortization of RO assets . ... o it e e e e e 50.2 43.2
G =21 5.3 5.1
55.5 48.3
TOEA] JEaSE COBE « .ottt ittt et e $391.0 $404.1
Rent expense under ASC 840 for the year ended December 31, 2018 was (in millions):
2018
L@ ] 13T =« L R $295.0
EqQuipment Tent .. ..o o i e e 16.6
Third-party sublease rent ... o o i e aans s (7.2)
Total TEIEE COST o\ttt et e e e s $304.4

Amortization expense for assets under capital lease was $36.7 million in 2018.

The balance sheet classification, weighted average remaining lease term and weighred average discount rate related to our

opetating and finance leases were (in millions):

Operating leases:

ROU asset. . et e

Lease liabilicy:

Other current liabikices ..........................

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)

Weighted average discountrate .....................

Finance leases:

Property and equipment, net ...

Lease liabilicy:

Orher currene liabilicles .......ooov i eeen s
Long-term liabilities .............ccoooviiian

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)

Weighted average discountrate ...l
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December 31,

2020 2019

............................................. $1,223.4 $1,398.3
............................................. $ 2705 $ 290.3
............................................. 1,114.0 1,274.7
$1,384.5 $1,565.0

............................................. 7.9 8.2
............................................. 3.7% 3.8%
............................................. $ 1207 $ 1387
............................................ £ 495 § 4646
............................................. 74.6 92.1
§ 124.1 $_138.7

............................................. 3.0 3.4
............................................. 4.2% 4.3%
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At December 31, 2020, the maturities of the lease liabilities were {in millions):

Operating Leases Finance Leases

L $ 3138 $ 497
20 e e 256.6 36.7
0 N 193.6 24.2
D2 L e 167.9 11.9
202 e 141.9 4.1
Therealter .o e e 536.2 3.7

Total lease payments .....oooov oot 1,610.0 130.3
Less: Impured INTEIEST ..o iv s e e 225.5 6.2

Present value of lease liabiliey ..o oo $1,384.5 $124.1

17, Temporary Equity - Redeemable Noncontrolling Intcrests

Owners of noncontrolling equity interests in sormme of our subsidiaries have the right in certain circumstances to require us to
purchase all or a portion of their equity interest at fair value as defined in che applicable agreements. Assumning that the subsidiaries
perform over the relevanc periods ar their current profit levels, at December 31, 2020 the aggregare estimated maximum amournt we
could be required to pay in future periods is $209.7 million, of which $151.0 million is currently exercisable by the holders. If these
rights are exercised, there would be an increase in net income attributable to Omnicom as a result of our increased ownership
interest and the reduction of net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, The ultimate amount paid could be significandy
different because the redemption amount depends on the future results of operations of the subject businesses, the timing of the
exercise of these rights and changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

18. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various legal proceedings. We do not expect that cthese proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on our resules of operations or financial position.

19. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), tiet of income taxes were (in millions):

Defined Benefit
Pension Plans

Cash and Foreign
Flow Postcmployment Currency
Hedge Arrangements Translation Total
January 1, 2019 ... i $(22.3) $ (69.3) $(1,136.9) $(1,228.5)
Other comprehensive income {loss) before
reclassifications ......... ... .ot — (32.3) 75.4 43.1
Cumulative effect of accounting change ...... (5.6) (16.7) — (22.3)
Reclassification from accumulated other
comprehensive income {loss) .............. 39 6.2 — 10.1
December 31,2019 ... (24.0) (112.1) (1,661.5) (1,197.6)
Qther comprehensive income {loss) before
reclassifications .............. .. ... . — (21.0) {9.0) (30.00
Reclassification from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) .............. 3.9 9.9 — 13.8
December 31,2020 ...l $(20.1 $(123.2 $(1,070.5) $(1,213.8)
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20. Fair Value

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were (in millions):

December 31, 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assers:

Cash and cash equivalents ... ... $5,600.5 $5,600.5

Marketable equity securities ... .. ... .. ... ... ... 1.6 1.6

Foreign currency derivatives ... ...... ... $0.6 0.6
Liabilities:

Foreign currency derivadves ... $0.3 3 03

Contingent purchase price obligations ................cccoov..n. $ 719 71.9

December 31, 2019

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents .. ... ... ... ... $4,305.7 $4,305.7

ShOCT-Termn iNVESIMENS .o\ i\t et e eeneee e eanens 3.6 3.6

Marketable equity securities ... ... ... L 1.6 1.6

Foreign currency derivatives . ... .......coeiviiniiiiinennian ot $0.6 0.6
Liabilities:

Foreign currency derivatives ... ... ... 0.4 0.4

Contingent purchase price obligations .................ooceiins $107.7 107.7

Changes in contingent purchase price obligations were (in millions):
December 31,
2020 2019
JaATY | e e e e $107.7 $146.5
AU OIS - L ot 14.4 51.1
Revaluation and iIEIEst ... it i e {21.9) {18.0)
o= 1L (31.3) (71.4)
Foreign currency translation ... ... 3.0 0.5}
December 31 . e e e $ 71.9 $107.7
The carrying amount and fair value of our financial assets and liabilities were (in millions):
December 31,
2020 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ... $5,600.5 $5.600.5 $4,305.7 $4.305.7

Short-term investments ...................c.cooen... — —_ 3.6 3.6

Marketable equity securides ...................... ... 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

Non-marketable equity securities .........oooovvine. 8.9 8.9 9.0 9.0

Foreign curtency derivatives .. ... ... L 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Liabilicies:

Shore-term debr ..o $ 39 5 39 $ 101 $ 101

Foreign currency derivadves .................c..o.. ., 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4

Conringent purchase price obligations ................ 71.9 719 107.7 107.7

Long-term deb, including current portion............ 5,807.3 6.380.6 5,134.3 5,316.4

The estimared fair value of the foreign currency and interest rate derivative instruments is determined using model-derived
valuations, taking into consideration foreign currency rates for the foreign currency derivatives and readily observable inpurs for
LIBOR interest rates and yield curves to derive the present value of the future cash flows for the interest rate derivatives and
counterparty credit risk for each, The estimated fair value of the contingent purchase price obligations is calculared in accordance
with the terms of each acquisition agreement and s discounted. The fair value of long-term debr is based on quoted market prices.
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21. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We manage our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk through various strategies, including the
use of derivative financial instruments. We use forward foreign exchange contracts as economic hedges to manage the cash flow
volatility arising from foreign currency exchange race fluctuations. We may use interest rate swaps to manage our interest expense
and strucrure our long-term debr portfolio to achieve a mix of fixed rate and floating rate debt. We do not use derivarives for
trading or speculative purposes. Using derivatives exposes us to the risk thar counterparties to the derivative contracts will fail o
meer their contracrual obligacions. We manage ¢hat risk through careful selection and ongoing evaluation of the counterparty
financial institutions based on specific minimum credit standards and other factors.

We evaluate the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interese races and other relevant market risks on our
derivatives. We periodically determine the potential loss from market risk on our derivatives by performing a value-ac-risk analysis,
or VaR. VaR is a statistical model that uses historical currency exchange rate data to measure the potential impact on furure
earnings of our derivative financial instruments assuming normal market conditions. The VaR model is not intended to represent
actual losses but is used as a risk estimation and management tol. Based on the results of the model, we estimate wich 95%
confidence a maximum one-day change in the net fair value of our derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2020 was not

significant.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

As an ineegral part of our global treasury operations, we centralize our cash and use notional multicurrency pools to manage
the foreign currency exchange risk thar arises from imbalances between subsidiaries and their respective treasury centers. In
addition, there are circumstances where revenue and expense transactions are not denominated in the same currency. In these
instances, amounts are either promptly setiled or hedged with forward foreign exchange contracts. To manage this risk, we had
ourtstanding forward foreign exchange contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $169.6 million and $284.2 million at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Fareign currency derivatives are designated as fair value hedges; therefore, any gain or loss in fair value incurred on those
instruments is recorded in resules of operations and is generally offser by decreases or increases in the fair value of the underlying
exposure. By using these financial instruments, we reduce financial risk of adverse foreign exchange changes by foregoing any gain
which might occur if the markets move favorably. The terms of our forward foreign exchange contracts are generally less than

90 days.
22. New Accounting Standards

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, fncame Taxes (Topic 740} or ASU 2019-12, which, among other chings,
amends the rules for recognizing deferred taxes for investments, performing intra-period tax allocations and calculatung income
taxes in interim periods and reduces complexity in certain areas, including the accounting for transactions that result in a step-up in
the tax basis of goodwill and allocating taxes to members of a consolidated group. ASU 2019-12 is effective January 1, 2021. We do
not expect the adoption of ASU 2019-12 will have a material effect on our results of operations and financial position.

23, Subsequent Events

We have evaluated events subsequent to the balance sheet date and determined there have not been any events that have
occurred that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
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OMNICOM GROUT INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE 1I - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2020
(In millions}

Translation
Balance Charged to Removal of Adjustment Balance
Beginning Costs and Uncollectible Encrease End of
Description of Period Expenses Receivables {Decrease) Period
Valuation accounts deducted from assets:
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:
December 31,2020 ... ..o $21.5 $235 $(15.0) $04 $30.4
December 31,2019 .. .. oo i 26.8 8.5 (13.8) 215
December 31,2018 ... ... .. 321 11.8 (16.8) (0.3) 26.8
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Omnicom

Financial Performance

Return On Equity — 10 Year Average 38.7%
60% -

40% -
20% ] l I I l

2011 2012 2013 2014 2019 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

i

Percentage of Cumulative Net Income Returned to Shareholders — 10 Years

($in billions)

$12

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2011 2012

Peccentage of Cumulacive Net Income Returned to Shareholders — Cumulacive Dividends Paid plus Cumularive Cost of Net Shares Repurchased
divided by Cumulacive Ner Encome.
Cumulative Net Income - Omnicom Group Inc.

O
+
N Cumulative Dividends Paid.
[ |

Cumulative Cosc of Net Shares Repurchased — Repurchases of common stock less proceeds from stock plans.

Past performance does not guarantee future resules. This Anmwal Repore to Sharekolders conains forward-looking statements, and actual results could differ materially. Rusk
facrors that could cause acrual results to differ are set forth in the “Risk Factors” section and throughour our 2020 Form 10-K, which is included in this Annuzl Report.



Omnicom

Financial Highlights

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Operating Data:

Revenue $13,171.1  $14,953.7  §15,290.2  §15.273.6  $15.4169

Operating Profic 1,598.8 2,1223 2,133.5 2,083.8 12,0305

Net Income - Omaicom Group Inc. 945.4 1,339.1 1,326.4 1,088.4 1,148.6
Net Income Per Share — Omnicom Group Inc.:

Basic $4.38 $6.09 $5.85 $4.68 $4.80

Diluted 437 606 583 4.65 4.78
Dividends Per Share $2.60 $2.60 $2.40 $225 $2.15

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted our business and results of operations.

On January 1, 2019, we adopted FASB Accounting Standards Cedification, or ASC, Topic 842 Leases, or ASC
842, which required the recognition of the right-of-use assets and relaced lease liabilities on the balance sheet. The
adoption of ASC 842 had a substantial impact on total assets and liabilicies, but had no impact on our resuits of
operations, cash flows or equisy.

In 2018, we adopted ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, or ASC 606. As a result of the
adoption of ASC 606, in 2018 revenue and operating profit decreased $146.1 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

In 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act reduced Net Income ~ Omnicom Group Inc. by $106.3 million and
Diluted Net Income Per Share - Omnicom Group Inc. by $0.45.

PERFORMANCE GRAP'H

The graph below compares the cumulative total return on cur common stock during che last five fiscal years
with the Standard & Peor’s 300 Composite Index and a peer group of publicly held corporate communications and
marketing holding companies consisting of The [nterpublic Group of Companies, Inc., WPP pic and Publicis Groupe
SA. The graph shows the value at the end of each year of $100 invested in each of our common stock, the S&P 500
Index and the peer group. The graph assumes the reinvestment of dividends.

Returns depicted in the graph are not indicative of future performance.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Return
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Coiorate Information

PrINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES

Omuicom GROUP INC.
280 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10017
Tel: {212) 415-3600

Omxicom GRoup INC.
1055 Washington Boulevard
Stamford, Connecticur 06901
Tel: (203) 618-1500

Omnicom GrRoue Inc.

525 Okeechobee Boulevard
Suite 870

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411
Tel: (561) 207-2200

Ovivcom Eugope LiviTED
Bankside 3

90-100 Southwark Street
London, Sel 0SW

Unired Kingdom

Tel: +44(0) 20 72928 7007
OMNICOM AsTA PACIFIC — SINGAPORE
Creative Centre At Pico
Lobby B Level 8

20 Kallang Avenue

Singapore 339411

Tel: +65 6671 4417

WWW.0MNICOMEoup.com

Printed on Recycled Paper

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be
held on Tuesday, May 4, 2021, at

10 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time at
Omaicom Group [nc.

280 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10017

Shareholders may also attend online at
www.virtualsharcholdermeeting, com/OMC2021

SEC CERTIFICATIONS

The certificarions by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Omnicom Group Inc., required under Sections 302 and 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, have been filed as exhibits w0
the company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

NYSE CERTIFICATION

After the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, Omnicom
intends to file with the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) the
CEQ certification regarding Qrmnicom’s compliance with the
NYSE's corporate governance listing standards as required by
NYSE rule 303A.12. Last year, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Omnicom submitted this certification to
the NYSE on June 25, 2020

Stock LisTiNG
Omnicom common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange. The ticker symbol is OMC.

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR

Equiniti Trust Company

EQ Shareowner Services

PO Box 64854, St. Paul, Minnesota $5164-0854

www.shareowneronline.com

INVESTOR SERVICES PROGRAM

An Investor Services Program, which includes direct stock
purchase and dividend reinvestment features, is available to
shareholders of record and other interested investors, For further
information, please contace EQ Shareowner Services at
800.468.9716 or go to www.shareowneronline.com.

Stock TrANSFER MATTERS/CHANGE OF ADDRESS

To assist you in handling matters relating to stock transfer or
change of address, please write 1o ot call our transfer agent:

EQQ Shareowner Services

PO Box 64854, St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0854 800.468.9716
Or, by courier ta:

E{) Shareowner Services

1110 Centre Pointe Curve, Suire 101

Mendota Heights, Minnesota $3120-4100

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP

345 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10154



